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2015, please find enclosed herewith a copy of the Annual Report and Statement of Impact of Audit Qualification along 

with Notice of the 87" Annual General Meeting of the company for the financial year 2023-24 which is scheduled to be 
held on Friday, 27" September, 2024. The Annual report is also available on the website of the Company i.e., 

khaitansugar.in under “FINANCIAL RESULTS?” tab (File Name: Annual Report for the Year of 2023-2024). 

Kindly take the same on record. 

Thanking You, 

Yours faithfully 
For KHAITAN (INDIA) LIMITED 

CHANDRA NATH BANERJEE 
(Company Secretary & Compliance Officer) 

Ces 

To, 
National Securities Depository Ltd 

Trade World, 4" Floor, Kamala Mills Compound 
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400013. 

To, 

Central Depository Services (I) Ltd 
Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers 
Dalal Street, Mumbai - 400001. 

Regd. Office : 20th Floor, 46C, J. L. Nehru Road, Kolkata-700 071 



ANNEXURE | 

Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications (for audit report with modified Opinion) submitted along-with Annual Audited Financial 
Results 

(Amount in Rs. Lakhs) 
Statement on Impact of Audit Qualifications for the Financial Year ended March 31, 2024 

[See Regulation 33 / 52 of the SEBI (LODR) (Amendment) Regulations, 2016] 

Audited Figures (as reported Adjusted Figures (audited 

before adjusting for figures after adjusting for 
1.|SI. No. Particulars qualifications) qualifications) 

1}Turnover / Total income 5,956.62 5,956.62 

2} Total Expenditure 5,822.62 5,822.62 
3| Net Profit/(Loss) After Tax 134.00 134.00 
4] Earnings Per Share (in Rs.) 2.82 2.82 
5|Total Assets 6,983.00 6,983.00 

6|Total Liabilities 4,958.53 4,958.53 
7|Net Worth 2,024.47 2,024.47 

Any other financial item(s) (as felt appropriate by 
NIL NIL 

8|the management) 

.|Audit Qualification (each audit qualification separately): 

a. Details of Audit Qualification: 

Reference is invited to Note No — 4 to the financial results regarding Production activity of the sugar mill of the company is 

continued to be under suspension for a long time after incurring heavy losses. The production activities could not be resumed 

during the current year because of un-remunerative selling prices and high cost of production. However, company is hopeful 

that in future because of the various measures envisaged the position may improve. Therefore, for the time being company has 

not considered the business of sugar division as discontinued operation. 

b. Type of Audit Qualification : Modified Opinion 

G: | Frequency of qualification: The above Point is appearing since Year 2020-21 

d. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is quantified by the auditor, Management's Views: 

Nil 

e. For Audit Qualification(s) where the impact is not quantified by the auditor: 

(i) Management's estimation on the impact of audit qualification: 

Sugar division is one of the core business divisions of the Company. The management is of the view that as soon as the 

requirement of working capital needed for running the operations is arranged the operation shall be resumed. Further the 

Management is hopeful that in future because of the various measures envisaged the position is expected to improve. 

Therefore, for the time being company has not considered the business of sugar division as discontinued operation and is 

considered as a going concern. 

(ii) If management is unable to estimate the impact, reasons for the same: Not Applicable 

(iii) Auditors' Comments on above: No Comments to offer 

As stated herein above, the impact with respect to above and consequental adjustments cannot be ascertained by the 

Management and as such cannot be commented upon by us. 
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NOTICE OF 87TH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING TO THE MEMBERS 

Notice ig hereby aiven that the Eighty Seventh Annual Ganeral Mesting of Khaitan (India) Limited will be held on Friday 27th 
September, 2024 al 17:30 4.M. through Video Conferencing ("VG") cther Audio Means COAYVM'), to transact the following business, 

ORDINARY BUSINESS; 

1. To receive, consider and adopt the 4Sudited Financial Statements of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2024, 

together with the Report ofthe Directors and Auditors thereon. 

2 Teappoints Director in place of Mr Sunmay Krishna Khaitan (DIM: OFS85070), who retires by rotation and being eligible, offers himself 

for re-appdiniment 
By Order of the Board of Directors 

Registered Offices: For Khaitan (india) Limited 
46-0,J.L, Nehru Road, Kolkate-7O007 Chandra Nath Banerpee 
S0th August 2024 Company Secretary and Compiance Officer 

NOTES: 
4. The Ministn:ot Gorporate Affairs. Government of India ('MC4") vide General Circular Nos. 14/2020, 17/2020, 22020, G2a/2021, 

242021 , 02/2029, 10/2022, and 9/2029 dated April §, 2020, April 13,200, May 5, 2020, January 19, 2024, Deeamber 14, 2021, 
May 5, 2022, December 28, 2022; and September 25, 2023, respectively ("MCA Circulars’), has-akhowed the conducting of 

Annual General Meetings ("AGH") by companies through Video Conferencing/Other Audic- Visual Means ("VC/OAVT"| facility 
up to-September 30, 2024, in accordance with the requirements provided in pargraphs 3 and 4 of MGA General Circular No, 

20/2020, The Securitles and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI") also, vide its Clreular Nos. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD1 SIRF 202078 
dated May 12, 2020, SEBY HO/CFD /CMb2/CIR/Piet22b2 dated May 13, 2022, SEBIHO/! CFO/Pob-gP/ CIR 2023/4 dated 
January 5, 2023, and SEBI! HO/DDHS/P/CIR@023/0164 dated October 6, 2029 ("SEB) Circulars"), has provided certain 
tHaxatians from compliance with soectiic provisions of the SEB! Listing Regulations, In compliance with these circulars, 

provisions ef the Act, and the SEB! Listing Regulations, the 87th AGM: of the Company is belng conducted through VC/OAVM, 

which does notrequire ihe physical presence of members ata comman venue, The deemed venue forthe arth AGM shall be the 
Registered Office ofthe Company 

2, Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2009 ("Act") @ Member entitied to aftend and vote at the AGM is entitied to 
appoint a proxy to attend and vote on his/her behalt and the proxy need not bee Member of the Company. Since this AGM is 

belng betd pursuant to the MCA Clreulars and SES! Clrevlars through VC/OAVM, phygical attendance af Members has bean 

dispensed with, Accordingly, the factitytor appelntment of proxies by the Members will not be available forthe AGM and hence 
the Proxy Foon Attendance Sip and route map otthe AGM are notannexed to this Notice: 

3. ‘Corporate members are requested to Send'to the Company, a certified copy of the Board Resolution/Power of Attamey 
authorizing their representative to-attenc and vote inthe AGM trough VC/OAVM on its behelf and to vote through remote 6 

Voting. Members of the Company under the category of Insiliution Investors are encouraged to attend and vote at he AGM, 

4. The Register of Mombers and Share Transfer Books will remain closed from Saturday 21st September, 2024 to Friday 

27th September, 2024 (both days Inclusive) on account of the Annual General Meeting. 

& Dispatch of Notice of AGM along with Annual Reportfor the financial year 2023-24, lo Shareholders in compllance withthe MCA 
Circulars and SEB! Circulars, the Annual Report including the notice of the e-AGiM is being sent only through electronic mode to 
those members whose: email IDs are registered with the Company/regisiated with the Company/Depository Participant(s) and 

are holding shares of the Company a3 on Friday, 301m August 2024 being the cut-oll date for the purpose. Members may aiso 

note that the Annual Regert for FY 2023-2024: and the Notes will algo be available on the Companys wensite 

wey. Kogitansugerin on the website of Stock Exchanges BSE Limited i.e, www. bseindis.com and Natanel Steck Exchange ot 
india Limited: i.e. wuwunseindia com. The recorded transcript ofihe AGM will pe hosted onthe website of the Company. 

6. -Pursuantte Sections 101 and 136 of the Act read with the relevant Aules made thereunder and Regulation 96 ofthe SEBI Listing 

” Regulations read with SEB! circular SEBVHO/GFO/GFD)- Pote2/PiGiR 2023 67 dated? October 2023, companies can serve 

Annual Reports-and other -conimunications thraugh electronic made to those Members who have registered thelr ¢-mail 

addresses enher with the Gompany or with the Depasitory Participants (DPs). Physical copy ofthe Annual Report shell be sent 
to those Members wha request forthe same. 

7, Shareholders are requested to Update thelr Bank account cetells with their Depository Participant, Ifthey are holding the shares 

in Demat and ATA in case they are holding Ihe shares in physical, In this connection, the Company has: already sued 

reminders te all shareholders, who have not updated their PAN and Bank account details of first and sole shareholder of the 
Company. Once egain, ihe members are advised to update the details with ATA. Members holding snares in physical mode.and 
who have not uodeted their email addresses with the Company are requested to Update their email addresses by writing tp the 

Company at kilsugaragmall.cem | mdpide@ryahoo.com along with the.copy of the signed request letter mentianing the Follo 

No., name and address of the member along with scanned copy of the share certificate [iront/back), sel-atested copy of the 
PAN card, and self attested copy af any document (eg.: Orving License, Election Identity Gard, Passparl) in support of the 
address of the member Members holding shares in dematenalised mode are requested to tegisten’ update their email 

addresses with the relevant Depository Participants (DP). For any further clarificaiion, the shareholders may send requests to 

thé Company's investor email id: kilsuganigmall.cany, 

Incase of joint holders, the memberwhose nanve appears as the first holder in the order of names.as per the Register of Members 
ofthe Company will be entitled to vote electronically during the AGM 

2 



ScBacattcnas’ (india) Limited 
NOTES: 

40. 

11, 

12. 

1a. 

14. 

18, 

1b. 

a 

Further, tha Company draws your attention te the notification Issued by SEB! dated June, 2018 and the press release date ard 
December 2018 amending Regulation 40 of the SER! (Listing obligations and: Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2016: 
Pursuantto the amended provision, any requestioreffecting transfer of shares in physical torn shall notbe processed exceptin 
Case of fransmission of frangposition of shares unless the shares are held in damat form. Hencs, the Company Ragisirarand 

Share transfer Agent would not be In position to accept/process the requests for transfer of shares held In physical farm with 
Bffect 01-04-2019. Therefor, the company advises you to take immediate steps for dematerializing your shareholding in the 
‘Company. Holding of shares in demaledlalized form offers lots of benefits like enhanced security, ease of handling, faster 

transfers and eliminating the delheres. in view ofthe above, in order te ensure that you aré-able fo deal in shares hassle-free, 

kinolhy taive Steps for dematerializing the shares at the eariest. 

To prevent fraudulent transactions, Members are advised to-exercise due diligence and notify the Gampany of any change In 
‘edidress or demise of any Memberes soon as possible, Members.are aisc advised to not leave their demat account(s} darnmant 
for jong. Periodic statement of holdings Should be obtained from the concerned Depository Participant (DP) and holdings 
should be-verifed from tinee-to tine, 

The Securities and Exchange Board ef India (SEB) hes mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number (PAN) by 

every Participant in Securities Market, member halding Shares in-electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the PAM 

deteila to-their Depositar Participants with whom they heave demat account Members holding Shares in. physical fonm ean 
subrmitthelr PAN details to ihe Company's Registrar and, Shares Transler Agents, 

Pursuant to.Section 72 of the Gompanies Act, 2013. Member holding shares in physical form are advised to fila nomination in 
the preserbed Farm SH-14 with the Company's ATA. In respect of shares held in alactranie/demat form, the Mambars may 
(please contact thelr respective depostory participantts}. 

SEB! through circular nos. SEBIHO/OLAE/ O14E (ADI /P/CIR 2023/1391 dated July 31, 2023 and SEBIHO/OIAE/OIAE_IAD- 
4{/F) CIR/2023/135 dated August 4, 2023 slang with master circular no. SEBIHOVOAE/ O1KE [AD-1/P/CIR/2029/145, dated 
AugueL 11,2023, hes Introduced guidelines foreanadditional mechanism enabling investors to address their grievances using 
Online Dispute Resolution (OOR) va a commen ODA portal. Pursuant to the aforementioned. clroulars, post exhausiing the 
options to resolve their grievances directly withthe Company's Ragisirar and Share Transter Agant (ATA), a5 well as-through the 

existing SCORES platform, investors can now initisie: dispute resolution through the ODA Portal, SEB) Circulars can be 
‘aocessed.on SEB s webelte atwiww.eebligowin 

Disclosure pursuantte Regulation 36(3) of SEB! (LOAD) Reguiation, 2015 and Secretarial Starcard-2(8-5-2) with respect io the 
Directors seeking re-appolnimentat the fortheoming Annual General Meeting Is. appended to the Notice, 

In-campllance with the aforesald MGA Circular and. SEB! clreular dated December 28, 2022, Nollce of the AGM along with the 

Annual Repert 2023-24 is being sent anty thraugh dactronle mode to those Members whos eral addresses. ore registered 

with the Company at haltps. www. khaltensugerin The Notice can eleo beaccessed from the-website. ofthe Stock Exchange 
Le. wwALevelingindia:com 

The Ragister of Directors’ and Key Managerial Personnel (KMPs) and their shareholding maintained under Section 170 of the 
Companies Act 2013, the Register of Contracts or arrangements In which the Directors-are Interested under Seactian 189 ofthe 

Companies Act, 2013 and-all other documents referred to in the Natlee will be available for inspection in electronic mode. 
Members can send an e-mail requesting for inspection af the Registers, 

The attendance of the members attending the AGM through VG/OAVM will be counted fer the purpose of ascertaining the 

Quorum under Section 10¢ ofthe Companies Art, 2013 

Since the AGM will be held through WO/OAVM, the Route: Map ts not annexed to this-Notios. Voting through Electronic means 
Pursuant te the providion of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20-of the Companies (Management and 
Administration) Rules, 2014 (as amended) and MOA Girculare dated April 8, 2020, April 13,2020 the Gompeny shall provide the 
facility of remote e-voting to its Members in respect of tha business to be transacted at the AGM, Forthis purpose, the Company 
has-entered into-an agreement with Central Depesitory Services (India) Limited (COSL) tor facilitating voting thraugh electronic 
means, a5 the authorized eyoting agency The facility of casting votes bye member using remote-s-voting 2s yell aa the & 
voting on the date of the AGM through VG or GAVM will ba provided by ODSL, 

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify any change in their address including Pin Code; Bank 
Mandete, Income Tax Permanent Account Number, email, mobile number ete, to the Campany's Hegistrar& Shere Transtar 
Agent (ATA) in prescribed Fann |SA —1 and otherforms pursuant to SEB Ciculardated 16th March, 2023. 

Maheshwari Datamatios Pvt. Lid, 

(Unit Khaitan India Limited) 

23, RLM. Mulcherlee Aad, Sth Floor, Kolkata — 700001 

E-mail: mdpldeg@yahoo.cam Wabsite: wwanmdpLin 
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NOTES: fcon) 

18. Members: holding shares. in dematerialized form are requested to furnish the aforesaid information to: their respective 

danositery participants for updation ofthelrrecards. 

14. Members may please note that SEB) vide Ciroular dated 25th January, 2022 has mandated the listed commanies to sue 

Seourites only In dematerlalized form only while processing service requests viz. issue of duplicate securttes cenifloate: claim 

for unclaimed suspense account, renewal / exchange of securities certificate; endorsement, subdhision / splitting of 

20, Membersholding shares insingle name and In physical formare advised to make nomination In respect of their-snarenolding in 

the Company, Request for nomination may be made to the Company or its ATA In Form-SH— 13, Ifa Member desires to opt out 
or.cancel ihe earllernamination-and record airesh nomination, he! she may submitthe same in Form !SR—3 of Fon. sH — i4as 

the case may be. 

21, The SEB has vide Gircularne. MAD /GeP/Ci-06/2008 dated 20tn May, 2009 mandated the submission of PAN by every 

participant inthe security market. Members holding shares-in electronic form ohysical form are theretore, requested to submit 

their PAN to the Company ortne RTA. 

22, SEBI vide its notification dated 24%h January, 2022 has mandated that all requests for transter of secunties including 

transmission and transposition requests shall be processed only In dematerialized fonm: Members-are advised t 

23. ‘Theinstructions of Shareholders for remote e-voting and e-voting during AGM and joining meeting through VC/OAVM 

are as under: 
In compliance with provisions of Section 10¢ of the Companies: Act,2013-and Rute: 20-of the Companies (Management and 

Administration! Fules, 2074 as amended by the Companies (Management and Administration! Rules, 2076 and Reguiation44 
ofthe SER) (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation 2015, the Company is pleased to provide members 

facility to. exercise their right to vote on resolutions proposed ta be considered al the Annual General Meeting (AGM by 
electronic-méans and ihe business may be tansacied through e-voting Services, The facility of casting the votes by the 

members using an electronic voting system ("remote erating") from @ place oiher than venue of the AGM will be provided by 
Central Depostary Services (india) Limited (CDSL} 

ih The femote evellng period commences on Tuesday 24th September 2024 9t9:00 AM and ends on Thursday ath 

September, 2024 st 5:00PM. During this period, mambers.aftne Company, holding shares either in physical torm or 

indematenalizedtonm, as on the cut-oi date of Friday 20th September, 2024 may cast their vote by remote e-Vaiing. 

The famote e-Voting module shall be disabled by COSL for vating thereafter Onee the vote on a resolution is cast by 

ihe member, the member shall not be allowed to change it subsequently. 

ti) Pursuant io SES! Clreewlar Mo, SEBYHO/CFO/CMD/GIR/P2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of 

Securities and Exchange Board of india (Listing Obligations and Descinsure Requirements! Regutations, 2015; 

listed entities are required to provide remote e-voting facility to tts shareholders, In respect of all shareholders’ 

resolutions. However, l}has bean obseived thal the parlic!pation by the public non-institutional shareholders/retall 

sharehcldersis ata negigibie teyel. 

Currently, (here are mullipte e-voting servies providers (ESPs) providing e-voting faclilty ta listed entitles In India, This 

necessitates registration on yerigus ESPs and maintenance of mutiple user IDs and passwords by the 

snareholders; 

In order to increase the efficienoy of the voting process, pursuant to public consultation, thas been decided to 

enable ¢-yoting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single jagin credential, through thelr demat 

accouniswebsites of Depesitories/Panicipants. Demat account heldecs would be-able-to cast their vote without 

having fo recister-again with the ESPs, thereby, not only facilitating seamless authentication but also enhancing 

ease and convenience of parilcipating in e-valing process. 

(iii) In terms. of SEB! circular no, SEBYHONCFO/CMDGIR/P/ana0/242 dated December 8, 2020 on. 2-Voting facility 

provided by Listed Companies, Individual shareholders holding securities in cemat-mode are alowed to vole 

through their damat account maintained with Depositories and Depository Participants, Shareholders are advised 

ta ypdete their mobile numi-er anc email id inthelr dema|t accounts in order ta access e-Vating tacility, 

Pursuant to-above-said SEBI Circular, Login method for o-Veting and ioining virtual meetings for Individual 

shareholders holding securities in Demat mode is given below: 



Sclacatteray’ (india) Limited 

Type of shareholders Login Method 

individual Shareholders 
holding securities in Demat 
mode with COSL 

y 

4) 

4) 

Users who have opted for CDOSL Easi/Easiest facility, can login through their existing user 
Id and password. Option will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any 
further authentication, The URL for agers to login to EastEasiest 
https://web.cdslindia.com/myeas!/hameogin or visit wuae.cesiindia.cam and ollek on 
Login com and select New System Myeas! 

After sucedssful login tha Easi/Easiast user will be able to See the é-Volling Manu. On 
dlicking the voting menu, the user will be able te-se6 his/her holdings along with links 

of Iie respective @-Votlng s service provider Le, COSLNSDLREARVY/LINK as per 
Information provided by lssuer/‘Company. Additionally, we are providing links to e-voting 

Service Providers, oo that the user can vist tha Voting service pravider's site dinenthy. 

ifthe user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, optian to register ls avaliable at 
https: Wweb-odelindia.com,mysasl/Aegistration /Easi Registration 

Abtematively, the user can directly aocess eVating page by providing Demat Aecount 

Numberand PAN Ne, from e-Voting link available on wwew.cdsllndia.com hame page. 

The system will authenticate the user by sending OPT on registered Moble'& Emall as 

recorded in the Demat 4ccount, After successtul authentication, user will be able to see 

the 2-Voting option Where the votlig 1s in progress and also able to directly access the 

system of afl e-Votlng Service Provider. 

Individual Sharahoiders 
holding securities in Demat 
mode with NSDL 

i) 

3} 

Hyou are registered for NSDL IdeAS tacility, visit the e-service website of NSDL. Open 
web browser by typing the following WAL htips:!/e-services-nedi.com elther ona 

Personal Computer or on a mobile. One the home page of eServices fs launched, Gilok 
on the "Beneficial Qwner" leon under "Login® which is availatde under 1DeAS' section. ‘A 

new screen will open. You will haveto enter your User |D and Password, After suiccesstul 
authentication, you will beable to see e-Vollng service. Click:on “Access to e-voting" 
under Voting sendees and you will beable to see eVoting page: Click on company 
name ore Voting service provider name and you will be re-directed to eVoting service 
provider website for casting your vote during the remote Voting period or folning virtual 
meeting & voting during the meeting. 

Hihe user ls not registered for IDsAS e-Sendoes, option te teglater ls avallable at 
httpa:/eservices.nedi.com Sslect “Aegister Online for De4S" Portal-or click at 
https: (esenices.necLcom/Secus Web/ldeasD|rectheg.|sp 

Visitthe e-Vatlng website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the follawing URL. 
hitos: Wwwwevotingwnnd|.com jelher on a Personal Computer oron a mobile, Gnoe the 
home page of Voting system Is launched. Click on the Icon “Login” which is avallable 
under ‘SharehotderiMember-section. Ainew screen will open. You will have to enter your 

User ID (Le. your sicteen digit Demat account number hold with NSDL), Password /OPT 
and a Verification Code as shown.on the screen, After successful auihentication, yau will 

be redirected to NSDL Depository site whereln you can see e-Voting page. Click on 
COMpAny name or é-Voting service provider name and you will be redirected to: e-Joting 

‘sendce provider website far casting your vote during the remote &Votlng perod or 
Joining virtual meeting & voting during the meating 

individual Shareholders 
(holding securities In Damat 
mode) login through their 

Depository Participants 

You can-aisa login using the fogin cradantiais-of your Demataccount through your 
Depository Participant registered with NEDL/COSL for e-Voting facility, After Successful 
login, you willbe abie ib cee-s-Voting option. Ones you click on e-Vating option, you wil 

be redirected to NSDL/COSL Depository site after successful authentication, whereln you 
can see 6Voling taalure: Glick on company name of e-Voting sarice provider name and 

you will be radiracted to eValing service provider website for casting your vote during 
the remote Voting period of joining: virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. 
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NOTES: (cant) 

Important note: Members who are unable to retrieve User ID! Password are advised ta use Forget User ID and forget Passivore option 

avallable at above mentioned website. 

Helpdesk for Individual Shareholders holding securities In Demat mode for any technical issues related to login through 
Depository lc. COSLand NSDL 

Login type Helpdesk details 

indhidual Shareholders halding Menibers-facing any technical Issue in fegin can contact COSL belpdesk 
secutities in Demat mode with GOSBL eyotina@ecdslindia.com or contact al toll freane, 1800 22 55 39 

Members facing any technical issue in login can contact NSDL belodesk by 
individual Shareholders halding sending a request atevocting @nsdi.co.in or call aftoll fFeeno: 1800 1020 S00 .and 

securities In Demat mode with NSOL 1800 22 44°30 

Login method for -/oting and joining virtual meeting forshareholders other than individual shareholders holding In Gematform.& physical 
shareholders 

(t)) Shareholders who have already vate prlar to thé meeting date would not be entitied te vote through évotng provided during 

VG/OEVM 

(} Theshareholders should log onto the evating website viw.evotingindia.cam 

(9 Cleon "Shareholders" modules te-cast your yates 

(i Now Enteryour User ID. 

For Members holding shares in 
Detail For Members holding shares in Demat Form Physical Fi 

For MSDL: 8 Character OP ID followed by @ Digits Gient ID fer | Folio Number registered. with the 

Form User 1D CDSL: 16 digits baneficiary ID Caripany 

fv) Thementerthe Captcha Code as displayed and Gick on-Login: 

fd) Dyouare holding shares in Demat Porn and had loggedan te wy evollngindla tam and vote onan aariier vallnaafary 

tl) Ihyou.are a firsttime user follow the steps given below: 

Dotalls For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form other than Individual and Physical Form 

Enter your 10 digit aloha numeric PAN issued by income Tax Department 

(Apolicabte for both Demat shareholder as weil as physical shareholders}, 

PAN ® Shareholders who have not updated thelr PAN with the Comaany/Depository Participant are-requested to 

lise the SedUerce number which ts mentionad:in the 8-mall communication in the PAN field sent'by 

Company/ATA of contact GompanyiATA 

Dividend Enter the Dividend Bank Detalis or Date of Birth as recorded in your Demat account or in the Campany 

Bank fecords for the said Demat account of folic In DD/MM YY fonmai order t login, 

Details * |f both the detalls are not recorded with the Depository ar Gampany, please enter the member d/foll 
of DOB number In the Cividencl Bank detalis feild as mentioned in instruction (Vv) 

(vii) 4htierentanng these details appropriately, cick on" SUBMIT tab 

{it} Members holding shares in physical {ram will (hen reach directly to ihe Company sélection screen. However, shares in damal for 

Will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password 

field. Kindly fote that thie password to be alse eed by the demat holders tor voting for Resolution of any ether company on which 

they are eligible.to Vote, provided that: Company opts fer e-voting through COSL platiorm. It is. strongly recommended not to share 

Vour passivord with anyother person and take utmost care to Keep your password confidential. 

{X}  ForMembers holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the Resolutions contained In this Notice. 

ix} iickonthe relevant Company Name le, Khaitan (india) Limited on which youchoose to vote. 

fd) On the vating page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and: against the same, the option "YES/NO" for voting. Setect the 

aplion YES or NO as desired, The YES implbes that you assent to the Resolution and option Mo implies that you dissent to the 
Resolution. 
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(ail) Click onthe "RESOLUTION FILE LINK" Hyou wish the enter Resclution. 

iv) After-selecting the Resolution, you have decided to vote, cfickon “SUBMIT”, 4 confirmation box will be displayed, Ifyou wish to 

confinn yourvote, clickon "OK", else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL and accordingly modify your vote. 

te} Once you" CONFIRM’ your vote.on the Resolution, you will notbe allowed to modify yourvate, 

tai) You canaise take pointofine vote cast by clicking on “Click hace toprint’ option onthe vating page. 

bv) Ha dematncenount holder has forgotten the login password, then Enter the User ID and the Image verification code and olick on 

Forgot Password & enter the details.as prompted by the system. 

Deviiif you are registered for CDSL's EASWEASIEST e-service, you can login at hit ww.cdslindia.cam from Login -MYeas! using: your 

login credentials. Once you successiully lag-Into COSL's EASWEASIEST e-service, click on e-Voling option and proceed directly ta 
cast your vote electronically. 

(xix). Shareholders can.also cast thelr vote using COSLs mobile app m-vating available for android based mobiles. The m-voting app.can 
be downloaded from Google Play store, [Phone and windows phone users can download the app from the App Store and the 
Windows Phone Stores respectively. 

(eo) Institutional shareholders {i.¢. otherthan Individuals HUF, MAI ete.) and Custodians are required to log on to werewevoting India.com 

and ragister themselves Inthe "Camorates" modula. 

(a) A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and signature of the entity should be emalled to 
helpdesk. .evoting@cdslindia.cam 

Qo) After receiving the login-detais, a Compliance User should be created Using the admin login and password. The Compliance 

User would beable ta link the accountis) torwhich they wish to-vote an, The list otaccaunts linked In the login should be malled 

to healpdask.evoting@cdsiindla.com andon approval ofthe accounts they would be able to cast thalr vote, 

({c} = Aseanned copy of ihe Board Resolution and Power of Attomey (POA) which they Issued in favour of the Custodian, If any, 
should be uploaded in PDF formatin the systemtfor the scrutinizer to venty the same. 

(cd) Attematively Non Individual shareholders are required to send the relevant Board Resolution) Authority letter ete. together with 
attested specimen signature of the duly authornzed signatory who are aunhorized to vote, to the Scnutinizer 

famithmehoraraggmeal.com! and to the ATA (mapkicityahoocom), ttthey havevete trom individual tab &.not uploaded same 
Inthe COSL e-voting system for the sorutinizerto verity ine same, 

bod) Ifyou have-any queries or issues regarding attending AGM& e-voting System, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions 

(FAGQs") and e-voting manual avaliable at wew.evolingindia.com, under help section of write an email to helpdesk 
evatingipcdslindia.cam 

Godt) All grievances connected with the facility for vaaing by electronic means may be addressed to Manger, (CDSL) Central Depository 

Service (india) Limited, A Wing, 26ih Floor Marathon Futures, Matatial Mill Compounds, NM Joshi Marg. Lower Perel (Enst}, 
Mumbel—400013 or sentan e-mail to helpdesk. evotingi@hedsiindia.com or call on O22-25060842143 

Process for those shareholders whose email addresses are notregistered with the depositories for obialning login credentlals for e-voting 
for the resolutions proposed in this Notice: 

4. For Physical sherehoiders! Members are requested to directly register their email id / uodete their PAM by visiting the link of the 
Company's Registrar and Shere Trenster Agent M's, Maheshwer Datamatics Pyt Lides given below: 

Link foremail registration —hitps://mdpl.in! For Demat shareholders: Aegister/update through respectrve Depository Participants 
(DP) (Any such updating effected by the DPs vill automatically reflectinthe Company's subsequent records} 

24, Instructions for shareholders attending the AGM through VC/OAVM ere as under: 

1. Shereholders will be provided with a facility to attend the AGM through VC/OAVM through the COSL e-Voting system, 
Shareholders may access the same at hitps://evotaingindis.com: under shareholders/members login by using the remote e- 
voting credentials. The link for VC/OAVM will be aveilebie in. shareholder/members.togin where the EVSNof Company will be 

displayed. 
2. Shereholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through Laptops/Desktop/-Peds for better experience, 

3. Further, shareholders will be required to alow Camera and use intemetl with a goad speed to avoid disturbance during the 

meeting. 

4. Pleage note that Participants connecting from Mobile Devices ar Tabtets or through Laptop cannecting vie Mobile Hotspot may 

experience Audio Video boss fluctuation in their meepective network, tt therefore recommended to vee Stable Wi-Fi or Leh 
Connection to mitigate any kind ofaforesaid glitches. 

5. The Members can join the AGM through VO/OAVM mode 15 minutes: beforesand afier the scheduled ime of the 
commencement of the Meeting by fallowing the procedure mentioned in the Notice. This will not include large Shareholders 
(Shareholders holding 2%-or more shareholding), Promoters, Institutions! investors: Director, Key Managerial Personnel, the 
Chairpersons of the Audit Committee. Nomination and Remuneration Committee and Siakeholders Relationship Committee. 
Auditors etc: who are allowed to-attend the AGM without restriction on accountoffret come firsteene basis, 
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NOTES: cont) 

5, The embers can join the AGM through Wo/OAVM mode 15 minutes before and after ihe scheduled time of the commencement 

of the Meeting by Tollewing the:procedure mentioned in the Notice. This will not inchide large Shareholders (Shareholders holding 

235. ar more shareholding}, Promoters, Institutional investors, Director, Key Manageral Personnel, the Chairpersons of the Audit 

Cammittes. Nomination and Remuneration Sommittes and Stakeholders Aelafionship Cammilies. Auditors eic. who ere allowed 

to attend the AGM without! restriction on acoount of first come first sens basis. 

25. Instructions for shareholders for e-voting during the AGM areas under: 

1) 

2) 

3) 

4) 
5} 

8) 

7) 

3) 

10) 

The procedure fore-yating on the day of the AGM Is same asthe instructions mentioned above for Remote voting 

The link for VOSO4VM to attend meeting will be avaiable where the EVSN of Company will be dismlayedattersuccesstul loginias 

perthe instructions mentoned above tor Remoie e-voting 

Shareholders who have yoted through Remote e-voting will be eligible te-attend the meeting. However, they yill notbe eligible 
toveleatihe AGM 

Sharehalders are encouraged ta joln the Mesting through Laptops; |+Pads for betier experience. 

Further shareholders will be required to aiow Gamera and use Intemet with a Good speed ta avoid any disturbance curing the 

meeting. 

Pisase note that Participants Gannecting from Mobile Deviows or Tablets or through Laptop connecting via Mobile Hotspot may 

experience Audio/Video lass due to fluctuation intheir respective network. Its therefore recommended to use Stable WVi-Fi or 

LAN Gonmection te mitigate any kind ofaforesald glitches.. 

Shareholders who would like to express their ews/ask questions during the mesting may register themselves.as.aspeaker by 
Sending thelr request In advance al least 15 days prior to meeting mentioning thal name. Damat account number /ollo 

number, email is, mobile number at (company email id}, Thee shareholders who.do not wish to speak during the AGM but have 

Queries may send thelr queries in advance 15 days prior to mesting mentioning thalr name, Perniat account numbertalio 

number, email id, mobile numberat (compeny email id), These queries will be replied in by the company suitably by email, 

Those shareholders who have registered themselves asa speaker will only be alowed to express their views/ask questions 
during the meeting. 

Only those shareholders, who are prasent in the AGM through VG/OAVM facility and have not cast their vote on tha Resolution 
thravah remote a-Voting and are ciherwise net barred fram doling so, shall be eligible te vote through 6-veting system avakable 

during the AGM,, 

ifany Votes are cast by the shareholders through the e-voting avalable during the AGM and if the same.shareholders have not 

participated in the meeting through VG/OAVM facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders shall be considered invalid as 
the facility of d-voting during the mesting is available only to the shareholders attending the meeting. 

26 Genoral Guidelines for Shareholders: 

a) 

b) 

The remote e-voting period commentes on Tucsday 24th September, 2024 at 9:00 AM and ends on Thursday 26th 

September, 2024 at 5:00 PM. A person whose name is recorded in the register of members or in the register af beneficial 

owners maintained bythe depositories as onthe cut of date only shall be entitied te-availthe facility of remote e-yotng as well as 
voting inthe general meeting, The-remote e-voting module shall be bocked by COSL for e-vobng thereafter, once the vote ona 

resolution is east by the shareholder, the shareholder shall not be allowed te change itsubsequently. 

After sanding the notice through small, any person who acquires shares of the Company and becomes member of the 
Company as onthe cut-off date le Friday 20th September, 2024 may obtain the login (G.and password by-sending an-email to 

mdpideahyahod.com or helpdesk evoting@cdslindia. com ay mentioning thelr Folic No,/DP ID Mo, However, Ifyou ere already 

registered with COSL tor remote e-voting, then you can ueeyour existing user IDand password forcesting your vote. 

The voting rights ofa member shall be in proportion in theirshares inthe paid-up equity share capital-of ine Company as.onthe 

cutofie,, Friday 20th September, 2024 

fir, Amit Ghoraria, Proprietor Mis—Amit Ghorana & Go., Chartered Accountants, (Membership No.O68838) Kolkata, has been 

appointed as Scrutinizer to sorulinize the voting process (electronically or otherwise) natal and transparent manner, 

The Scrutinizer shall, Immediately after the conclusion of yating inthe Annual General Meeting held through VC/OAVM, will first 
count the votes cast inthe mesting, and thereatter unbiock the votes cast thraugh remote e-voting in the presence of atleast 
two witnesses notin the employment of the Company and shall mekeno later than two days alter the conclusian ofthe AGM, a 

consolidate serutinizers reoort of (ne total votes cast in favour oragainst, # any, tothe Chairperson or persen authorised by him 

in writing, who shall countersign ihe same and dactare the result of thevoting torthwith. 

The results declared alongwith the Sorutinizers Report shall be placed onthe Company's website www. khattansugarin weDsite 

oDCDSL www.evotingindia.com and algo fonwerd the same to The National Steck Exchange af India Limited and BSE Limited 
simultaneously, where the Company's shares are listed: 
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Details of Directors proposed tobe appointed!re-appointed at the Annual General Meeting: 

Name of Director SUNAY KRISHNA KHAITAN 

Date of Binh (Age In years) 09-12-1991 (a2 yrs.) 

Pate of Appointment 12-11-2016 

Expertise in-specifio functional area: 6 years In Marketing of Fans 

(Experience In year) and Electrical appliances. 

Qualification BSC (Economics & Finance} 

shareholding in the Gompany felther 

porsonally or an beneficial basis) isi 

List of other Publie Limited Khaitan Lefin Limited 
Companies in which Directorship held Bolsar Electricals and Appliances: Limited 

Chairman! Member of the Committees 

of the Board across all Public 

Companies in whieh he isa Director 

AIL. 

Chairman! Member of the Committees 
Audi Gommittes (Member) 

of the Board of the Company ponnkse Merten 

Disclosure of relationships between 

Directors Inter-te and othar Key BLA, 

Managerial Personnel 

Tanms and Conditions of 

appolntiment' re-appointment 

Re-sppointed as a whole time diractar 
ofthe Gompany tora penod of 3 years 
commencing October 1, 2023, 

Remuneration sought to be paid; Details aa per Annecure V of the 
last cravwn Director Report 

j ing? attend Number of Board Meatings atiended a. nos.of BM, 
during the year 
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DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBER 

TO THE MEMBERS 

‘Your Directors present iheir 86th Annual Report together with the Audited Accounts tor the year ended 31st March, 2024. 

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL AKGHLIGHT 
Risin Lacs 

FINANCLAL RESULTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 315T MARCH 2023-2024 202-2023 

sales & Operating Incame 5836.39 5aa5 56 

Profit / (Loss) before lnterest & Ogareciatian 471.27 B9.82 

Armorization and Taxation 0.00 0.00 

Interest | Finance Gast -287.97 ~244.83 

Profit / (Loss) before Depreciation and Taxation 183.30 264.99 

Depreciation 49.90 SF A2 

Profit / (Loss) before Taxation 134.00 67.87 

Taxalion 6.00 6.00 

Profit (' (Loss) for the year from continuing operations 134.00 67.87 

Profit‘ (Loss) from discontinued operations 0,00 0.00 

Profit for the year 134,00 Teta 

Other Comprehensive Income / (Loss) rae 46.67 

Total Comprehensive Income / (Loss) 161.27 114.55 

STATEMENT OF RETAINED EARNINGS 

At the beginning of the year 4063.62 985.75 

Add: Profit forthe Year 134.00 67.87 

Atthe end of year 1497.62 1083.62 _| 

Indian Accounting Standards 

The Financial Statements are oreparad in accordance with the Incha Accounting Standards (Ind 43) under the cost convention on acerual 

bass. The ministry of corporate affairs (MCA), vide-is notification In the official gazette dated February 16, 2075 notified the Indian 

Accounting Standards (Ind AS) applicable to certain lasses of companies, ind AS sapaicablatrom tet April 2017, 

Share Capital 

There vas ho change in the Share Capital as or 3 et March, 2024 

Dividend and Transfarte Reserve 

The Board considered |t prudent (with aview te conserve the resources for the company’s growin and expansions) notte recemmand 

payment ofany dividend an the Equity shares for the financial year under review, Further Board ofthe company has dechted notte transfer 

any sLimte reserve. 

Economic Climate and our Performance 

As per the final estimate of National Statistical Offices, the GDP ol India has grown by 8.2% In India fer FY 2024, which [fs the highest among 
major advanced and emerging market economies. This rebound In growth can be attributed to sound macroeconomic fundamentals, 

moderation of inflatianary pressure and prudent public pollcles, Further, the easing of supplyside bothenecks and the thrust an 
Infrastuctural capital expenditure have enabled econamile growih. 

(Going forward, India is expected ta emerge as the third largest economy across the world by forttying the finanelal system, promoting 
responsible innovation and driving Inclusive growih as parthe government's key proorities.5 The emphasis will remain on prioritising canital 

expenditure, Infrastructure Improvement, sustainable Iveilhood practices and the promotion of arean energy, The Reserve Bank of India 
(AB) will continue te focus on ensuring durabie orice stability and driving modium-term debt sustainability; thereby, further strengthening 

the financial sector's resillence and spurring new growth opportunities. 

Fans are probably ane of the few Inventions that have not gone out of fashion even after 125 years of existence. To keep pace with the 

changing times, manufacturers have focused on improving design, efficiency, and look. Electric fan, which features In the high-narket 

penetration product category, fs an ten of neqessity and mass consumption, The celling fan market |n Indlals anticipated to achieve a 

milestone of 50.9 million units by 2042. 7 6. India electric fans have mostly four very commen types celling fang, table Tans, Pedestal fans, 

and Wallfans. During the forecasted years the market ls golng ta Increase In niche categories [Ike premium fans, Energy-efficiant fans, and 

customized or decorative fans. Therelore we look forward to increase our share in the market. 
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Marketing division of the company markets electrical products ikefan, cooler, pumps ete. We report that the marketing division has 

contributed significantly to tumaver ef the company. We believe that the marketing division would perform better In the time to come and 
shall contribute significantly Inprofitabllty alsa. 

During the year 2023-2024 alsa, company cauld hot start operation of fhe sugar mill (Seasonal) mainly dueto pavelty of fund to-finance the 

working capital requirementand other directand operationexpenses. 

Credit Rating 

Ne credit rating during the financial yaarunder review was recelved by the company 

Cash Flow Analysis 

In conformity atthe provision of Regulation 34 ofthe SEI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015, the cash 

flow statement for the year anded 31.03.2024 Is included In tha financial accounts. 

Significant Events after Balance Sheet Dato 

There has been ne-significant event after Balance Sheet Date. 

Particulars of Loans, Guarantees or investment 

Reference|s made to financial statements for pans to bodies corporate arid far guarantees. provided by ihe company. As regards detalisaf 

Investments In bodlas corporate, the same are given Inthe financial statements. 

Cortification from Auditors in Relation to Corporate Governance 

The Report on Corporate Governance a3 stipulated In the Listing Regulations forme part ot Annual Report. The requisite certificate trom 

Mis. K.C, Bhattacheree'& Paul, Chartered Accountants, confining compliance with the conditions of Corporate Govemance as stipulated 

under the Listing Regulations is annexed hereto Anrexuretothis Report. 

Corporate Governance 

Ag per SEB| (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2016 annexed to this is Auditors’ Certification on Corporate 

Governance forming partotthe Annual Report 

Detalls Inrespect of Frauds reported by Auditors under section 143(12) 

During the yearunder review, there were no frauds reported by the auditors to the Audit Committes orthe Board under section 148/12) of 

the Companies Act, 2043. Further, no fraud has been reported during the audit conducted by the Statutory Auditor, and Secretarial 
Auditors ofthe Company. 

Management Discussion and analysis 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report for the under review as-stipulate under SEB! (Listing and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulations, 2016 tsattacned. 

Annual Returm gover 

Pursuant toSeetion 92/3) read with Section 134(3}/a) of the Act, the draft Annual Return as on Stet March, 2024 ts hosted on the 
Company's website |e, http; www khaltansugarini 

Public Deposits 

The Gompany hes notaccepted any deposit from public falling within the ambit of section 73 of the Companies Act, 2013-and the 

Company's (Acceptance of Deposit) Aules, 2044 

Particulars of Loan. and Guarantee and Investment 

Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investments covered under the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given inthe 

notes in tne Financial Statement and hence nti repeated in directorarepart 

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) 

The Company bas not developed and implemented any Corporate Sacial Responsibility initiatives as the said provisions are: net 

applicsble ta the Company, 

Whistle Blower Policy 

The Gompany has 6 Whistie Diower policy which is hosted on its website wrew.kheitensugerin 

Directors 

There.ere 6 Direstorson Board outofwhich 6 are Independent Director, and tis Whole Time Director, 

There has been no change in Direciorship dunngthe year 2023-20244 exceotthe following: 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT: (cont) 

Mr. Ajay Ablawat (DIN: 01227343) was appointed as Additional Independent Non-Executive Director with effect from 21-10-2022 in Board 

Meeting and ratification in AGM to be held on 29.09.2023. Mr Ajey Ablawatas a candidate far the office of a director ofthe Company, be anc 
is hereby appointed as an Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company up to financial year 2027 ond isnot liable-to retire by 

rotation, 

i Board and Committees Evaluation 

Pursuant to the provision efthe Company Act, 2013 and -SEBI (Listing Opligations and Disclosure Requirements Regulation, 

2076 the Board fas carled ouLannual perfonmnance evaluation of its own performance, the directors Individually as well as 

working ofits Audit Committee, the Nomination & Remuneration and Sharehoiders: Aelationship GCammittee in the Boarct 

Meeting dated 12-02-2024, 

The Independent Directors carried out annual performance evaluation of the Chalmperson, the Non4ndependent Directors. and 

the Board a5 a whole in the separaie meeting held on 12-02-2024 of the Independent Directors taking into account the views of 

the Executive Directors and other Non-Executive Directars. 

The performance of the Board, its Committees and each Board Member individually was evaluated by the Board based on the 

policy on performance evaluation specified by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee. The method of evaluation has 

been explained in Corporate Governance Report. 

i) Boardand Committees Meetings 

The details of meeting of Board and tts various commtteas are given in Corporate Governance Report farming pant of repart: 

(vt Disqualification of Directors 

None ofthe Directors are disqualified under section 164(2) ofthe Companies Act, 2013 

(4 independent Directors Declaration 

All the Independent Directors have given their déclaration canfirming that they meat the criteria of Independence in terms af 

section 149(6) of the Gampanies Act, 2013, The independent Directors have complied with the Code for Independent 
Directors prescribed in Schedivle fy to the Act. The indspendant Directors have also compiled witha Gode of Conduct for 
Directors and Senior Management Personnel, 

(vi) Gommisaion 

Executive Director and Whole time Director were notin receipt of any commission trom the company. Executive Director and 
Whole time Director were notin receipt otany commission imam subsidiary (there inno subsidiary) 

Koy Management Personnel 

() Appointment 

fy Mr. Sunray Krishna Khaitan, Executive Director, was appointed as Chie Financial Offiear (CFO) with effect from -30-05- 

2029.due to resignation of Mn Swapan Kumar Das who resigned with ettect from 01-24-2023 He |s-a.qualified BSC 

(Economics & Finance! Morethan 7 Years of Experience in Marketing of Fang and Appliances, Ha ls also executive 

director of the company and is ihe member of audit: committes. He has gained vatt experience in preparation and 

finafization-of accounts and other day to day operational matter during his tanor with the company. He resigned wet 

21.07 2823 dueto preoccupation with otter aftalrs of the company. 

i) Mr Sumit Pasar was appointed as Chief Financial Officer (CFO) with affect from 21-07-2023 due to recignation of Mr, 
Sunay Krishna Khaitan who resigned with efiset trom 21-07-2023. Hei¢a Greduatein Gommerce-and has moneihan two 

décades of Expariencein Anance, Account and Administration Indusiries including consumerdurables, 

ii} Mr Ankit Sugandh was appointed as Company Secretary and Compliance Officer with-effect from 21-07-2023 due to. 

rasignation of- Mr. Pradio Halder wh resigned with effect from 14-05-2023. Ha is Member of The Insitute of Company 

Secretaries of india. 

WW) Que-to Resignation of Me Ankit Sugandh, Company Secretary and Compllance Officer of the company, Mr. Mr. Chandra 

Nath Banerjed (FCS 9855) has been appdinted.as the Company Secretary and Compliance Officer of (ha Company with 

effect fromm 10th August, 2024. Mr. Chandra Nath Banerjee ls a commerce Graduate. He is. Fellow Member of the 

Institute: of Company Secretaries of india:having membership number as F989. He nas vast experience In accounts 

and company law matters of morethan 30 years. 

Fd 
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{i} Resignation 
fh Mi Swapan Kumar Das-resigned on22-03-2023 es Chief Financial Officer (GPO) with etiect from 01-04-2023 which was taken 

on record atthe meéting held on 90-06-2023, The Board noted Its appreclaiton for his guidance during his tenure-as Chief 
Financial Officer (OF OQ). 

i) |) Mr, Pradip Halder resigned on 26-04-2023 as Gampany Secretary & Compliance Officer with effect fram 14-05-2023 which 
wes ialen on record aithe meeting held on 40-06-2023. The Boerd noted its apgreciation for his guidance during histenure 
Bs Company Secretary & Compliance Officer 

ji) = Mr. Suney Krishna Khaitanresigned as Ghist Financial Officer (CFO) with effect tram 21-07-2023 which was takenonrecard 
al the meeting held on 21-07-2023. The Board noted its appreciation for his guidance during his tenure as Chief Financial: 
Officer (GF). 

iv) Mir, Ankit Sugandh resigned with effect fram 08-07-2024 es Company Secretary & Gompliance Officer which was taken on 
record atthe meeting held on 10-08-2024. The Board noted its appreciation for his guidance during his tenure at Company 
Secretary & Comphance Officar, 

Director's retirement by rotation 

Mr Sunay Krishna Khaitan, Whole-time. Director designated 2s Executive Chalitian (DIN TS85070) would retin by rotation and being 
eligible, otters themselves for re-eppolnimert. 

Conservation of Energy, Technology Absorption and Foreign Exohange Earning & outga. 

Thea Information on Conservation of anergy, technology absortian and foraign exchange aamligs and autgo stipulated Under section 

124(3}(m) af the Companies Act, 2012 read with Rule 8 ofthe Companies (Account) Rule 2014 is annexed as Annexure -| 

Information of Employees 

Provision. of Section 197 of the Companies 4c, 2073 read with Rules 5{2) and (3) of Companies (Appoitiment and Remuneration of 
Managerial Personnel) rules, 2074 are not applicable as no-employee or director of the Gampany was receipt of such remuneration as 
prescribed underthe sald rules, . 

The Company belleves that Its employees are a vital resource Inthe current businass environment. The Company i enjoying good and 
sonogentel industrial relations atall the Divisian of the Company. The prescnbed information of the employees required unter section 
1S4(3}(q) read with Auils Sof the Companies (A ppoltiment and Ramunerstion af Managerlal Parsorinel) Fules 2014 bs attached here with 

as Annexure=[ 

Establishment of Vigil Mechanism Polley 

Te-ansure thatthe activities of the Company and its employeds are conducted in 4 fairand transparent manner by adopting high standards 

of professionalism, honesty, integrity, the company has adopted @ vigil mechanism policy. This. policy is explained in Corporate 
Governance ard also posted on Companys Website www. khaifangugarin 

Development and Implementation of Alsk Management Policy 

The Company has adopted isk management policy which covers assessment of various risk impacting the business of the campany. The 

policy covers framework to identify, evaluate and mitigate business risk. The Risk Management Policy has been uploaded on the website 
ofthe Company wy. khaitansugerin 

Remuneration Policy 

The Board has:on ine recommendations of Nomination & Remuneration Gommities framed 8 palicy‘of selection | appaintriantof Director, 
Senior Management Personal and thelr remuneration polley fs stated In Corporate Governance Report, 

Directors’ Report Responsibility Statement 

Directors responsiblity statement pursuantto secon 134(3) (o) ofthe Companies Act, 201315 attached as Annexure=lil 

Business Responsibility Reparting (BAR) 

BRA le notapplicable on the company. 

Related Party Transactions 

All Transactions entered into with related partes as defined under the Companies Act, 2013 and Requiation 23 to the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and Discinsure Requirements) Regulation 2015, during the financial year were in the ordinary course of businese.and on ans 
bength basis. All related party transactions are placed before the audit Gommittes and also the Board-for approval. Particulars of contracts 

or arrangement with related parties refered to Insub section Gi of Section 68 have been in the prescribed fon AOC-2 a5 Annexure—lV 

Change inthe nature of business 

There has been no change Inthe nature of business ofthe Company duringthe yeerunderreview, 

ie 
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT: (cont) 
Disclosure Requirements For Certain Types Of Agreements Binding Listed Enlites Under Requiation 30A4(2) of Listing 

Regulations 

Thereare no agreements entered inte by the snareholders, promoters; promoter group eniities, related parties, directors, key manageria 
personnel, employees of ins Company, among themselves or with the Company or witha third party, solely or jointly, which, alter directly 

or Indirectly or potentially or whose purpose and effects to, impactthe management of contrel. of ihe Gompany or impose any restriction 
Or create any liability upon the and there are no material departures. 

Change inthe nature of business 

There hee been na change inthe nature of business of the Company during the yeer under review, 

Proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 2016 

Thare is no proceeding pending under the Insolvency and Bankruptcy Code, 20176 during the year under review. 

Onetime settlement with any Bank of Financial Institution 

There was no.insianes of onetime settlement with any Bank or Financial |nstituthon during the year under review, 

Statutory Auditors 

Auditors and Audit Report 

M/s. KC, Bhattacherjee A Paul, Charterad Accountants, (Reg, No. 3090266) have been appointed as the Statutory Auditers of the 
Company al the Bard Annval General Meeting hed on 30th September, 2020fora period of 5 years, tillBSth Annual General Meeting 

The Board has duly examined the Statutory 4uditor's Report to Financial Statement Theteply of themanagementin regard to qualification 

in the auditor's report is as follows:- 
I. Sugar division is-one of the-core business divisions of the Company, The management is-of the view theat-as soor: as the 

requirament of working capital needed for running the operations ic arranged the operation shall be resumed. Further the 
management is hopeful that in future because of various measures envisaged the posiion -expected to improve. Therelore 

for the time being the management has not considered the business of Sugar Division as discontinued operation and is 
considered as a galing concern. 

Foes Pald to Auditors 
Total fees paid by the Company, to tie auditors during the-year 2022-2023 and 2023-2024 

Auditors’ Remuneration Year ended March 31, 2024 (As. Year énded (March 31, 2023 (Rs.) 

AS: bipelitars: 2,50,000. 00 200,000.00 

For Tax Aud! 62,500.00 50,000.00. 

‘For other Services 187,600.00 1 50,000.00 

Secretarial Auditor 

Secretarial Auditand Annual Certification 

Pursuant te the provisians of Section 204 ofthe Companies Act,2072 and Tha Companies (Appoinimentand Ramuneration of Managerial 

Personnel} Rules. 2074, C5 Alpane Sethia (ACS No. 15758, GP No: 5099, peer Review No_ 2650/2022) a Company Secretary-in-Practica, 
Was apoointed fo undertake the Secretarial Audit The Report of tne Secretarial Aucitor-along with the certificate of non-disqualification of 

Directors for the year ended March 31, 2024 is annexed harewillhas Annexure—VI 

The qualifications therein are self-explanatory and managements response ls also covered therein, 

Internal Auditors 

Your Gampany’s in hou internal audit departmant carries aut intamal audits across all location ofthe county. Their objective is io assess 
the skistence, adequacy énd operation of financial and operating controls setup by the Company and to’ ensure compliance with the 

Companies Act, 2013, SEB! (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Requilations, 2015 and corporais policies, internal Auditors 

make presentations to-the Audit Gommittes on their Audit Reports are reviewed by the Audit Committee. 

Cost Auditors 

#5 sugar mill could nol startoperation during the year, cost auditwas noteonducted. 

Subsidiary Company and Joint Venture 

The Company dosnt have any subsidiary and! or Joint venture. 

Material Changes and Commitment Affecting Financial Position of the Company 

There: afe-no material changes and commilment affecting financial position of the company which has cocurred behveen ths end of 

financial year ofthe company Le. 31st March, 2024 and till the date.of report, 
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ScBacattcnas’ (india) Limited 
DIRECTORS’ REPORT: {cont} 

Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 

The Company fas in place a policy inline with ine requirements.ofihe Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition 

& Aedressal) Act, 2013 intemal Complaints Gommittee (ICC) has bean ‘setup to. retiress complaints recelved regarding sexual 
harassment. All employees (permanent, contractual, trainees) are covered under this Policy. Ouring the year under review, no complaints 

Internal Financlal Controls with Reference to Financial Statement 

The company has adequate financial cantral procedures commensurate with fis sine and nature of business, the: company has denied 

and documented all key internal financial coniral which impact the financial statements, as‘a part of Its Standard Operating Procedure 
{S0P), The SOPs are designed for all critical processes across all branches wherein financial transactions are undertaken, 

‘Significant and material orders passed by the Regulators or Courts 

There are no-significant material orders passed by the reguiatora/court which would impact the gaing cancem status of the company and 
its future operations. 

Particulars of Employees 

Disclosures pertaining to rernuneration and other particulars as prescribed under the provisions of Section 197 of the Act read. with Rule 5 
ofthe Gompanies (4ppointmentand Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014; are-set outin Annexure [hand fonns part ofthis 

Report 

Code of Conduct 

The Company hes sid deown.a robust Code of Business Conduct end ethics, which Is besed on the principles of ethics, intagrty end 
ansperency. 

General 

* TheDirectors have deyise propersystems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable Secretarial Standardsand 
theteuch systems are adequate and operating effectively, 

® During the yeey, norevision Was made inthe previous financial statement ofthe Company. 

* Gerain etaterment in the Board's Report describing the Company's objectives, projections) estimates, expectations or 
predictions may be fanvardooking statements within the meaning of applicable securities laws and requistions. 4.ctual results 

could differ from those expressed of implied. Important factors that could meke a diference to the Company's operations 
include labour end materiaf availabilty, and prices, cyclical demand and pricing inthe Company's principal markets, change: in 
govemment reguistions, tax, regimes, economic development within Indigiand other incidental factors, 

Acknowledgements 

Your Directors wish to express their sincere appreciation for the co-operation received from the financial institutions; banks; geyvemment 
authorities, customers, vendors, suppliers and shareholders during the yaer under review. Your Directors also wish to place on record their 
deep sense of aporaciation forthe significant contribution mans by each & avery employee ofthe Company. 

For and bohalf of the Board 

Sunay Krishna Khaitan 
Place: Kolkata Executive Director 
Data: 30" Auguet 2024 (Din: 07585070) 
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ANNEXURE =I 

DETAILS OF CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY, ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 
[Pursuant te Sectlon 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 

Forthe pear Por ihe year 
erg 01 Bote. | sncding 31.03.2023 

A CONSERVATION OF ENEMNGY * 

POWER & FUEL CONSUMPTION 

ELECTRICITY AA. 

of) PURCHASED UNITS WN LAGS: Mun, 

TOTAL AMOUNT RSYIN LACS) ALA, 

EFRECTIVE RATE PER UNIT FS) M.A. 

bj) GWM GENERATION 

{) THROUGH DIESEL GENERATOR UNITE: IN LACS) M8, BAL. 

UNIT PER LITRE OF GHESEL OIL Ma, Nan, 

COST) UNIT IRS) Ma, NA. 

i THRGLCH STEAM TURBINE? GENERATOR UNITS (PN LAGS) M8, iat 

a CGAL ft, fa. 

CLANITITY TONMES 

TOTAL COST 

AVERAGE RATE MA, A. 

3, FURNACE OL 

QUAMITITY [RIL LITRE] 

TOTAL COST 

AVERAGE RATE MA, Ath 

OTHERS, INTERAAL GENERATION 

QUANTITY OF PADCH HUSK (RIT) 

TOTAL VALUE IPG! LAGS) 

AATE UNIT 4P5) 

CONSUMPTIOR PER UNIT OF PRORLICTEON AA. Adan. 

PRODUCT = SUGAAYOTLS! Tue Put 

ELECTRICITY (UNITS ¢ OTLS: OF SUGAR) MA. MA, 

FURKACE CAL M4, NA, 

ooAL Mo, Math. 

OTHERS MA. Ae. 

* As ihe sugar mill has not been Inte operation during the financial years 2021-2022 and 2022-2029 the sald 

B TECHNICAL ABSORPTION 
I Research & development (R&D) 

a) Specific areas where RED carried out bythe Company 
Development of better varieties of sugarcane end higher productivity per uni of land and inthe plant side or improying 

Quality of sugar 
b) Benefits derived asresultofths above ABD 

Improvement in cane yields and in quantity of suger 

ce] Future olan of action 

Deyelooment atcane in GCompany'sreseryed 4rea and Captive Farms, 

dj Expenditure on RED: NIL 

Technology absorption, adaptation and Innovation: 

The Ganmpany is-trying to adept the bates technology far imaroving productivity ‘quality and reducing the consumption 

Of raw materials end sneroy. Mo technology has been imported. 

C FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO 

FOS Value of Exports : ALL 

Expenditure in farsign currency : NILE 

For and on behall of the Board 

Place: Knikeita = 
Date: The 36th August, 2024 

Sunay Krishna Khaitan 

(DIM: OTSB5070) 
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Khaitan’ (india) Limited 
ANNEXURE-Il 

Particulars of Employees as required U/s 134 of the Companies Act, 2013 and forming part of Directors Report for the year ended 

31,03,2023 

A.Top len employees In terms of romuneration drawn during the year. 

i 2 = 5 Age ) Raauenrtion Esparismos Dace of ‘Lagt 
F Sau Qualficateen oy aba 7 

| Ne. eee _| fears} | (5) Creat polaing: | Eenneoytmatt 
. Manztar 

4 | Crea LBA SeulerGM. | ss a7BeR2D Fa L4oly2022 | Appliance 
: Lr 

| 

far Farka] F Dy Gen whgttan 
2 T Gradua Masingar rey 141 LSE #1 05/01 ay Fane 

fink 
| fdr E Sumy Dy Gen | Surya Bosh 
| i | Kumar finan Manager a5 | LEOOGTE . | ai | GLa 019 | Lat | 

| Blectrital eatin 

fer: Chatta | Engineer ET Manager Marvels india 
4 Ranjan Sahoo sins z (T I. 6a 1762557 H 04/10/2019 rd. 

|_| Management| "rorurement) _ 
Crompton 

5 Greaves 
5.) Mie D Sridhar. M.B.4. apelin ay Li Bso a7 O6/ 112019 Cohdumer 

Hlecticals 
| att Lat. 
| BEE 

Reese 
Pima, 

Mr Suny "Bunt Meare 
6 | Kinshaa wee ae ~ ad 2097250 =} OF (12 2017 Bectricals 

Kattan : er BiLy Dilrétpar Lid 
Indiama USA, 

| Green belrim 

| Wim SHE ST gene 
fet, Sumat , P = Sartan 

7 F Craditate iy ay TEs7i90 pai A501 017 — 

. ia bd aa PT ' a 4 
. Graduate | | Telecare 

8 a Radhay Diploma Serace Bead ar 1a8aae" FE Vyoerau1s | Ketwork 
ain Eligheser | india tel 

_ Me Mi . : 
9 Shecnin MBA Brunch Head £2 La5702L pal] LEIS 202 Svsha Let 

ace | | ] i 
10. Kumar Deepaix waa tanger se | 1413ze0 24 oroernara | Fine 

L on i 

B. Si pia red Win iar ute are yearend werein teceiptot remuneration notless than Rupess One Crore.and Teo lacs per annus 

C. Employed for the: part of the financial yaar.and were In receipt of remuneration notiess-than Aupee= eight lacs fifty thousand per 
month + NONE 

Note: 

3) Remuneration includes actual payment and /or taxable values of perquisites and the company's. contribution to oroyident and 
athertunds butexcldes gratuity, 

bh) Otherterms and conditions: As per rules of the company. 

Other Detalls pertalning to remuneration 

1) The perce encase in remuneration of each Director and Company Secretary during the financial year 2022 24, ralioof 
the remuneration or each employes forthe financial yeara023-24 and the comparison of remuneration ofeach Key Management 
Perzannel (AMP! against the perfarmance ofthe areas under: 

hidaugasc panded $9 Increase in Ratio of remuneration Each 

SLNo Name of Director/KMP Dengnabon ry anand R TeMUneTation in Director/to median 

(Re | py 2023-28 «| ‘Yenunerstion of employes 
/ In face] 

1 Mr. Suney Krishna Khaitan Executive Director 2097 45.28 Bl 

Chief Financial ; 
2 Mr. Sumit Pasari __ Officer (CFO) 1137 - Appelnted on 21-07-2023 

Company Secretary 

3 Ankit Sugandh and Compitance 5.50 - Appelnbed ‘on 21-07-2023 

Officer 
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are, | 

The Median remuneration of the employees af ine campany during the financial year was As. 2.58 lacs p.a. 

In the tinancial year there was an increase of 34.40% in mecian remuneration ofemployees 

Thete were 171 Permanent employees onthe payroll ofthe company as on 31 03.202 

Itisatirmed the remuneration paid! as per remuneration policy ofthe company for Director, Key Management Personnel, 

The compensation of ihe KMP [= a3 per the compensation philosophy of the GCampany. The remuneration is benchmarked agalnst 

market and also based onthe performance of the Company and Individual, 

ANNEXURE -lil 

DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT 

Pursuentto Section 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013, Directors of your Company hereby state and confirm that: 

3) Inthe preparation ofthe Annual Financial Statements for the yearended 31st March, 2024, the applicable accounting standards have 

beenfollawed along with praper exptanation relating to material departures; 

b) They have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistenthand made judgments and estimates that are reasonable 

and prudent so a5 to give 4 true anc fair view of the state of affairs of the company al the end of the financial year ended dist March, 
2024 ancofine proiijloss ofthe company forthe same penad; 

co) The directors have taken proper and sufficient care for thie maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the 

provisions of the Gampanies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the asseis of the company and for preventing and detecting fraud and ather 

irequiarities: 

qd) They have prepared the annual accounts on ageing cancem basis; 

8} They bavelaid down prager intemal financial conirats (IFC) In the company that are adequate and were operating ettectvely, 

f) They have devised propersystems io ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable taws and these-are adequate and are 

operating effectively, 

Sunay Krishna Khaitan 

Executive Director 

ANNEXURE-IV 

FORM No, AOC-2 

[Pursuant to clause (h)of sub-section 14 of theactand rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 Disclasure-of particulars of 

contrectarangementientered into by the company with related partes referred to in sub-section(8é of the Compenies Act, 2013 
infiuding arms length imansaction under third proviso therein 

Details of matedal contracts of arrangement ortreansaction at Aros Length Basis: 

Mature of Derstionof | Sdlent terms of prorlontor gy Last Anmerunt Ralated enn 

er Abenesat contracts arran | cvetrects,‘arre contracts; errangeenants / ot the Pald as 

Rabicioaaly ‘ion Raectlon anmactions a ee — any 

“Sarvice = Not rT] 

Mr, Sunay Keishma Khaitan | Resnumeration | "SP0 2001 | eceear | Resaerzsaoo | Recs’ 

oe = ons Were: 
Mr.Sumit Fasari Remumer eth ioe Rendered in ReLLS7,100 | onAnes 

eg a in ‘basin of 

Rendered i bushess 

oioezorst | Srectve! Rasae33.0 
Mr, Pradip Halder ‘Remumerstion ‘Company gios-aias | ss 

(Cosnpllance 
Oieet 
Sarnice 

Rendered bn 
hit, Ankit Sugandh O1-04-207ac. | Santer of 

Remuneration. 32573) sed | Oana 
‘Compliance 

Officer 

Bandura én 
Ma. Vageosha Khakan Remuneration | "Fh cary | capactyer | Ras24e00.00 

Manager on 

Sperial Duty 
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iclneattease’ (india) Limited 

Sallent terms of Date of 
Name(s) of the Related Nature of Daration of Salient terms of contracts! Amount 

Party & Nature of contracts/arran | contracts/arre | — comtracts/ arrangements/ | “PROM | Paid as 
gements/tranca | ngements/tra | arrengements/itr (ransaction Board. if Advance, 

Silationehty ctions ngaction angactions including values, sir ifiany 

ifany 
Service 

01-04-2023 to Rendered in 
Mr. Sandip Chatterjee Sitting Fees: 31-03-2024 o diy of Bs, 60,000,00: 

Director 
Service 

01-04-2023 to Rendered in 
Mrs. Sujata Chatterjee Sincing Fees 34-03-2024 c ty of B.60,000.00 

Director 

Loan for 
Mr, Sunay Krishna Khattan | LoanTaken | 92-04-2023 to Werkdng Capa | 5.1.26,16258.00 

M/s. Khaitan Hotels Pvt. ee 01-04-2022 to | yy, Loan for ikccastibnaae 
Led. 31-03-2024 Bay 

Loan for 
01-04-2023 t | Working Capital M/s. Khaitan Lefin Limited Loan Taken 31-03-2024 aad Ris. 1,85,58,562.00 

Loan for 
M/s. The Ortental 01-04-2023 to | Working Capital 
Mereantile Co, Ltd Loan Taken | "31-03-2024 need SOAS TI60 

Loan for 
Mr. Sunay Krishna Khaitan Loan Paid nea eetins Greet Rs. $4,540.00 

M/s. Khaitan Hotels Pvt toan Puig | OF--2022t0 | doen for ge sige 
Led 31-03-2024 ee 1835 

Loan for 
01-04-2023 to 31-03-2024 Working Capital | Rs.1,35,91,835.00 

M/s. Khatten Lefin Limtted Loan Paid need 

‘Loan for 
01-04-2023 to 

eats. Loan Paid =| 31-03-2024 | WorkneCapital | 5. 665,000.00 

01-04-2023 | Boanfor 
M/s. Vistevia Agro Put. Lid. | AdwancePaid | 21-09-2024 | WorkingCapitel | Re12,57,998.00 

need 

01-04-2023 to Loan for 
ybrinem a & | Advance Paid | 51-03-2024 | Working Capital | Rs1,17,72,832.00 

heed 

‘Loan for 
M/s. Khaitan Hotels Prt. 01-04-2023 to | Working Capital rey Interest Paid | “So a on94 at Re34,17,538.00 

01-04-2023 | women tx 
M/s, Khaitan Lefin Limited | Interest Paid | 31-03-2024 co pital | po1,52,014.00 

i4-2023 to Loan for 
price ig Interest Paid | 31-03-2024 | WorkingCapital | Re5,9,079.00 

need 

Loan for M/s, Bolsar Electricals & Royalty 01-04-2023 | Re10,59,628.00 
Appliances Led. Received 31-03-2024 en a 

01-04-2023 to 
M/s, Khaitan Lefin Limited Rant Pad 31-03-2024 Rental Property Rs.6,00,000.00 
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FORM NO. MAR} 3 

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT 
For The Financial Year Ended 41° Day of March, 2024 

[Pursuant to sector 204/1) of the Companies Act. 207d.and mve No.9 of the Gompanies (Appointrent and Remuneration of 

Manageral Personnel) Aules, 2014! 

Ta, 

The Members, 

Khaitan (india) Limited 
46-0, J.L. Nehru Road, Kolkata-—FoOooTT 
CIN: LIDOOOWB19S6PLC008775 

have conducted the Secretarial Auditof ihe compllance of applicable statutory provisions and ihe agherenceto good corporate practices 
-by Khaitan (India) Limited (nereinetter. called the "Company") forthe financial year ended 34st March, 2024 (hereinafter to be referred as 

“audit period”). Secretarial Aucit was conducted on test check basis, In a manner that provided us 4 reasonable basis for evaluating the 
corporate conducts statutory compliances and expressing my apiniontnerean 

Gn ihe basis of verification af the secretarial compilance and on ine basis of secretarial audit of Company's bagks, papers, minute Docks, 

forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Campany, a5 provided fo us during the said audit by the Company, its officers, 
agents and authorized representatives, | hereby report thet.in my opinion and to the best of my understanding, the Company, dunng the 
audit period has complied with the statutory provisions jisted hereunder and also the Company has adequele Board processes and 
commiance mechanism in piace ta the extent, in the mannerand subject tathe reporing made hereinafter: 

| further: report that compliance with applicable laws is (ne responsibility of the Company and my renart constitutes an independent 

opinion. My reportis neither an assurance forfuture Wability of the Company nor a confirmation of efficient management by the Company. 

| have examined the records, minute books, documents, fonms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Gompany for and 
during thefinancial year ended onalst March, 2024 according ta the provisions cof; 

l, The Gompanies Act, 213 (ihe Act and rules made thereunder, 

I The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (SCRA) and the rules made theteunder, 

Ul, The Depositores..ct, 1995 and the reguiations and bye laws framed under the Act; 

he Foreign Exchange Management Sct, 1998 and the rules.and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 

Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and extemal Qonumercial Barowings; 

Vy. The following Aequiatlons (as amended from time to time) and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange 

Board of India Act, 1992 (SEB) Act) 

a!) The Securities and Exchange Beard of India (Listing Obligations and Disciosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 

6) The Secuntes and Exchange Board of india (Substantial Acquistion of Shares-and Takeovers! Requiatans, 2011 

¢) The Securities and-Exchange Board of india (Prohibition of insider Trading) Regulations; 2075; 

d) The Secunties and Exchange Board of India tissue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations; 2018 (Not 

aoplicable to tha Company during the Audit Period); 

4) The Secutities and Exchange Board of India (Share Based Employee Benefits.and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Not 

appli¢abla to the Company during the Audit Period); 

fi The Secures and Exchange Board of India (lssueand Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to the 

Gompany during the Audit Period; 
@) The Securities and Exchangs Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993, 

hy The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of quity Shares}. Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable ta the Company 

during the Audit Period’: 

f The Securtiles and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securiiies! Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the Company 

during the Audit Period); 

And toihe bestot my knowledge, belief and understanding, | am of the view that the Company has complied with the provisions of the 

above mentioned Acts, Regulations and Rules made thereunder during the aforesaid audit period. 
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ScBacattcaas (india) Limited 
Vi [havealse examined the compliance by the company of thefollowing statutory standards: 

1. The Environment (Protection) 4ct 1586: 

f. The Public Liability Insurance Act, 1951 

il, The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibitionand Redressalh Act, 2013 

hy, Hazardous Wastes (Management, Handling and Trensboundary Movement) Aules, 2008: 

Andis the best of my knowledge, bellef and underttandina, lam ofthe view thatthe Company has compiled with Ihe pectic 

laws mentioned sboye, during the aforesaid audit period, 

VIL. Uhaveaiso-examined the Structured Digital Database pursuant to Regulation a(5).and 4/6) of the Securities and Exchange 

Béard.ofindia (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Reguiation, 2075 maintained by the Company far the financial year ended on 

Marcha, 2024 andtothebestofmykneviedge, belief and understanding, |.am of the yew that the Company has 

compled withthe pravisions. pursuantta Regulation 4{5) and 3(6) of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibttion of 

Insider’ Trading) Regulation, 2075, during the aforesaid audit period: 

| further-reaportthat 

& | have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards Issued by The Institute of Company 

Secretaries of india. under Section 118 of the Companies Act, 2013 and to the best of my knowledge, belief and understanding, 
| am of the view thet the Company has compBed with the provisions of Section 114 of the Companies Act, 2072 during the 
aforesaid audit period. 

6, have checked the compliance with the provisions of the Standard Listing Agreement entered by the Company with Natonel 

Stock Exchange of india Limitediand BSE Limited, the Steck Exchanges in India and also with the provisions of the Securities 

and Exohangs Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2075, to.the extent applicable 
during the audit périod and te the best of my Knowledge, beteland understanding, | am of the View thal tha Company has 
complied with the secretarial functions and board processes Io comply with the applicatle orovisions thereal, during the 
aforesaid audit period. 

¢. That on the basis of the audit es referred above, to the best of my knowledge, understanding-and belief, | am of the view that 
during the pened under reyiew, the Company hae complied withthe provisions-ofthe Act; Rides; Regulations, Guidelines, 
Standerds, ete, as mentioned above in Paragraph 4(i}, Paragraph 4(ll}, Paragraph-4(il}, Paragraph 5 and Paragraph 6 of this 
rapart, 

Lfurther report that: 

& The board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive Directors 

and Independent Directors. The changes Inthe composition of the Board of Directors that took place during the period under 
fevdew cared out in compliance with the provisions of thre Act 

b. Adequate Notice Js given to all Directors te schedule the Board Meetings, Agenda and detailed Notes on agenda were.sent at 
least Seven days in advance and 2 system endsts for seeking and obtaining further information and clarificalians-on tha agenda 
tems before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

e, Majority decisians is carried through while the dissenting members views are captured and recorded as part of the minutes. 

| further report thal there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and operations of the 
Company to monitor and ensure coripahce with applicable laws, requiations and quidelines.as also represented by the management. 

This t806r ls to be peed with my letter of even date which if Annexire AY and forms afd Integral part ofthis reper. 

C5 Alpana Seihia 
Practicing Company Secretary 
AGE: 15758, 0.P No. 5098 
Peer Review No. 2850/2022 

Date: 29,05.2024 . 
UDIN: AOTSTEBFOOO480761 
Place - Kolkete 
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Annexure —A 

(TO THE SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT OF KHAITAN (INDIA) LIMITED FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 317 DAY OF 

MAACH, 2024) 

To 

The Members: 

Khaitan (India) Limited 

46-0, JUL. Nehru Road, Kolkata—7OOO71 

CIN: LIQOOOWB1936PLC008775 

My Secreterial Audit Report for the financial year enced March 31, 2024, of even date is io be reac along with this letter, 

1 Malntenance of secretarial record |s the responsibility of the management of he company. My responsibility ls to express an 

opinion on these sectelaral records based an my audit. 

2.  |havefollowed the audit practices and processes as abpropnate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of the 

contentsot the Secnetanal records. The verificaton was done on test basis to ensure that comect facts are -refected in 

secretanal records. | believethat the processes and practices, | followed provideareasonabie basis-ot my opinian. 

have not vertied the comeciness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company. 

Wherever required, | have oblained Ihe manegemant representation about the compliance of laws, rules and regulations and 

happening ofevents etc. 

5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws; rules, requlations standards in the respansibility of 

management, My examination was limited tothe verificaton of procedures.on test basis. 

6 Tre Secretanal Audit raportis naitheran assurance ss to the future viability of the company norof the efficacy or atfectiveness 

with which the management has conducted the affairs ofthe Company 

CS Alpane Sethis 
Practicing Company Secretary 
ACS:15758, C.R No.; 5058 
Peer Review No. 2650/2022 
Date: 29-05-2024 
UDIN: AOTSTSSFO00480751 

Place -Kolkata 
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ScBacattcaas (india) Limited 
CERTIFICATE OF NON DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS 

[Pursuant ta Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para ¢ Clouse (10) () of Seourtties and Exohange Board of India (Wasting 

Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulation, 2016) 

To 
The Members, 
Khaitan (India) Ltd. 
46C,.J.L. Nehru Road 
Kolkata—7000T1 

| have euamined Ihe relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures recelved from the Directors of KHAITAN (INDIA) LIMITED 

having CIN LIOO00WE4SS8PLCO087 75 and having registered office at 460 JL Nehru road, Kolkata- 700071 (herainalter refered to as the 
Company’), produced before me by the Gamipany forthe purpose of |ssulng this Genificate, Inaccurdance with Requiation 4/3) read with 

Schedule ¥ Para Sub clause 10()) of the Seourities Exchange Board of india (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements} 

Regulations, 2018, 

Inimy opinion andto the best of my infomation and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Mumber (DIN) status:at 

the portal www.imea.gov.in} as considered necessary and explanations furnished to me by the Company and (ts officers, | hereby certify 
that none of the Directors.an‘the Board of the Campany as stated-below for the Financial Year ending en 31st March, 2024 have been 

debarréd or disqualified from being appointed or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of Imelia, 
Ministry of Corporate Affairs, oranyauch other Statutory Authority, 

oo Name of the Director DIM Date of Appointment Date of Cessation 

4 Mr Sunaiy-Krishna Khaltan ‘O7SB5070 12-77-2016) 

2 Mi. Manoj Chhawchhara 00214667 7-04-2021 

i Mr. Gopal Mor oossses2 07-04-2021 

4 Mr. Sandip Chatterjee OBA7S010 27-04-2018 - 

5 Mrs, Sujata Chatteris OG245556 31-07-3020 = 

5 Mir. Ajaiy Adnbensredt Oieera43 21-10-2022 = 

Ensuing the. eligibility of for the appointmentcontinuity of every Director on the Board of the Company is the responsibility of the 

management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my venfication, We further stale that such 
complience is neither anessurance 4s to the future viability ofthe Company norofthe efficiency or efficiency or efectveness with which the 

management has conducted the affgirs ofthe Gompeny. 

CS Alpana Sethia 
Precicing Compeny Secretary 

Date: 4 0S/2024 UDIN: AQIS78F0003 11020 
Place: Kolkata, AGS: T6758: GOP: 6098. 

Peer Review No.2eso/a022 
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Secretarial Compliance Report of Khaitan (india) Limited 

(CIN: LIQOO0WB1S96PLC008775) 
For the Financial year ended 31"March, 2024 

[Pursuant to Regulation 244(2) of the Securitics and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 

Regulation, 20175, as amended, read with Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019, dated 02.02.2019, issued by Securities and 

Exchange Board of India] 

[Raneexamined: 

a) Alltha dooumants and meords made available te me and axplanation provided by Khaitan (India) Limited ("the listed entity’), 

b) Thefllings/submissions made by the listed entity to the stock exchanges 

e) Website of tha listed entity, 

4) Anyotherdesumen filing, 43 may berélevant, which has bean rellad Upon is make this carbticatlon, 

Forthe year ended March 31, 2024 (Review Period’) in respect of compllance with the provisians of 

8) The Securities and Exchange Board of india Act, 1892 (SEB! Act’) and the Regulations, circulars, Quidelines issued there under; and 

b) The Securities Cantracts (Regulation) Act 1956/"SCRA"), rules mada there under and the Regulations, ciroulars; quidetines issued 

there under by the Securities and Exchange Board of india ("SERN") 

2, The speolfic Regulations, whose provisions and the clroulars/ quidelines issued there under, have been examined, Include:- 

a) Seourlties and Exchange Board of india (Listing Gbligatians and Disclosure Raquirements Regulations, 2015; 

b) Securities and, Exchange Beard of India (issue of Capital and Disclasure Requirements} Regulations, 2078 (there were no events 
requiring compliance during the Review Period); : 

0) Securities and Exchange Board of india (Substantial Accutsition of Shares and Takeovers) Reguiations, 2011; 

qd) Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 2078-as amended (there ware no events requiring 

compllance during the Review Period); 

@) Stourlties and Exchange Board af India (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (there were no events 
requiring compliance during the Review Period); 

fh Securities and Exchange Board of India (issue and Listing of Non-Convertibie and Redeematie Preference Shares) Regulations; 2021 

(there were no events requiring compliance during the Rewew Period): 

9) Securities and Exchange Board of india (Prohibition of insiter Trading} Regulations, 2015; and based on the above examination, | 
hereby repartthat, during the Review Paroc: 

a) The listed entity has complied with the provisions of he above Regulations and: circurars/quidelines issued thereunder, axcept In 

respect of matters snealfied below: 
* Refer Annexure “A” annexed to the Report 

b) Thelisted entity has-taken the following actions to comply withthe observations made in previous reports: 

* Refer Annexure “B" annexed to the Report 



ScBacattenas’ (india) Limited 
2. Interns of the NSE circular reference number: MSE/CML 2023/30 dated 10th April, 2023 and the BSE Circular No, 20230410-44 

dated 1th April, 2023, and amendments therein, aur affinmations, are appended as below: 

Sr. 

Na 
Partioulars 

Observations; 
Remarks 
by PCGS* 

Secretarial Standards: 

The conipliances of the listed ently are in: seeordance with the applicable 

Secretarial Standards (53) lssued by the Institute.of Company Secretaries 

India (ISSH) 

Nore 

Adoption and timely Updation of the Policies: 
® All applicable policies under SEB! Regulations. are adopted vith the 

foveal of board of directors of the listed aniities 
@ All the policies are in conformity with SEBI Regulations and has 

been reviewed & timely updated as perthe regulations /circularas: 
Qguidieines issued by SEB 

None 

Malnienance-and disclosures on Website: 

® The listed entity is entity is maintaining 2 functional wabsite 

® Timely dissemination of the documents/infonmatian under a separa section 

onthe website 

® Web-lhiks provided In annual corporate govamanoe report. under regulation 

27 (2) are accurate and specific whieh redirects to the relevant documents)! 

section of the website 

None 

Disqualification of Director: 
Mone.of Director of the Company ere disquaified under Section 164.0f Companies 

Act, 2073 

None 

To examiné detalls related to Subsidiaries of listed enilties: 
la}identification of material subsidiary companies 

(b}Requirements with respect to disclosure of material as weil as other subsidiaries 

The Company 

does 
not have any 

Subsidiary 

Preservation of Documents: 

The Gsted entity is preserding-and maintaining records.as preseribed under SEBI 

Reguistions and disposal of records as per Polley of Preservation of dacurments 

and.archival policy prescdbed under SEB) LODA Reguistions,2015 

None 

Performance Evaluation: 
The listed antity has conducted perfomance evaluation of the Board, Indapendent 
Directors and the Gommitiess al the start of every financial year as prescribed in 
SEB Regulations 

None 

Related Party Transactions: 

(ay The listed entity has obtained por approval of Audit Committee tor all Retated 
party iransactons _ 

(b)in case no prior approval obtained, the listed entity shall provide detailed 
reasons along with confirmation whether the transactions were subsequently 
approved /railfied,rejected by the Audit committee 

No such case 

Disclosure of event of Information: 

The listed entity has provided all {herequired disclosure(s) under regulation 30 
along with Schedule Ill of SEBI LODA Reguiations, 2015 within the time limits 

prescribed thereunder. : 

Prohibhtion of insider Trading: 
The listed entity { In compliance with Reguiation 3(5).&.3/6) SEBI (Prohibition of 
Insider Trading) Regulations 2015 

None 



Sr Compliance Observations; 
Particulars Status Remarks 

No (¥ea/!Na/MA) by PCs* 

11. | Actions taken by SEB or Stock Exchange(s), If any: Beaches Beet beh 

Noe Actions taken againg: the listed entity! its promotersidirectars/subsidiaries niet te tend ecchy (fe 

elther by SEB! or by Steck Exchange (including under the Standard Operating Ne series ota By EB! 

Procedures issued by SEBI thraugh various circulars) under SEBI Regulations and vache: bchenonr 
circulars/ guidelines issued thereunder) Mig the pitied 

Additional Non-compliances, if any: 
ap No any additional non-compliance observed forall SEBI regulation/circular; NA None 

~ | guidance note etc. 

Annexure A" 
The listed ently has complied with the provisions-of the above Regulations and clroulars! guidelines issued thersunder, except in 

respect of matters specified below: — 

Sr | Gormplance | Regulation Deviations: Acton Tyoe of ete Fine Amount |Qbseevations | Fine “amaunt Remarks 

No | Requirernient.| (Cireuiar We. Taken by = | Action of Vicwalion ‘Remarks 

(Raguiations Achisory ofthe 

Jeircutars! AGlanfeatian Practeing 

guidelines Fine Company 

including Gause Socratary 

speciic Motica: 

cause} Waming. Exc. 

Not Appilcabie: 

Annexure "A" 

The listed entity has taken the following actions to comply with the observations made in previous reports: - 

Sr | Compliance | Reguistion Deviations Action Tybe of Cetats Fine Arnount | Observations | Fine Amount | Pernarks 

Wo | Requirement | ‘Circular Me. Taken by = | Action of Viewaion ‘Remarks 

(Reaguiations Aalvigary ot the 

circulars! SGharihieatian Pragtaing 

guidelines (Fires Showy Company 

inciuding Gauge Seoretary 

‘speciic Noatice! 

CUES} Waring. in. 

Net Applicable 

C5 Alpana Sethia 
Practicing Company Secretary 

ACS:15758, C.F No.: 5098 
Poer Review No. 2650/2022 

Date: 04/05/2024 
UDIN: AQTSTBFOO0311009 
Place - Kolkata 



ScBacattenas’ (india) Limited 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

Overall Economy 

India's gross:domestic product (GDF) for the January-March quarter of flacal 2023-24 (Q4F¥24) came inet 7.8 per cant, driven by song 
growth in. the manufacturing sacior, The indian economy baat D-Street estimates and grew by 6.2 per cent forthe-tull year (F¥24). The 
Indian economy demanstraied remarkabla recillence In the face of global economic challenges. 4 mbuat resurgence in consumer 

demand and strong performances across manutacturing, services, and agricultural sectors buoyed bya favourable monsoon, have been 

phvotal in this. grawih trajectory. 

FM Sitharaman has-called India a biightaport' in the global economy, highlighting its position as the fifth largest economy inthe world, The 
Indian economy is on track to surpass the USD 5 trillion mark, setting its sights on nearing USD 7 wilion hetween 2026 and 2031, Looking 
ahead to the follewing year, projections suggest thatthe GDP growth is Ilkely to remain robustat 7.4% during 2024-26. The CP! inflatiania 

projected to average 4 4% during 2024-25, lower than§.4% projected for 2023-24, with mostofthe decline occuring in H1 2024-25, 

Indian Sugar industry Structure 

India's sugar production lin marketing year (MV) 2023-2024 (Cctober-September) ls anpected lo reach 32 million matric tonnes, Sugar 
production in MY 2022-24 was 32.8 million tonne as acverse weather conditions In Maharashtra during the vegetathe growth stage ledtoe 

aignificant drop in cans yields following consecuthve seasons of record yields, 

The sugar mils need to buy cane from tanmers at state advised price (SAP) but have to sell their produce at either marginal cost above 
production o in toss. Thus, higher price purchase of sugarcane but low price sale of sugar in the open market creales siress.on sugar mills 

and they are unable to make paymenis to farmers. This leads to accumulation of arrears: Though government decontrolled sugar Industry 
partiaily in 2013 and allowed them to sell their produce in open, market, the sugar industry faces a bizare problem that price of its raw 

material (cane) |e fixed by state and central govemmments 85 State Advise Price (SAP) and Falr and Rermunerative Price (FAP) respectively, 
The goverment supported cane onices: are attractive to- farmers, but loss dueto any fall in the prices of sugar in the open.market has to be. 

bome by the sugar industry. The Sugar Industry ls also. going fe be affected by the prolonged Corona pandemic, an economic crisis 
developed due tothe war situation inthe word and the production js also expected to deciine In near future. 

Fan Industry 
The electric fan Industry is'well-established In the country and has grown signiicantly over the years. Lange number of players in bath, 
ongendzed and unorganized market hes helped the fan industry ta come along way. However, much of the growth has.been through 

ongenized players now es consumers move towards branded and more technologically efficient fans. A concerted move has been seen 
towards widening distribution reach and improving rural penetration by the organized players. Also the threat irom Chinese fans lowered. 

According te “Indie Electric Fan Market Outlook, 2022-28," the revenues for organized electric fan market are growing with a CAGR of 
more than 10% from the lest five years: Higherdisposable incomes, increased availability of continuous power and a faster shitt-to the. 
ongenized sector has propelled the electricfen marivet in India, The electnic fan industry 5 divided into producttypes like veiling fans, table 
fans; pedestal fans, wall fansand others. Others include tans like industrial, exhaust, mult-utiity, tower, bladeless, etc-in Incie, ceiling fans 

dominate the market heavily both in organized and unorganized sectors. According to region, south India caters tothe largest revenue 
share: followed by westand north, The Eastem region is expected to grow fast inihe coming few years. 

Fan Industry is also expected to be affected by prolonged wer situation in Ukraine and the pmiduction and sale ts also expected to deciine 

in eer future. 

Review and Analysts of Our Performance: 

Marketing Division 

This is the Seventh full year of operation of the marketing division, This division markets Fans, Coolers and Pumps and gets royally. Fans 
contibute the highest business in the segment The company has. pan India network of distributors and deplers-to market the products: 
The division achieved tumaver of As. 5696.66 lacs in FY 2029-24 as against As,5920.57 lees in FY 2022-23. The Sales sre expected to 

incresse in. coming periods. The Company isin the process. of expanding the footprint of this division pan Indiaand sxpects to do better in 
lime to come. The Royalty income was Rs. 737.63 lacs as compared to Rs. 687.24 lacslastyear. 

Sugar Division 

Durning the year and immedistety preceding year, the company-could not start operation of the sugar mill seasonal) mainly due to paucity 
offunds to finance the working capital requirementand other directand operatanel expenses: 

DETAILS 2023-2024 eee-2023 

Stan of Crushing Season = 

Close of Crushing Season x = 

Cane Grushed fin lacs Otls.} = - 

Recovery (7a) x is 
| Sugar Production (in Qtis.} - = 



ee, 

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS: jcant) 

Agriculture Division: 

The aoricultural division contributed Ag: 140.25 lacs to revenue as compared ta As. 25.05 lacs in FY 2022-22 

Profitability: 

The PRIDT for 2023-24 was —As.471.27 lac as agalnel Rs-509-82 lac in FY 2099-25, 

Outlook: 
The Guilook for Marketing Division is positive and we expect good demand in electrical products specially fans, However Sugar division 

would ceniinue to bea palm area, Focus would be on reducing costs by Ineraasing crushing. 4oreuitural division |s expected fo be stable 
die to. beter monsoon. 

Opportunity and Threats: 

The demand for electrical products like fans and coolers ip tairly stable, The company has Deen focusing on economy segment in tans 
‘and Sees 8 good opportunity in decorative fans: The company isin the process of marketing decorative fans which would improve profit 
margins alo, 

The Support price to farmers to buy sugar cane which is ever increasing due ta goverment policy without any consideration to the 
denressed sugar process is a big threat to ihe sugar industry. Que to labour issues and lack of working capital the sugar mill is notin 
pperations forthe lest years, 

Human Resource and Industrial Relation: 

Industrial relations had been hanronious and the campany gives due credence te betterment of its worktares. 

Internal Control and thelr adequacy: 

The Gonpany has. an adequate intemal contrat system which proevides raasanabie assurance with regard to safeguarding the company's 

assets. The company has appointed an In-house intemal auditor whe reviews the Internal contro! ona regular basis. Report of Internal 

Auditors is mviewed by the senior managementat regular intervals. 

Forandon Behat ofthe Board 

Sunay Krishna Khaitan 

Piges: Kolkata Executive Director 

Date: The 30" August, 2024 (DIN: 07586070) 
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iclneattease’ (india) Limited 
REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE 

Philosophy on corporate Governance 

The company balleves that Garpovate Govemarnce 5 4 set of process customs, polloes, ragulation and lave for ensulng Wansparency, 

professionalism and accountabillty fn ts dealing with is customers, employees, sharholders, and with every indhicual who comes in 

eomact with the company. The detaled repart on cormorate governance as per SEB! (Listing Obligatians and Disclosure Requillements: 

Regulation, 2015 (as amended) is as under: 

Board of Director's 

The commany has 6 {Sh} Directors of which 5 (Five) are non-executive Independent Directors fineluding one woran Director. The 

composition ofthe Board ls conformity with SEB! (Listing Obigallan and Disclosure Requirements} requiation, 2075. 

The Board belleves that Regulation 7i1)i¢) of amended SEB! (LOD) Aequiation 2015 on the company In net apollcable on the company 

2s [tls not falling under ton 2000 con panies in India ard the provision af Alagulation 1741) (¢) of SEB! (LORD). 

During the year urider review Five Board Meeting were held on 30th May, 2023, 21st July2023, 1 ith August, 2029, 09ts November, 2025 

and 12th February, 2024. The maximum time gap bebveen any tve consecutives meeting did not exceed 120 days. The compasition af 

Board, attendance at the last Annual General Meeting, number ofother directorships and committee memberships are belov'- 

Name of Directors DIN Category ipvthct san Gonieics Neem a onan 
member Soardsn* Committers 

Mr Sunay Krishna Khaitan OFS85070 WTB ais Yes 2 2 o 

Mr. Manoj Ghhavwehhara 00214887 | ID&NED 5/5 No a 0 Ob 

Mr. Gopal Mor QOSEE=a? | IDSNED BE Ves. 4 a 0 

Mr. Sandip Chattwr|ae OGETSO10 IBDENED ata No a 0 oO 

Wr Ajay Ablavval (iee7343 | IDBNED a5 No a i O 

irs. Sujata Cnatiejee ooe45e56 | ID&NED 5S Na. a 1 o 

*Exchuding Directorship in private limited: campanies, foreign commanies: and section § companies act. 

Category Details: 

G8 NEP - Chairman & Non Executive Directo, |DBNED — Independent & Non Executive Director, WTD - Whole Time Director and ED - 
Executive Director. 

Details of Remuneretion and Mesting Fees paid te Directors during the Financial Year 2023-24 is given in related party transaction section of 
financials. 

During the yeer informatian as mentioned in aopticable clause of SE) (Listing Obligatans and Disclasure Requirements} Reguiation, 2015 

haz been placed before the Board ite consideration, 

Betalls of Shares held by Directors: 

Name of Directors No. of Shares Held 

Mr. Sunay Krishna Khetan 2,592,079 

Mr. Sandip Chatterjee NIL 

Mr. Manoj Chhawchharia 400 

Mir. Gopal Mar NIL 

Me. Ajay Ahlewet NIL 

Mrs. Sujata Chatterjee NIL 



ee, 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: (cont) 

Familllarization Programme: 

The company has formulated a policy tofamillarize ihe directors with the company, their roles; rights, responsibilities in the company nature 

of the Industry which has been disclosed an the website of the company we. knaitansugarin 

List of core skills /oxpertise / competencies required in the Company's Board to enable It function effectively and those actually 

avallable: 

The Boatd identtes the toleowing core skills expertise | competencies that ll percelves lt gught to have in the process af qaverning the 
Company: tis furtheral the view thatas a whole ipossesses these skills expertise competencies and is applying them In governing the 

Campary, 

Mr. Mano| Mr Gopal Mr Sandip Mr Alay Mrs. Sujata 
Chhawehnatia Kor Chatterjee Ahiauvat Chatterjee 

Skill Sets: 

a Say ‘A v v / / v 
Capacity to Identify risks and 
macro ievel concems in the Z / J v ri i 

Gampany. 

Aptitude in the aremas. of finance, 
eontral, information technology 

and governance mechanisms so 

a5 io be able to examine and 

analyse these arses inthe 
conte of the Gampany's 

requirements and be in & 
posrian to-determine gans in the 

Managements thought process 

onthe approach to these. 

Ability to judgs the degree cf 
adraiiness and clear thinking thet 

go into taking business decisions 

taken by the Management, 

identity discontinuities and 
anomalies; critique such decisians v v v v / 7 

where necessary and thereafter 
direct initietion of the required 
actionas.deemed best under 

the circumstances. 

Encouraging diversity in the 
methodologies of the Company 

locking at operational and related “ vw vw v w i 
constraints and suggesting ways 

forward, 

Ability te engage ina healthy and 

cogent debate within itself 

(including In Board Committees} on 

the varlous governance processes i ¥ v Pa 7a rs 
With ihe objective of finding 

solutions to issues aTeoting the 

Company, 



Khaitan’ (india) Limited 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: (cont) 

Board Committees: 

The Company had Three Committees Le. Audit Committee, Nomination & Remuneration Committee and Stakeholders Rolatlonship 
Committes: Details on role and composition of these committees including the number of meeting held during the financial year and the 

related attendance are mentioned below:- 

Audit Committee: 

The committes discharge such duties: and functions: generally described in SEB! (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements} 

Regulation, 2015 with the stock exchanges. The majortask perionmed by the audit committee may be grouped as under:- 

1, Oversight of he Company's financial reporting process and the disclosure of the financial Infomation to ensure thatthe financial 

Slatement s correct, sumicientand credible and ensuing mety submission to statutory auditors. 

Reviewing the management discussion & analysis of financial and operation performance, 

Reviewing with the Management, the quarterly financial statements and annual statements and auditors report thereon befare 

Submission to hie board for approval, 

Fieview the adequacy and effectiveness ofthe company's system and Internal oontral. 

Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems. 

. ‘Torevew the functioning of the Whistle Blower mechanism. 

Audit &other duties: 

1, Dlscusslon'with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature scope of audit as well as postaudit discussion te 
ascertainany area of concem. 

Discussion with internal auditors af any significant findings and fallow up there on. 

Review and recommend to the Board the appointment) reappointment of the Statutory Auditors considering thelr Indepandenca and 
elfectiveness.and there replacement and removal: 

4, Torécommend tothe Board the remuneration ofthe statutory auditors and internal auditars 

5. To grant approval for related party transactions which are in the ordinary course of business and on an arms Jength pricing basis and 
to review and approve.suich transaction subject to the approval ofthe Board. 

Present Composition of the Audit Committee 

Mr, Mano] Ghhawehharia Ghalrman Independent, Non Executhts Director 

Mir, Gopal Mar Memier ladependent, Neon Executive Director 

Mir, Sandip Chatterjes Memner Indegencent, Non Executive Director 

Mr, Sunay Mrishra Khaiten Merber Whale Time Director: 

Mrs; Sujata Chaiterjee Member Independent, Mon Executhe Director 

During the year under review the.commitiee comprised of four independent directors & ane whole time director. Al of whom are financially 

|herate-and have refevant finance and jor audit expdsure. The Statutory Auditors; Internal Auditors and other relevant Senior Management 

Persons of the Gompany are Invited to attend the meetings of the Audit Committee. The Company Secretary of the Company acts as 
Secretary tothe Committee Mr. Manel Chhawehharia Ghalrman of the Audit Committee also attended the tast Annual General Meeting of 

the Company hed on 2oth September, 2023, During the period under reviesy, five Audit Committee mestings were bald on 30th May, 2024, 
2iat. July,2029, 11th August, 2023, 09th November, 2023, 12th February, 2024, . The composiion of the Audit Committea and 

attendance at its meetings as follows: 

Members Designation Category poctab lira atnenprtcegic | 

Mr. Manoj Shhanwehharia Chairman Independent, Man Execute Director 5/6 

Mr Sunay Mrishna Khaitan Member lndependent, Nan Executive Director 4i5 

Nir, Gopal Mor Member Independent, Nan Executive Director 5/5 

Mr. Sandip Chatterjee Member Independent, Non Executive Director 5/5 

Mrs: Sujata Chatterjee Member Independent, Non Executive Director 5/6 
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: (cont) 

Nomination & Remuneration Committee: 

Thetenns of reference of the commuttee are fallows: 

1. Formulation of the criteria for determining quadifications, positive and independance of a director and recommand the Board & 

policy, relating te the remuneration ofthe directors, key managerial personnel and other employee, 

Formulation of criteviafor evaluation of Independent Directors and the Board 

Devising a polley on Board diversity, 

Indenthying persons who are qualified ta become directors and who may be appointed in senior management In accordance with 
the criteria aid down, and recommend io the Board their appointment and removal, 

The remunetation policy as adopted by the company anvisages payment of ramuneration according to qualification, exparance and 
performance at different levets of the organization. The workers atthe factory as well es those rendering clencal, Administrative and 
professional services-are paid as perthe Agreementwiththe Union, Remuneration fs pabld to awhobe ime director at present. 

Present Composition of the Nomination & Remuneration Committes: 

Mr, Maro] Ghhawechhan Chairman Independent, Non Executive Dlrectar 

Mer Gopal Mar Member Independent, Non Executive Director 

Mr, Sapdio Chatterjes ile rceer Independent, Non Executive Djrectar 

Mrs, Sujsta Chaiterjes Member Independent, Non Executive Director 

During the year under review the committee comprised of four independent directors.and other relevant Senior Management Persons of 

the Company are imatedic attend the mestings of the Audd Committees, The Gampany Secretary cf the Company acts as Secretary to 

theCommittesMr. Manoj Ghhawchharia Chairman of the Nomination & Remuneration elso altended tite lest Annual General Mesting of the 

Company held on 24th September, 2022 During the penod under review. Three Nomination & Remuneraton Committee meetings were 

held on Sth May, 2023, 21st July, 2023 and 17th August, 2023. The compesiticn of the Nomination & Remuneration Committee and 

attendance atits meetings as follows: 

Members Designation Category rides. Sansone 
Mr, Mano] Chhawebhari Chairman Independent, Nan Executive Director 3/3 

Mr, Gopal Mar flember Independent, Non Executive Director 3/3 

Mr, Sapdio Chatterjee Member Independent, Non Executive Director 33 

firs. Sujata Chatterjes Member Independent, Non Executive Director 33 

Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee: 

Present Composition ofthe Stakeholders Relationship Committee 

Me. Mane] Ghhawebhar Ghainman lndepandent, Neon Executive Blrector 

Mr, Gopal Mar Member Independent, Neon Execullve Director 

Mr, Sapdio Chatterjes Marner’ lndependent, Non Executive Director 

Mr, Sunay Krishna Khaitan idember Whaote Time Director 

Mrs. Sujata Chatterjee Marmber Independent, Non Execute Birector 

During the year committee met Three times ie. 30th May, 2023, 17th August, 2023, 21st September 2023, 02th November, 2023 and 

78th January, 2024, The compasitian ofthe Gammittee and attendance at lis mesiing as follows: 

Members Designation Category pops donne rsp 
Mr Manoj Chhawehharia Chalrman Independent, Non Execute [irectar 5/5 

Mr Sunay Krishna Khaitan Member Whole Time Director 4'5 

Mr. Gapal Mor Member Independent, Non Executive Director 5/5 

Mr Sandip Ghatterjee Member Independent, Nen Exeoutive Director 5/5 

Mirs. Sujate Chatterjes Member Independent, Non Executive Director 5/5 
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: (cont) 

Mr. Ankit Sugandh Company Secretary was the Compliance Officer during year under review, He performed the function of monitoring the 
complaints recetved vis-a vis Share trangter and other related processes: and reported them ta: the Board, He also carried out his 
responsibility as faison officer with the investors and regulatory authorities, such as SEBI, Stock Exchange, Registrar of Companies in 
respect of implementing laws, rule.aind regulations and directives of such authorities cancerning investor seryice and complaints: 

During the Financial Year 2023-24, the company had receryed no complaint from the shareholder and the company successfully radressed 
the same, 

Independent Directors’ Meeting 

During he year under review, the Independant Directors maton 12th February, 2024 Inter alla to- discuss: 

1, Review of performance of Non- Incependent Director and Board as whole. 

2 Review of performance ofthe Chalperson of the Company, taking Inte account ihe view of Executive Director and non execuittve 

directorand non executive diractor, 

3. Assesa the quality, quantity and timeliness of fiow of intanmation between the company management and the Board that is 
necessary forthe Board of effectively and reasonably perform thelr duties, 

Annual evaluation of the Board, Its Committees and Individual Directors 

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 20713 and SEB! LODA Reguiallans, the Board has caried out an annual performance 
evaluation ofits own performance; of the Directors individually; as well as the evaluation ofthe Committees, 

The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has devised criteria for evaluation ofthe performance of the Directors Inciding the 
Independent Directors and the same has been approved by the Board, The performance evaluation of the Independent Directors was 
carted out by the entire Board, excluding the Director being evaluated. Independent Directors fulfil the criteria of inclependence and they 
are independentat management, The performance evaluation of the Ghaiman and non-independent Directors was also canied out bythe 

Indépendent Directors at thelr separate meeting. The Directors expressed thelr satisfaction withthe evaluation process, 

Formalion of Polley tor selection and appolniment of Olrectors Including Independent Director KMP/Senior Management 
Personnel 

Thea nominailon and Remuneration Committee discussed and there atter decided upon the policy for selection and appalnimant af 

directors and thelr remuneration, The highlights ofthe polley areas follows: 

i Person of eminence; standing and knowledge with sufficient achievements in business, professions and jor public-service. Their 

financial and business Hteracy/skill. 

i) Relative Industry experience 

i} To build tearvend carry the team members along for achieving the goals! objectiver and comparate mission. 

Remuneration Polley 

To ensure that the level and components of remunerations is reasonable and sufficient to attract, retaln and motivate Directors, KMP and 
otheremployees of the quality in run the company successfully, 

To ensure thet relationship of remuneration to performance is clear and meets appropriate performance benchmark. Improved 

performance should be rewarded, 

Remuneration packages should strike abalance between fixed and incente pay, where ever aoplicable. 
Toensure thal the remuneration structure is simple and cost ta-company (CTG} isnot shown inflated. and effective take home oay isnot low, 

Corporate Social Responsibility 

The Company hes not developed and implemented any Corporate Social Respongibility Initiatives as the sald provisions are nat 
applicable. 

Related Party Transaction 

All transaction entered Into with Related Parties as defined In SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Heguiation, 2015 
during the financial year Under reviewed were in the ordinary course of business and do not altract the provisions of section 184 of the 
Companies Act 2013. There were no materially significant iransactions with related panties during the financial year which were in cantlict 
with the interest of the Compeny, Suitable disclosure-as. required by the Accounting Stendard (45-18 hes bean meade the in the notes-to 
Financial Statements. 

The Board has epproved a policy Tor related party transactions which hes been reported on the campany's website, 

Prevention of Insider Trading 

The company hes always ensured fair code of conducl for prevention of insider Trading with 6 view to reguisted trading securities by the 

Directors and designated employees ofthe company, 
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: (cont) 

Compliance with Accounting Standards 

in the: preperation to the Financial Statement, the Gompany fas followed the Accounting Standards notified pursuantin Companies 

{Accounting Standards! Rules, 2006 jas amended) and the relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2073 read with General Girtular, 
2014 dated April 04,2014, issued by the Ministry of Corporate Migirs,; The: significant aceounting policies which are consistently applied 

have been set outin the Notes to the Financial Siatemant. 

General Body Meeting 

Details of lest three Annual General Meetings and the Special resolution passed thereat are ax follows: 

YEAR LOCATION DATE TIME Whether Special Resolution Passed 

Through Video Ganferance 

2022-2023 | 2 Registered Office 2omnai2028 11.30 4M YES 

Through Video Conference 2021-2022 | . Registered OM 24/09/2022 11.30.4.M YES 

Thraueh Video Conference 
at Registered Office 30/08/2021 11.20.4.M NO 2020-2021 

CEO!/CFO Certification 

The Executive Directar and Chief Financial Officer have Issued certificate pursuantio Regulation 17/8) of the SEB! (Listing Obligations and 

Disciosure Requirements) Regulation 2015 ceritying that the financial siatement donot contain.any materially untrue staiementand these 

Statement represent a true ang fairview ofthe companys aifalrs, The sald certificate Ss annexed herewith. 

Code of conductfor Board members and Senior Management 

Avcode of conduct as applicable tothe Directors andthe members of tha senior management was approved by the board and the same is 

being duly abided by all of them, Declaration tthis effect was obtained fromthe Executive Director and is annexed herewith, 

Compliance Certificate 

Compilance Cerificate far corporate Governance fram auditors of ihe company is annexed herewith. 

Means of Communications 

The quartertyhall yearly) anneal un-audited! audited financial results ofthe company are posted to the stock exchanges immediately after 

they are approved by the Board of Directors and-are published in “The Echo of India; Kolkata, English Mewspaperand published in *Arhik 

Lip! Kolkata, Bengali Newspaper. 

Management discussion & Analysis 

The Management Discussion and Analysis Report (MD-& AR) is pertof this report is. provided senarmiely. 



iclneattease’ (india) Limited 

REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: (cont) 

General Shareholder Information 

a EVENT 87" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 

Made of Meeting VIDEO CONFERENGE (VC) GR-OTHER AUDIO-VISUAL MEANS (GAVM 

Day Friday 

Date 27" September, 2004 

Mesting Commencement Time 17:20 AM 

Place Kolkata: 

b Date of Book Closing 21* September, 2024 to 27" September, 2024 

c Financial Year 203 04. 

d Dividend Payment Date Dividend has not been recommended 

The National Stock Exchange of India Limited (NSE-Indla) 
Exchange Plaza, Bancre-Kurla Gamplex, Bandra (East). 
Munmbai-— 400 001 

The Bombay Stock Exchango Limited (BSE-India) 
Phiraze Jeejeebnoy Tayers, Dalal Street, Mumbai — 400.051 

2 Listing on Stock Exchanges (The shares of the Company are traded in permitied category at 
BSE Limited} 

Calcutta Stock Exchange Limited (CSE-India) 
7, Lyons Range, Kolkata — TOUR 
{The Company had applied for delisting wrth 
the Calcutta Stock Exchange Lid. which ls sending) 

NSE Symbal KHAITANLTD 

t Stock Gode BSE Security Code SoOoGH 

ISIN INEF31C01018 

Results for the quarter ending 

First Quartery Results Before August 14, 20d 

q Grandia! Calendar 2024 -9095 second Quarterly Results Before Novernber 74, 2024 

Third Quarterly Results Before February 14, 2025 

Audited Yearly Results for the yeer 
ending March 31, 2025 

Before Mey 30, 2025 

Marke: pice data- high, low during 

month jn last financial year 

NSE-KHAITANLTD NSE-NIFTY 50 
Month = Year 

HIGH Low HIGH LOW 

April - 2023 63.50 35:05 18,114.65 | 16,824.70 

May - 2023 61.16 42.50 17,142.85. 15,735.75 

June 2025 50.55 38.60 f6,799.85 | 15,182.40 

July - 2023 AgTS ago 1747e2eo | 15,557.05 

August = 2023 55.40 44.65 i7.g92.20 | 17,154.80 

Septamber- 2023 52.00 43.05 18,096.15 | 16,747.70 

October - 2023 52-15 42.50 18,022.80 | 16,854.55 

November - 2023 73.00 36.55 18,816.05 | 17,959.20 

December - 2023 64.90 46.00 18,687.60 | 17,744.25 

Januery - 2024 53.60 46.00 18,261.95 | 17,405.55 

February - 2024 50.50 4515 tB,134,75 | 17,255.20 

larch - 2024 45.70 44.60 17,772.05 | 16,828.25 
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: (cont) 

According to Category 

Shareholders Shares 
Category 

Nos. % Nos. %. 

Promoters Group WW 0.20 2867630 60.24 

(}} Distribution of Shareholding as Bank, Financial Institution z 0.04 124 0.03 

31" March, 20a Private Gorporete 43 O77 These a3 

NA 2B 0.50 13772 a29 

Indian Pubic Sarr 55.31 1Gg5936 a6.49 

Other! Clearing Members io 0.18 29196 0.62 

Grand Total Sor 100.00 4750000 100.00 

Pattern of Shareholding 

No of Shares Shareholders Shares 

Nos, be Nos. % 

Upta Ta 500 S174 2.84 Sarat 12.39 

501 To 1000 213 a.82 1 Faoae 3.70 

(i) Pattern of Shareholdings as on rTaet | Ta 2000 ar 1.56 194565 2.83 

$71" March, 204 oot To 3000 a4 0.43 Base 127 

g001 Te 400 a 0.16 1863 O.8T 

4001 Ta So007 6 0.09 24003 0.57 

5001 Ta e000 1? 0.34 1a4087 2.84 

if0G1 | and above 42 0.75 aa02603 75.85 

Grand Total 5571 100,00 4750000 400.00 

| Registrar and Share Transtar Agents 

Mis. Maheshwar Datamaties jp) Ltd, A. NW. Mukherjee Read, 
§" Floor, Kolkata — 700001 
Phone: 093-2243 5099/5609, 2248-2948, Paw33-2048-4787, 
Emall: mdplde@yahoo.com 

k | Share Transter Sysiem 

SEBI has mandated that wed. ist April, 2079, shares shail betransterred only in 

demat form. The request far share transfer inphysical form received up-to 31st 

March, 2019 Were processed andtransferred by Registrar and Share Transfer 

Agents in acconancesith SEBI circulars in this regard and the share certificates 

werersturned within the stipulated period, f the documents wereaccurate jn all 

respects. Mo fresh requests for transfer of sharesin physical form can be lodged 

oy the shareholders. 

Stakehalders' Relationship Committees has delegated powerst Aagistrar end 

Shere. Transfer Agents to effect requests foriransmission, mame deletion, 

duplicate share certificates, sic 

} | Denmaterlalization of Shares and liquidity 

Tha Company's shares ara compulsorily traded iin demateralized form and are 
available for trading undar both Depository Systems. NSDL and GOSL as on 

47.03.2024 2 total of 4928500, Equity Shares of the Gompany were held In demat 

mode and is highly liquid. 

QOuistanding GDRs! DAs Warrants or any 
m | -convertinle instruments, conversion cata 

and impact an equity 
MHL 

n Plant Location Khaitan Nege, Plassey, Dist; Nadia, West Bengal 

Address jor Gomespondence / Investor 

Correspandence 

Secretarial Deparment 

Khaitan (incia) Limited 

466, J. L. Nehru Road, Kolkate 

Prone: (032) 40505000, Emad: vilsugarahgmail.com 
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE: (cont) 

Disclosures: 

()) The compeny hes alueys ensured falr code of conduct and maintained transparency, There are neo trancections of the Campany-of 
material nature with promoters, diracton:, subsidiaries orretatives etc. which would have potential complaints with the Interest of the 
Company allarge. 

(i) In accordance with requirement of Companies Actas wall listing agreement. vigil machanism hee. been adopted by the-board of 
directors and eccardingly a Whiste Blower Policy hes been formudaied with a view to provide a mechani¢m for employees af the 
company toepproach intemal 4udtar of Chairman ofthe Audit Commities of the Company to report any grievance. The same has 
been uploaded on Company's website, 

(i) The Gompany has-compled vith variabs ruleé-and regulation prescribed by ine Stock Exchanges, Securities and exchange Board 
of india or other statutory aulhority relation to the capital markets during tha last3years. No strictures hayes beer impased by them an 
the Gampany. 

iv) The Board has-cbtained certificate’ disclosure from hey Management personnel confirming they do not have any material financial 
and commercaal interest in transaction wan the Company stlarge. 

(tv) The Gompany ig complying-with few of the non mandatory requirement and shail endeavor to company balance non mandatory 
requinaments.; 

(vi The Gompany heé no subsidiary hence no polity on dealing is requireto be disclosed. 

he) Commodty price nsks and cammodny hedging activities, enotepplicatle to ihe campany, 

(vn) The company is in. compliance of requirement of corporate governance report of sub-pares (2) to (710) 

{i The company the distretionary requirements a2. specified in PartE of Sehedutell rave been adopted. 

(3) The Company has complied with all relevant indian Actounting Standards notified by the Companies (Inidian Aecounting Standards} 
Rules, 2016, a6 amended, while preparing the Financial Statenrenta, 

$0) There ere/were.no-pecuniary retationships or transactions of Non-Executive Directors vie-é-vis the Company which have or could 
have potential conflict with the interests ofthe Company allarge. 

(ai) The Compeny has voluntary complied with Corporate Goyemance Requirements specified in Regulations 17 te 27 and Regulation 
46/2) (b) to () of CODA Regulations. 

(aii) All recommendations of the Board Committees made during the year were accepted by the Board, There were no instanoas of any 
disagreement Detweenthe Committees and the Board, 

Forand behalfaftne Board 

Suney Krishna Khaitan 
Place: Kolkata Executive Oi-ector 

Date: 28 day of May, 2022 (Dan: OF 585070) 

Declaration Regarding Code of Conduct 

The Board of Dlrectars 

Khaitan (india) Limited 

This is to confirm that the company has received affirmation of compliancewith “The Code of Conduct for Directors and Senior Executive" 

from all the Directors and Senior Exacuthyes.of fhe Company to whom the same [s applleable for the year ended $1 .0a,2024 

For and behalf of ive Board 
Sunay Krishna Khaitan 

Place: Kolkata Executhé Director 
Gate : 29" day of May, 2024 (Dir: OFSESO70) 



CFO/Executive Director Certificate 

The:Board of Directors 

Khaitan (India) limited 

We hereby certify that: 

a) Wie have reviewed the financial statements and cash flow stafement forthe year ended 21st March, 2024 and to the best of our 

knowledge anc belief: 

i} these statements do pot contain any matenally untrue statement or omit any material fect afcontain statements thet might be 
misleading: 

i} these statements present a true and fair view of the Company's affairs and are in compliance with existing Accounting Standards, 

applicable laws and regulations; 

6) To the Gest of our knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year ended 31st March, 2004 are 

fraudulent, illegal of violate of the Gompenys-code-of conduct, 

c) We accept raspansibiiity far establishing and maintaining intemal cantols for financial reporting and we have evaluated the 
effectivensss of intemal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting. Deficiencies in the cesign.or operation of 
such intemal controle, f any, of which we are aywere have been disclosed tothe auditors and the Audit Committee and steps we have 
beentaken or propose ta take in. rectly these deficiencies. 

d) We have indicated tp the auditors and the audi committee 

fh) Significant changes In Internal central during the said financial year. 

i) Significant changes in accounting policies during the said financial year and that same have been discloged in the notes ta the 
financial statements and 

i} Instances of significant fraud of which we heve become aware and the involvement therein, any of the management ar an 

amployee having: significant role in company's intemal control system. 

Thanking You, 

Sumit Pasari Sunay Krishna Khaitan 
Place: Kolkata Chief Financial Oticsr Whole Time Director 
Date: 29" day of May, 2024 (PAN: APBPPS1s4\) (Din: OFS85070} 



Sclecattean’ (india) Limited 

Independent Auditors Report 

To 
The Members 

Khaltan (india) Limited 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Qualified Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statement of Khaitan (india) Limited (the “Company® which comprise the Balance Sheet as 

at) March, 2024, and the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income}, Statementol Changesin Equity and the 
Statement of Cash Flows forthe year then enced, and notes: to the financial statements, including a summarny of significant accounting 

policies and other explanatory information (Financial Statement). 

Inour dpinion and to the best of bur information end acoording to the explanations given tows, the aforesaid Financial Statements give the 
informegion required by the Gampenies. Act, 2073 ("the Act”) in the manner so required-and give a true and fair view subject to qualification 
@S mention in the basis for qualified apinion paragraph, in conformity with {he accdunting principles generally accepted in India including 
the indian Accounting Standerds specified in the Companies (indian Accounting Standards) Rule 2015 (asemended) under section 133 ct 
the Act, of the State of affairs of the Company as af 31 March 2024, and net profit (including other comprehensive income), changes lin 
equity and its. cash flows forthe year ended an that date. 

Basis for Qualified Opinion 

Reference ié Invited ta Note No — 47 to the financial results regarding Prodiiction activity of the suger mill of the company is continued tobe 
under suspension fora long time after incurring heavy Insses. The production activities could not be resumed during the cuirent year 
because of Un-remunerative selling prices and high cost of production. However, the company ls hopeful that in future because of the 
VerioLis Measures evisadged the pasition may improve. therefore, forthe time being company has not considered tha businses.ofsugaras 
discontinued operation. 

Ne conducted oul! auditinabcordance with the Standards on Auditing (S45), as specified Under Section 144/10) ofthe Companiés Act, 
2013, a8 amended (the Act), Our responsibilities under thase Standardé ara further described in the "Auditors Responsibilities for the 
Auditolthe Financial Results" section of aurraport. We are independent ofthe Company In accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India tagether with the-ethical requirements that and relevant to our audit of the financial 
Statements Under tha pnowlsions of the Ast and the Auléé thereunder, and we have fulfilad aur other ethical mesponsibiitias In accordance 

with thase raquiremants and the Gode of Ethics, We believe that the audit avidance obtained by us is sufficientand appropriate to provides 
basis for duropinian: 

Material Uncertainty related to Going Concern 

Wee-drew attention to Note no. 50 of the financial statements which Indicatss that the The company has incurred Imsseg upto the halt year 
ended 30th Septembar2o22 and alécin the immediately preceding few financial years, a6 such the networth ofthe company has reduced, 

However, dueto various business improvement mlated measures undertaken by the company, I-has eamed net profits for the financial 

year 2029.99 and 2023-24, The manageniert is hopetul of improved results in eubsequent pertoda/ years too, aa such theaccaunis ofthe 
company have been prepansd.on going concern basis, 

Emphasis of Matter 

Without modifying our opinion attention is-drawntotollowing matters: 

8) Asference is invited to Note No_-51 tofinancal staternents, balances of (rade recelvables, trade payables, loans and advances, claims 

recoverable are subjectto reconciliation and confirmation, 

Key Audi Matters 

Key alicit matters are those matters thal, in cur professional judgment, were-of most significance In our atdit of the ind 4S financial 

statements forthe financlal year ended 31st March, 2024, These matters wera addressed In the context of our audit of the Ind AS financial 
Statements asa whole, and in forming our opinion theron, and we de not provide a separmste opinion on these matiers: For each matiar 
below, our description of how auraudlacdressed the matters provided in that contest, 
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Independent Auditors Report: (cant) 

Key Audit Matters Auditor response to key sudit matters 

Revenue Recognition 

As disclosed In note 2(nv) of the financlal statement, revenue ls 
fecognized -at ihe fair value of consideration received or 

tecenable when the significant risk, rewards-and ownership of 

the goods have been transhirred and the amount thersotican be 

Mrieasured rellably, This represents the net Invoice value of 

Goods supplied to third parties aiter deducting trade discounts, 

fatuirné, Volume febatesand outgoing awe ard bs inclusive of 

packing charges: 

Alyearend, amounts for volume based discounts, rabates'‘and 
other promation Incentives that have been Incurred and not 

provided to the customers are estimated and accrued. VWe have 
considered this a3.a key audi matter on account of significant 

judgement and estimate Involved lin calculation af provisian for 
such discounts, rebates and other promotion Incerthres as at 

the Balance Sheet date, 

Our audit procedures inciuchect 

* Understanding the process followed by the Company to 

determing the amount of accrual for discounts and 

rebates. 

* Evaluating the design and implementation-and tesiing 

operating effectveness of Company's. general IT 

contrels, key manual and application controls over the 

Cotiaany's IT systems Including controls over rabaies 

‘agreements! arrangements, rebate payments; 

Setilemens anc Company's tevlevy over the rebate 

accruals, 

* Inspecting on 2 sample basis, key customer contracts: 

Based on the terms and coridillons mlating to discounts 
and rebates, assessing tha Company's revenue 

fecognition policies with refarenceto the requirements 

ofthe applicable accounting standards. 

* Performing substanthe testing -by selecting samples of 

discounts and rebates transactions recarded during the 

year as well as period end discounts and rebates 

accrials and matching the parameters used in the 

computation withthe relevant source document. 

* Examining historical rebate-discount accrua! together 

\withrour understanding of current year developenents to 

for an expectation af the rebate-discount accrualas at 

yearend and comparing this expectation against the 

actual rebate-discount accrual, completing further 

Inquiries and obtaining underlying documentation, ara 

sample bagis, as aporopriate. Further, we. also 

perfontied retrospective review to evaluate the precision 

withwhich management makes estimates. 

Provisions and contingent liabilities 

The (provisions and contingent llabillies relate to: ongoing 

litigatians and claims with various authorties and third parties. 

és atthe year ended 31 March-2024-, ihe determination ofa 

provision or contingent liability requires signiicant judgment by 
the Company because of the inherent complexity in estimating 

future costs. The antount recognized as a provision fs the best 
estimate of Ihe expenditure. The: provisions. and contingent 

liabilities are subject to changes in the outcomes of Iitigatlons 
and calms and the positions taken bythe Campary. 

itinvelves signifi¢ant|udgmentand estimation 

to determine the Ekelinood and timing of the cash outfiows and 

Interpretations of the legal aspects, fax legislations and 

judgments previously made by authonties, 

Ourauditorocedures included: 

* Understanding tha process followed by ihe Company 

for assessment-and determination of the amount of 

provisions and contingant® liabilities relating to 

taxation, liigations:and claims. 

* Evaluating the design and implementation and testing 
operaiing effectiveness af key internal contros 

around the recognition and measurement of 
provisions: and reassessment of contingent 

flabiiities. 

« — Involving tax professionals with speciallzed skills and 
knowlecge to assist Inthe assessment of the value of 

slonificant provisions and contingent liabilities 
relating to taxation matter, on sample basis, In Bight of 

the nature of ine exposures, applicable regulations 
and related correspondence with the authorities: 



Sciacatteaay’ (india) Limited 
Independent Auditors Report: (cont) 

Key Audit Matters Auditor response to key sudit matters 

Inquiring the status: In respect of significant provisions and 

contingent liabilties withthe Companys internal tax and legal 

team, Including challenging the assumptions and critical 

jiigments made by the Company which impacted the 
computation of the provisions and Inspecting the 

computation. 

Assessing the sesumptions Used and estimates of autcome 
and financial effect, Including considering judgment of the 
Company, supplemented by experience of similar decisions: 
previously made by the authorities and, in some ceases, 

relevant opinions given by the Company's advisors and legal 
counsels. 

Evaluating judgments made by the Company by comparing 
the estimates of prior year to the actual outcome. 

Evaluating. the Company's disclosures in the standalone 

financial statements in respect of provisions and contingent 
febaities. 

Information other than the Financial Statements and Auditors’ Report thereon 

The Gompany's managementand Board of Directors are-responsible for preparation of the offer information. The other informatian 

camprises the Infornation Included In the Directors’ report, Management Discussion & Analysis ete, but does not include the financial 
Stalemernts and our auditars report thereon. Such other Infarmation's are expected tn be made avallable te Us after the date of this-auditor's 

report, Our opinion. on the financlal statements does not cover the other information-and weode not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereen. 

In-eennecton wih our audit of the financial statements, our respansibllity ts to read the other Information identified as above when It 
becomes available and, In dalig so, consider whether the other information /s maternally Inconsistent with the financial statements.or our 

knowledge obtained inthe audit, or othernvise.cip pears te be materially misstated. 

When we read the other information, Wf we-.canclude that there is a material misstatement thereln, we are required to communicate the 
matter. to those charged with. govemance andtake aporopriate.actions necessitated by the clroumstances.and the anolicable laws-and 

regulations - 

Responsibilities of Managementand Those Charged with Governance forthe Financial Statements 

The Company's Board of Directors: is responsible for the matters-stated in section 144(5) of the Companies Act, 2018 ("the Act") with 

respHict to ihe pregaraiion of these financial statements that glve a true and fale view of the financial position, financtal performance, 
changes Inequity and cash flows of the Company In accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted In India, Including the 

Indian Accounting Standards (indAS) speciied undersectian 183.ofthe Act. 

This responsibility azo Includes malntenance: of adequale accourting récords in accordance with the provisions of the Act for 
safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and wither irregularities; selection and applloation of 

appropflate accounting policles, making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and ‘design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate intemal financial cantrols, that were operating efiectively for-ansuring the Seouraoy and completeness ofthe 

accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation ofthe ind 45 financial statements that give. atrue and falr view and are free 

from material misstatement, vehether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the findnelal statements, ihe Board of (Mrectorsis responsible for assessing the Company's ability to continue as a going 
concen, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem and using the going concer basis of accounting untess the Board of 

Directors ether intends to lquidate the Company of fo cease operations, of has no reallsile aitemathve butto dose. 

That Board of Divectors are also responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process. 

4} 
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Independent Auditors Report: (cant) 

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements. 

Our objectives are to abtain reasonable assuranoe about whether the financial statements. 45.4 whole.are free trom material misstatenvent, 

whether due to fraud or erron and to laste an auditor's regan that Includes:our opinion. Reasonable assurance ls a high level of assurance, 

but is nota guarantee that.an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 

Misstatements can arise from fraind of error and are conaidersd matertal #, Individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 

expected to influence the economicdecisions of eers taken on the basis of these financial statements. 

As part clan auditin accordance with SAs, we exercise professional jigment and maintain orofessional skepticism thraughaut the audit. 

Wealeo; 

® Identity and assess the risks of matedal misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud of error, design and perform 

audit procedures responsive to thase risks, and obtaln audit evidence that !s suffclent and appropriate provide a basis for our 
ooinian, The risk of mot detecting » material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than tar one resulting from error, as fraud 

may iInvolwe collusion, forgery, intentanal omissions, misrenreseniations, or the ovyenide of Internal control, 

® Obtain en understanding of internal cantroal relevant ta the aucit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
olreurnstances, Under Sectun 143(3) (I) atthe Campanies Act, 2019, we are alsa responsibte for expressing our opinion on whether 

the company has adaquate internal financial cartels system in place and the operating effectiveness of Such controls. 

® Evaluate ine appropriateness ol accounting policies used and the reasonableness ol accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management: 

. Concluce on the appropriateness of management and Board of Directors-use of the going concern basis of accounting in 

oreseratian of financial statemects and, based on the audit evidence cbtained, whether a material Uncertainty exists related to 
events or canditions thet may cest significant doubt on the Gompanirs ability io continue asa going concer. If we conciude that a 

material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw atfedtion in our auditors report to the related disclosures in the financial 
stetarmants or, such disclosures are inadenusite, to modify ouropinion: Qurconclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 

Up tothe date of our auditors reporl However, future events of conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue asa galing 

Concer. 

® Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 

financial slalements represent the underlying tangactions and events ina manner that achiaves fair presentation, 

Materiality is the macnitude of misstatements in tha standalone financial statements that, Individually orin aggragals, makes it probable 
thatthe economic decisionsof areasonably knowledgeable user of ine standaiona financial statements may be influenced. Ve consider 

quantitallve materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our auditwork and in evaluating the results of our wark, and (IE to 
evaluate ihe ettect of any identified misstatemants inthe standalone financial staternent 

We communicate with those charged with govemance ragarding, arnong other matters; ihe planned scope ane timing of the audit and 

significant auditfindings, including any sionificant deficiencies in intemal control that we Idantify during our audit. 
We also provide those charged with govamance witha statement that we have complied with rtevant ethical requirements regarding 

independence, and to communicate with them all velationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our 
independence, and wheréapplicable, related safeguards. 

From ihe maitiers communicated with those charged with governance, we deternine those matters-that were of most significance in the 

audit of the standalone financial étatements of the current period.and ara tharafora the key. audlt matters, We deseribe (hase malters In our 

auditor's ragort-unless law of regulation precludies-public-disclasure-abaut the matter or when, in extremely rare crcumetanons, we 

determing that a mattershould not ba communicated in our report becavee the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be 
expected to outwelgh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Report on Olher Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

Hi] As required by the Companies (Auditors Report) Onder, 2026 (“ihe Order"), Issued by tha Central Government of India In terms of 
section 143(11) of the Companies Act, 2013,-and onthe basis of such checks of the books and records of the Company as we 

considered appropriate and according to the information.and explanations given to us, We glve In “Annewure A’ a statement on the 
matiers soecied in paragraphs dand 4 of the Order, to ihe extent applicable, 



Sclecattean’ (india) Limited 
Independent Auditors Report: (cont) 

ih} Asrequired by section 1435/3) ofthe 4ctand based on Gurauditwe reportthat 

@) We have sought and obtained all the Information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and bellef were 

Necessary torthe purposes of our audit. 

Bb) In our oplnlen, proper books of account.as required by law have bean Kept by the Company so far as It appears from our 

oeamination ofinese books : 

é} The Balance Sheet, the statement of Prafitand Logs Including Otver Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in Equity 

and ihe Cash Flow Statement deait with by this Reporters inagreement with ihe books ofaecount. 

q) Incuropinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified undersection 132 af the Act, read with Aue? 

ofthe Gompanies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, 

é@) On the basts ofthe written representations recefred from the directors aon O7st March, 2024 taken on record by the Board of 
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified ag dn 31st March, 2024 from being appolnted as a director In terms of Section 

164(2) of fhe Act 

f} With respect to the adequacy of the Internal financlal controls ever financial reporting of the Gompany and the operating 

effectiveness of such controls, referto our Separate Report in “Annexure 8". 

9) With respect to the mater tobe Included Inthe Auditors Report In ouropinion and to the best of our Information and according 

to the explanations given to us, the remuneration pald by the Company to lis directors during the year |s Inaccordance with the 

provisions.of section 197 read with Schedule V te the Act In respectof one director, aggregaie remuneration of Ais, 14,08,012/- 

pald provided during the yam, Is sublectto the approval of the Members atthe forthcoming Annual General Meeting. 

hy With respectio the other matters to be Included fn the Auditor's Report in accordance with Rule 17 ofthe Companies (Audit and 
Auditors) Pubes, 2074, as amended, in our opinion and te the best of our infomation and according to the explanations given te 

Us 

1. Reference to the Note no 36, the Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations as at dist March, 2024 on its 

financial position in its financial statements In accordance with the generally acoepted accounting practios in the financial 

Stalements, 

2 The Company did not heave any fongetenm contracts ingluding derivative contracts for whith there were any material 

fordgeenbleiosseg, : 

3. There were no amaunts, which were required.to be transfered to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 

Company, 

4. (]) The management has represented that, to the best ofits knowledge and beliel, nofunds have been advanced orlopned 

or invested (either from bomowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kinchottunds} by the Company ta.orin 

any other persons of entities, including foreign entities ("Intermedianes'}, vith the understanding, whether recorded in 
wring or otherwise, thatthe Intennediear-shall: 

- directly or indirectly lend orinvest in other persons or entities identified inany manner wheteoever (“Ultimate 

Beneficiaries") by oron behalf otihe Company or 

- Provide any gueraintes, security of theliketo oron behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiarias; 

(ii) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been received by the 

Company irom any persons orenttes, including foreign enttes ("Funding Parties"), vith the understancing, whether 
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall: 

- directly or indirectly, Jend or invest in other persons er entities identified in any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate 

Beneficiaries") by oron behalf of the Funding Party or 

> provide any guaranties, security orthe ie from oron behalf ofthe Lliimate Beneficiaries, and 

i} Based on such eudit procedures as cansidered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, nothing has comete 
‘our notice thet has caused us to believe thet the representations under sub-clause 44)) and 4jii) contain any material 
Thisstatement, and 
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5. Nodividend declared or paid during the year by the Comparty. 

Proviso to Rule 3(1) ofthe Companies (Accounts) Aules, 2074 for maintaining books cf account using secounting software which has 

a feature of recording auaii trail (edit. fog) fachity Is applicable to the Company with effect from 1 April 202d, and accordingly, 

reporting under Aule 11 ig) of Companies (Audit and Auditors! Aules, 2014s notapollcable for the financial year ended March 31, 

2024. 

HH] Based on our examination which Included test checks, the-company has used an accounting software far maintaining it bouks of 

aocount which has afeature of recoding audit trall (editiog) facility except thataudlt tal was nal enabled atthe database level ta log 

any direct changes for the accounting software used for maintaining the books ofta@ccount. Foraccounting- software for which audit 

trail feature it enabled, the avidit tail facility has been operating throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded In the 

sotvrare and we did not come acrass any Instance of audit trail feature being tampered with during the course of our.audit,\, 

For kK. C, Bhattacherjes & Paul 

Chartered Accountants 

FRA: S03G26E 

Blswajtt Datta 

(Partner) 
Membership Ho. 055582 
UDINE 
Place: Kolkata 
Date: 25th day of May, 2024 



IcPacattcan’ (india) Limited 
“Annexure AY referred to In paragraph {f} under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements” of owr 

Independent Auditars' Report of even date onthe financial statements of Khaitan India Ltd. forthe year ended 31 al March 2024, 

Interns of the infomation and explanations-sought by usand given: by the company and the books of account and records examined by 

usin the normal course of audit.and to the best af aur knowledge and belle, westate that: 

4 [ox (The Company |s malntaining proper regards showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of 
Property, plantand equipment 

I} The Company has-ne intangible assets. 

hb} | Accerding te the Information and explanations given to us and of the basie-of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has a regular programme of physical verification of its Property, Plantand Equipment by whichall 

property, plantand equipment are verified ina phased manner overapernod of three years. In our opinion, this parlodicity 
of pliysical verification ie reasonable having regard to the size ofthe Gompany.and the nature of its assets. In accordance 

with this pragranmme, certain property, plantand equipment were verllled during the year and same /é under the process of 
reconciliation with fixed asset register. Pending such reconciliation, discrepancies, any are notidentified and aqjusted. 

¢) | According to the information and explanations given te us, the records examined by us and based on the examination of 
the records ofthe Gampany, the lands measuring 8053.64 gores approximately are held by the company originally in the 

name of Rarmnager Gene & Suger Company Limited as per the arder no, 4672-L dated 12th March 1964 of Lend Astorm 
Branch, Land and Revenue Department, Government at West Bengal and thereatter the name of the company was 

changed ta Khaitan Agro Complex Limited as per the cerificate cfincorparation issued by the Registrarat the Companies 

an Ist October 1994, Further Mis Khaitan (India) Limited was amalgamated with Khaitan Agro Complex limited with effect 
fram bst Januar 198has per the onderof Hon'ble Calcutts High Gaurt dated 17th Ocinbert $94 and as perthe order otthe 

Court the name of the company was retained as Khaitan (India) Limited, The registrar of the Companies, West Bengal 

issued the Fresh Certificate of Incorporation on 14th November, 1094 and changed the name of the company from 
Khaitan Agra Comptes Limited to Khaitan (India) Limited. Subsequently the Government of Viest Bengal in its Caloutta 
Garetts published on 17th Anil, 1985, vide its Notification no. 186-0140 dated 24th march, 1905 issued by tha commerce 
and Industries Denertment, Group © made the amendments and substitute the Vord and brackets from Mhaitan Agra 
Complex Limited (Sugar Divisian}to Khaitan {india} Limited. 
Further. as per the letter issued by the Government af West Bengal, Memo No.- 158/BL & LAG/BelHii8 dated - 
19.04.2018, the "retainer" millis a "lessee" directly underthe State forsuch land with the tenmzand conditions soecifiedin 

rules made under section 48 ofthe WBELA Act, 1855, 
However, bated on legal acvioe, the managementis cf the opinion that pending completion of necessary legal formalities 

and resolution ofthe demands as madeby the Govemmentof West Bengal, the Company continued to consider the sald 
parcel of land freehold in character. 

Based on the examination ofthe sale deed / transfer deed / conveyance deed | the property tax receipts ets. we report that, 

the ttle deeds, of-all immovable properties disclosed in the financial statements included uncer Property, Plant end 

Equipment are heldinthe name ofthe Company 35 atthe balance sheet date. : 

‘The deeds of freehold tang measunng 2067.21 acres have been mortgaged with the lenders and es such were not made 

available to us for verification, 

d) ] According to the information and-explanations given ta us and on the basis of our examination ofthe records of the 
Campany, ihe Company has notrevaluated its Property, Plantand Equipment during the yeer. 

€) | Accordingte information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records ofthe Company, 

there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any Benami property under the Prohibition 
ofBenami Property Transactions.4ct, 1988 and mules made thereunder. 

a a) | The inventory mainly Including stocks lying with third parties that has heen physically Verified by the management during 
the year wherever poselble and written comirmations have been obtained from such parties. In our opinion, the frequency 

ef such verifeation Is reasonable and procedures and coverage 4s followed by management were appropriate. No 
discrepancies were noticed on vertication between Ihe physical stocks and the book records that were more than 10%Jn 

the aggregate of pach class of inventory In respect of such confinmations: Discrepancies of 10% or more In aggregate for 
each classof invertor were pot noted on physical verification of inventories. 

4) | Accerding te the Information and explanations given fo us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, ihe Company has not-been sanctioned any working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees. in aggregate 

trom banks and financial Instiutans on the basis of security of current assets al any polnl of iime ofthe year, Accordingly, 

Clause a(lii(b) ofthe Order ls notapplicabie tothe Company. 
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a According ta the information and explanations given to us.and on the basis of our examination of the secords of the 

Company, the Company has mot provided any quarantes or seourty or granted any ecvances In the nature of loans, 

Secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, llmited Habllity partnership ar any other panties during the year. The Company 

has made lnvestments in companies and granted secured and unsecured loans to companies and other parties, In 

respect of which the requisite Information ia as below, The Company nas not made any investments In of granted any 

loans, secured of Unsecured, to firs and limited liabllity parinership. 

Based on the audit procedures carried on by us and 25 per the information and explanations givento us, the Company has 

provided loans to any other entityas below; 

Amount in As 

Partioulars livesinents Loans 

Aggregate amaunt during the year ended $1 March 2024 

- Supsidianes 

- Others 2.45 73,243 

Balance cutstanding.as al balance sheet date 31 March 2023 

- Subsidiaries 

» Others 2,45, 79,545 > 

bh} According to the intonation. and explanatons given ta us and based on the audit procedures conducted by us, in aur 
Gpinion ihe investments made and the terms and conditions ef the grant of secured and unsecured loans are, prima lacie, 
not prsjucicial to the interest of ihe Campeny, 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination of the records of the 

Company, inthe case of unsecured loans given, the stipulated terms cf repayment of principal and payment of interest is 
on demand basis, Furthes, the Company nas not given any acvance in the nature of ican to.any pany during the year. 

According to the information and explanations given te us and on the basis of our examination of the records of ihe 

Company, there is ino overdue amount for more then ninety days in respect of Unsecured lnans given which fs repayable 

on demand. Further, the Company hes not given any advances in the nature of loans to any perty during the year. 

8) According to the Information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, here is no loan granted taliing due during the year, which has been renewed or extended ortresh ioans granted 

to settle the overdue of existing Inans given to same panies. Further, the Gampany has not given any advances in the 
nature of ioans te any party. 

According 0 the Inanmation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records af the 

Company, the Company has not granted any loans-or advances In the nature of loans eliher repayable on demand or 

withoutspectying any terms of period of repayment 

According to ihe information and explanations given to us and on the bas!s of our examination of meords ofthe Company, 

the Company has net provided any guarantee or security as spechied under Sections 185 and 186 ofthe Act. In respect.of 

the Investments made-and loans given by the Company, in cur opinion the provisions of Sections 185 and 186 of the Act 

have been complied with. 

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts, which are deemed io be deposits tom the public, 

Accordingly, dlawse atv} of the Order ls not applicable to the Company. 

We were unable to review the books of aocount malntainad by the Company In respect of the products where ihe 

maintenance of cost records has been spectied by the Central Government under Section 14804) of the Gompanties Act, 
2013 and the rules framed thereunder dus to the operation of Sugar Mibs was under suspension for more than 5 years and 

We are not able to express our opinion that whetherthe prescribed books of accounts and costrecords have been mace 

and maintained or nat. 

According te the Infannation and explanations given to us and on the basle ef cur examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company hat deen irregular indeposhing amouras deducted) accrued Inthe books ofaccountin respect 

of undisputed statutory dues Including Goods and Services Tax, Provident fund, income-Tax with the appropriate. 
authorities, 

According to the recards, ihe following statullory dues Were outstanding as at 31st March, 2024 fora period af more than 

more six months from the day they became payable are given below! 
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Amount (As.) Perlod to which the 
Nature of Statute Nature of Dues Arbount Relstes Bue Dates 

O14 2076 to State Tax Value Added Tax 27,82,785 50.06.2017 21st of Newt Marsth 

ba} Inauropinion and according to the information and =xpianaiions givento us, we confirm inat the following dues of Goods 
and Servines Tax, provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty ofcustoms, duty of 

excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory dues, have not been deposited towith the approprigie authority on 
eccountotany dispute, 

Period to whieh the | Forum where dispute 
Nature of Statute Nature of Dues Amount (Fis.) Amount Relates is pending 

Goods and Goods and O1.04.2079 to 
Serjice Tx Service Tax 88,08,158 31.07.2027 20th of Next Month 

According te the infannatian and explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination of the records af the 

Company, the Company hes not sumeandered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as.income in the 

books of account, inthe tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income curing the year. 

a) According to the infanmation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 

Campany, the Company has not defaulted In repayment ef loans to any financial institution, bank, Government or dues to 

debenture holders. 

5) According to the Information and explanations given to us-and on the basis of our examination of the records af ihe 

Campany, the Company has not been declared 2 wilful defaulter by any bank or finanelal Institution of government or 

government authority, 

According $4 the Infomation and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of ihe 

Company, the Garpany has nottaben any term loans from banks. 

According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of ihe 

Company, we report that no funds ralsed on shor-tenm basis have been usedtor long-term purposes by the Gampany, 

According te the information and explanations givente us and onan overall examination of the financial statements ofthe 
Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account ef or te meet the 

obligations of its subsidiaries or associates a3 defined under the Act. The Company does net hold any investment Im any 
joint venture (as-cefined undertheAct) curing the year ended 31 March 2024. 

écconding to the infarmetion end explanations given to us and procedures perfonmed by us, we report that ihe Company 
has notraisedinans during the yaar on the pledge of securities held in its Subsidiaries or associate companies (as defined 

under the Act), The Gompany does not hold any investment in any joint venture (as defined under the Act during the year 

ended 31 March 2024... 

10 The Gompany has notraised any moneys by way of initial pubic offer or further pubic offer {including debt instruments). 
Accordingly, clause 3(x) (a) atthe Order ip. not applicable to the Gampany. 

b} Zcconding to the information and-explanations given to us and on the basis of cur examination cf the records of ihe 

Campany, ihe Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or parily 
convertible debentures during tha year Accordingly, Gause Sfxi(b! of the Order is not applicable to ine Company. 

ah During the course of our examination of the books and racards of the Company, carried out in eccordance with ihe 

generally accepted suditing practices. m India and according te the information anc explanations given to us end 

representation abiainad from the management, no instances of fraud ay the Camoany of any fraud onthe company by its 

officers or aenployees heye been noticed or recorted during the year, 

b) According to the information and explanations given to ws, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 743 of the Act has 

bean filed by the auditors in Form £DT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 ef Companies (Audi aed Auditors) Rules, 2074 wath 

the Cantral Government 

According to the linformation and explanations glvan to ua, the company has pol received any whistle blower complains 

during the year Accordingly, clause 3(xilic) of the Order is. not applicable to the Company, 

12 According te the infomation and éxplanations given to us, the Company is nota Nidhi Company. 4ecerdingly, clause 

dixil) (a), (bo) and jc} ofthe Order ls net applicable to the Company. 

13 In our opinion and according te the Iniormetion and explanations given to us, the transactions with related partlas are !n 
compllance with Sectons 177 and 188 ofthe Act, where applicable, and the details of the related party transactions have 

been disclosed In the financial statements as required by the applleable accounting standards. (Refer mate no, 42 notes to 
financial statements) 

47 



= 

Independent Auditors Report: (cont) 

i4 ai Based on information and eaplenations provided tows and our audit procedures, in our opinion, the Company has an 
internal auditsystem commensurate with the sizeand nature ofits business. 

bi} Ve haveconsidered the intemal audit reports of the Company issued till dats forthe penod under aucit. 

15 Inouropinion and accerding ta the Information and explanations given tous, the Company has.not entered into-any mon 

cash transactions with its directors or persons conmecied to its directors-and hence, provisions of Section 182 of the 
CompaniesAct, 2013 are not applicableto the Gompany. 

16 The Company is not required to be- registered uncler Section 45-14 of the Reserve Bank of india: Act, 1994. Accordingly, 

Cause dhe" }{a) ofthe Order is notapplicable to the Company. 

by The Companyis notrequired to be registered under Section 45-14, of the Feserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, 

Clause 3/xyi}() of the Orderis ncotapplicable to ihe Company. 

&) The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) a= definedin the regulation mada by the Reserve Bank of India. 
Accordingly, clause Sbevil (cof the Onder is notapplicable tothe Gompany. 

According to the Information anc explanations provided to.us during tha course of audit, the Group fas per the provisions 
ofthe Core Investment Companige (Reserve Bank) Dinactions, 2075) does not have any OIG. 

Vf The Gompany has incurred cash bosses in the immediately preceding financial yaaramountingte Rs. 28,44,407_ 

1a Thera has: been no resignation of the statutory accditors during ne year 4ocordingly, clause dic) of the Order is: not 

applicable tothe Company, 

According to the information and explanations given to us and-cmn the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected 

dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial llabllities, other information accompanying the standalane 

financial stetements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based.on our examination ot 

the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has came to.aur attention, which causes usto believe thatany material 

uncertainty exists as on the date ofthe auditrenortthat Company is not capable of meeting its abilities existing atthe date 

of balance sheetas and when they fall due within.a period of one year irom ihe balance aheat date, Vie, however, state that 

this is notan assurance as tothe future viability of the Company. We further state thatourreportingis based on the facts up 

to the date of the audit report and we nelther give any guaranties nor any assurance that all llabilities falling due within a 

period ofone year fromthe balance sheet date, will get cischarged by the Company as and when they fall due, 

20 The-provision of Section 135 of the Companies-Act, 2013 nal is applicable on the Company, socorndingly, clause 

Sisxh(a) and fb) of the Order is aot applidabla, 

ai There is no consolidation of financial statements, accordingly reporting under clauge 3[xxl) Is notapplicable 

For K..C. Bhattacherfoc & Paul 

Chartered Accountants 

FRN: 303026E 

Biswajt Datta 

(Pariner) 
Membership No.: 055582 

JUDIM:240555RP BK CAWrosds 

Place: Kolkata 

Date: 29° day of May 2024 
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“AMNNEXURE B" TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT 

[Referred to in pereote h(i} f) under Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements in the Independent Auditors’ Report of 
even date onthe b AS finsne Statements of Khaitan (India) Limited.) 

Report on the Internal Finanelal Controls under Clause (]) of Sub-sectlon Jaf Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 ("the Act") 

We have audited the intemal fnanciat controls over financial reporting of Khaitan (india) Limited ("the Campany").a5 of 31 March 2024 in 

conjunction with ouraudit of the IndA3 financial statements af the Gampany for the year ended on that date, 

Managements Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls 

The Goripany's management is rasponsibia tor establishing and maintaining interna financial controls based on ihe internal control aver 
financial reper criteria established by the Gampany considering the essential components of intemal control stated In the Guidance 
Nets on Audit of internal Financial Controls over Financial Reoaoring issued by the Institute of Gharteread Accourtants of india PCAN, 
These responsibilities include the design, lis-eadbaiaoard and maintenance of adequate intemal financial controls that were operating 
effectively for ensuring iieoarderly and efficient conduct of ts business, including adherence to Company's policies, the safeguarding af its 
asseis, the prevention and detection of fraucs end errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation ofreiiabte financial information, as required under the Campanies Act, 2073, 

Auditors’ Responsibility 

‘Our responsibility: isto express an opinion on the Company's internal financial contrais over financial reporting based on owr audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Gonirais Over Financial Reporting, (the 
“Guidance Nate") and Standards on Auditing, issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. and deemed to be prescribed 
unde: secton 143(10) ofthe Companies Act; 2013, to the extent applicable to an. audit of intemal financial controls; both apolicable-ta an 
audit of Internal Financial Centrolssand, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance 
Note require thal.we comply with ethical requirements.and pian and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate intemal financial contrals over financial reporting was established and maintained-and if such contrals operaied aifecthely In all 
material respects, : 

‘Our audit involves performing procedures:to obtain sudit evidence about the adequacy of the intemal financial controls system over 
financial feporting and-their operating effectiveness..Our audit of internal financial controls over financial ang inclucted obtaining an 
understanding of internal financial conirots over financial reporting, as¢essing the risk that a material Ness @usts, and testing and 
evaluating the design.and operating effectiveness of intemal contral beged on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend onthe 
auditors judgment, including the assessment ofthe rss of material misstetement.ot the standalone Ind AS financial staiements, whether 
duets fraud or error. Vie we that the audit evidence we have obtained is ‘sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our:a.adit 
ooinion onthe Company's intemal financial controls with reference to financial statements. 

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting 

A cae apts internal financial control over financial statements sa process designed tn provide reasonable asturance regarding the 
refabiity of financsal bg rting end the the Fae of financial staiements tor exiemal purposes in eccardence with generally nocepiad 
accounting principles. A company's nema financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that 

1.. Pertain te the maintenance of records that, in rasonable detail, accurately and falirly reflect the transactions and depositions of 
the assets ofthe Company; 

2. Provide reasonable assurance that tYaneactions are recorded a& necessary to permit preoaration of financial statements in 
accordance with generally eccepted accounting principles, and that receipts and exqrenditures of the company are being made 
only ineccordance with authorizations af management end directors ofthe company; and 

3, Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthonzed acquisition, use, or disposition of the 
company sassets that could have a materiaietfect on hetinanclal statements. 

Inherent Limitations of Intennal Financial Controls ower Financial Reporting 

Because of the Inherent limitations ot internal financial controls over financial reporting, Including the possiblity af collusion or Improper 
management, overtide of controls, material misstatements due to erroror fraud may aocurand not be detected. Also, projections ata 
evaluation of the intemal financal controls aver financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that the intemal financial co 
over linancial reporting may bec inadequate because of changes In conditions, or hal the degres of compliance with the pollaes of 
procedures may deteriorate. 

‘Opinion 

In our opinion, to the-best of our Information and according to the explanations aWen ts us, the Company has, In.all materiatrespects, an 
adequate Internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such Intamal financial controls over financial reporting were 
ooeraiing effectively as.af 37 March 2024, based on the intemal control over financial reporting criteria established by he Company 
considering the essential components of intemal control stated in the Guidance Note-on Audit of Internal Financial Gontrots Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the institute of Chartered Accountants Of India. 

For K..C. Bhattacherjeo & Paul 
Chartered Accountants 

FAM: SO3n26E 

Biswajit Datta 

(Partner) 
Mambershit No: 055582 

UDI: 230555828 607GN9684 

Place: Kolkata 
Date: BS" May 2024 
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Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2024 (in Hundred) 

- As al As at 
Particulars Notes March-31,2024 March-31 2024 

ASSETS 

1. Mon-currontassats 
(a}Praperty, Plant end Bquipnien Bc 4,585, 008-16 4,641,077 :33 
(o) Capital workin-progress : - . 
(eo) Investreant proaerty 4 50,680.00 50,650.00 
iden ene - = 
(2) Biological Asge‘s ocnerthean bearer plants: 4 14,676.49 120,712.98 
(Financial Assets 

(1) Dieses a 245,799.43 245,709.43 
{E} Loans & Advances bd es - 
(ey) Other financial assets a 247,017 68 ‘146,207 82 

(g} Deferred Tax Assets (ret) c z 

(A) Other Mon-Curentassets 8 10,624.00 118,544.47 
A074 ett 5.412 580,74 

2  Conentassets 
(2) Inventeries 10 Bld 25 $56,985.19 
(ip) Financia! 4esete 

(i) Trade receivables . 1 B74 ,922.83 889,014.79 
(0) Cash ahd Cash eculveients 12 5, 190.08 21,559.97 
{fl} Loans 8. Advances 1a 245,708.59 718,854.68 

(eo) Other curentaseeats: 14 Bb 046.68 cee or 
1 18 Taz Bi. 

Total Aszets +355 bas | Fa af 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
4 EQUITY 

fal Equity Share Capital 15 475,000.00 475,000.00 
{e) Ciher Equity 16 1,549 489.55 4,388,195.64 
Total Equity 2,024,489. 4/863,1655. 

LIABILITIES: 
2 Non-current abilities 

ja} Firsrcial Liahilites : 
(i) Borrgiings 1 THG/450.25 808,775.73 

{o} Provisions 18 2508.4 25,860.26 
(¢) Other en-Current Liabitittes 13 TL TO. 72,590) 6a 

BEF 26900 771,326.62 
3. Current Liabilities 

{2} Financial Leabilities: 

(i) Borrowings: 20 ANE, 247 94 415,525.85 
(ei Trade Payables Z 
(A) total outstanding duce of micro enterprisee-and small anterprises O75, 165,72 4 G87 242.78 
(8) total outstanding dues of crediinrs other ihan mic anterprisesand 

Small enterprises 403807 57 $59,383.95 

(0) Other financial liebalties 22 744,094 Tag 220 47 
ib} Other Current Lishdities 23 926,804.21 1 274,676.80 
(o} Provisions at O05 65 14,003.05 

4 04 269.93 4,565,955.86 
Total Liabilities B08 525.73 Bar? 283.60 

Total equity aiid Nabilililes 6,882,008. 69 740478 34 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies tha 
Mates on Financial Stalements 3-56 

Tha accompanying notes refered to above form an integral part of the finance! statements: 

As per cur Report ofeven date attached Forandon Behalf ofthe Board of Directors 

For K.C, Bhatiacherjee & Paul 

Chartered Accountants 
Firm Regn. No. 3os026E Sunray K. Khaitan Sandip Chattopadhyay 

Director Director 
DIN: OF S8507G DIN | 06875010 

Blewajlt Datta 

(Partrerl Sumit Pasarl Ankit Sugandh 
Membership No. 058582 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
UBIM : 240555 SSB RCA Zeg44 

Place: Kolkata 

29th day of May, 2024 

PAN:-AFBPPSt ad PEN- GEHPS&491R 



eBacattcan’ (india) Limited 
Statement of Profit and Loss for the-year ended March 31, 2024 

(Zin Hundred} 
As at As at 

Parbeelne Notes | tareh-31,2024 | March-91,2028 

l Income 
Revenue ftom Operations 25 5,896,901. 6.945 562/55 
‘Cther Income 26 nee $7 er ages 
Total hicome i 

IL Expenses 
Costof matertal consumed ay - . 
Purchase of siock inbada A 13570 4750 6T63 
(Chan ge8 Minventories of finished goods, stack-in -trade and work-In-pmogrers 28 19,103.24 (185,773.46) 
Ernpimyee banetits aapanse : rt 687 G01 23 Ma 2a 
Finance costs . a0 287 97229 244 B26 Be 
Deareciaten | inpainment and Amarigaton avpendes 4 40,200.47 OF 145.16 
Othereeperses a 744,404.06 TRG, TTR 

Total Expenses 5, B22, 25.72 Béan R270 

I, -Profit')Less) before exceptional lem ortax (HI 133,999.20 87 Broo 

Exceptional hemd-Excess Depreciation of cerlier years + = 

VO Profitbefors tax (HV) 13,998.20 ‘G7 872.89 

VL Taxexpenses 33 

Gurmentiax . . 
Deherred lax written alt 4 = 

Total tax exqenses. = + 

vu, Profit (los) for the ysar from continued operations {V-VI} 433,008_20 BT A798 

VOL Profit’ (less) from discontinued operations " " 
IX Tatexpense for discontinued operations * * 
Profit (loss) from discontinued operations (after tax} - - 

XL Profil’ (loss) forthe year (WH+X) 133,908 20 67 brz.e9 

Xl. Other Comprehensive income 
A (i) Hams that will notbe reclassdiedto profit or ings. ; 

Remeasurerment ofthe defined benefit pian a2 a7 ,2T4.be 4q,07246 
(1) Income tex reteting to heme thatwd|l nat be recieseetied toproftorices 

Bol} hemethat will bereccassified io profitorinss 
(il) Ipeone tax relating te terns that will be rectassified tn profiterinss 

Other Comprehensive Income forthe yaar PPTs AG Greg 
SUL Profit! fees).6 other comprehensive Income for the year (KI+ X00) 161,279.72 114 45.47 

XM! Earmings per equity share of face value of Rs. 10 each (from conilnued 
operations} Er 
Basic 2.82 14 
Dilried abe 43 

Summary of Significant Accounting Poicies te2 

Motes on Financial -Stetorents. 3-65 

The accompanying notes refered ib above form an integtal par of the francaal 
Statements 

As per our Report of even date altached 

For K.¢. Bhattacherjee & Paul 
Chartered Accountants 

Fire Regn. No. 303026E Sunay K. Khaitan 
Director 

DIM:OFSE5070 
BiswajitDatta 
(Partner) Sumit Pasar 
Membership No. 055582 Chief Financlal Officer 
UDIN : a405558aBKCRWrDs4d PAN): AFBPPS1B4d 

Place: Kolkata 

23th day of May, 2024 

Forandon Behall ofthe Board of Directors: 

Sandip Chattopadhyay 
Director 
DIN | O887S010 

Ankit Sugandh 
Company. Secretary 
PAN: DEHPS8431F 
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(ee. 

Statement of Changes in Equity for the yearended 31st March 2024 

{a} Equity Share Capital (Fin Hundred) 

As at Ag at 

Particulars Montes: March-31, 2024 Marah 31, 2023 
Aumont iim Als. Amount in Rs. 

Balance e¢ ot the beginning of the year 16 476,000.00 475,000.00 
Changes in equity share capital due io por period errors + . 
Restated balance at the beginning of the year 476,000.00) 478,000.00 

i z 46 A _ 2 

Balance 6s at the end of the year 16 475, 040M) 475,000.00 

{a) Other Equity (Zin Hundred) 

Reserves and Surplus Other + 

Particulars Ganeral Retained Comprehensive A sie Rs 
Reserve Earnings income aa rie 

Balance we at Ist April 2022 TA08 R224) O85 TAR? (1,228, 658.65) 273,850.37 
Changes in-accoumting poliey! perior perod errors. = - - a 
Restated balance es at let Apol 222 {SOG 5624 | $6,746.92 (1228,658.60) 4,273, 650,37 
Profit | (Loss) for the year - 67,872.99 . BF are oo 
Other Gomerehensive income for the year 7 46 572.48 a6 AT 2dk 
Total Comprehensive income for the year 1,506, 5624 | 1,005,619.47 (1,187, 986.27) 4,385,195. 
Dividend on equity shares forthe year . " . 7 

Balance as at Jist March 2023 106,562.24 | 1,063,61901 (0,484,986.24) 4588, 105. 4 
Balance as. at Ist April 2023 1,506 ,562.24 | 1,063,819.07 (4,784, S627) 4,3BB,/195.84 
Changes In accounting policy? perior period eyrars, : = . = 
Restated balancess stistApHlaig3 = 1506, 562.24 | 1,063,019.41 (105498624) 1386, 105.24 
Prom! (Loss) for the year =| 130,599.20 . 133,999.20 
Other Campreherive income for the year = eters ef era BF 
Total Comprehensive income for the year 4,506, 562.24 | 1,197,67944 (1,154,741.65) 4,549,460. 56 
Divadend on ag shares for the yoar . . - - 

| Balance ae at dist March 20: 750 GEL a [7187 61s Rc Wane) 7549 460.50 | 

The notes referred to sbove form an integra! part of the tinancial statement 

Ag per our Aeport of even date altached Forandon Behaltolthe Board of Directors: 

For K..C, Bhattacherjee & Paul 

Chartered Accountants 
Fim Regn. No. S0s026E Sunay K, Khaltan Sandip Chattopadhyay 

Director : Director 
DIN:OFERSO7O DIN: OBS S070 

Biswajlt Datta 

(Partner) Sumit Pasari Ankit Sugandh 
Membership No. Ja5se2 (Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
UDIM : 240S55aoRKRCFWread4 PAN: APBPPS8184) PAN:- DEHPS8a51A 

Place: Kolkata 
29th day of May, 2024 
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Sclecattean’ (india) Limited 
Cash Flow Statement for the year ended March 31, 2024. 

(in Hundred} 

Aguat As.at 
Partlowars March-31 2024: March-34 2023 

Amount in Fe, Amount in Rs. 

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities. 
rir eciel tama je period 433,090.20 GT S7za8 

Depreciation and Amorizition Expense “5,298.37 997,175.19 
Finance Costs Bar ore.25 24d 326.86 
interest incame (2.232.60) (20,066.41 

(Gain Lesson saieof Property, Plantand Equipment 
Operating Profit! (Loss) before changes in opereting assets ond Uabillitios 437 5023 467 166,31 _| 

Adjustments for changes in operating assets and labiities; 
{increase} In radeend otherrecetvables 65,936.30 437,466.00 
(horease} {Decrease in inventories 19,183.24 (105, 713,48) 
inorgase'|Decrezet) in trace and afer payables: f 
Cash from / (used in) Operations a EET fi “i 

Direct Taxes (paki) refund ; = = 
NatCash from! (used in) Operating Activities Sa 157.39 Tard ae 

8. Gash Flow trom Investing Activities 
(Purghasey Sale of property, plan and eguapenpet (t3,42a55) aha 

. Salo property, pian end equipment 6,004, 200,0 
Income 9,232.80 24,006.44 

Rent incon 26,459.77 18,452.20 

NetGash fromi (used In) Investing Activities 40,368.33 1 450.72 

©. Cash Flow from Financing Acilvittes 
Repayment of nen-current borrowings 187 54.52 (620,687.90) 
Repayment of cument bontowings (ret) (8,577.85) 6,336.89 
Finance Cesta eee ree 
Nat Ceol from! (used In) Ainancing Activities eee 
Net incroase (decrease) Incashand cashequlvalant(A+ B+) (26,365.04) (3,247 ad) 

DB. Gashendcash equivalents 
Natincrease | (decresee) in cash and cash equivalent 64 (9,247.04) 
Cash and cash equivalents atthe beginning of the year 34 550.97 a0, 207.04 
(Cash end cash equivalents atihe end ofthe year 5,190.03 34,550.57 

irra and cash equivalents consist of cesh on hand and balance with banks and deposits 

in Currant Accounts 5,041.82 19,258.11 
InFixed Deposit . 16,000,00 
Cast on Hand 145.21 2,400.36 
Cash and cash equivalenta as at31St March-24 6,790,03 31,559.97 

(The shove Cash Flow Statement has been prepered under the ‘Indirect Method’ ea set aut In the 

Indian Accounting Standard on ‘Statement of Gash Flows find AS-7) issued by The Institute. of 
Chartered Accountants of india 

AS per aur Report of even date altached Foranc on Behall ofthe Board of Directors 

For K.C. Bhattacharjee & Paul 
Chartered Accountants 
FireRegn. No. 303026E Sunay K. Khaitan Sandip Chattopadhyay 

Director Director 
DIN:OFSaso7o DIN: cea7so10 

Biswajit Datta 
(Partner) Sumit Pasari Ankit Sugandh 
Mambership No. 055582 Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary 
UDIN: 4055582BKC2Viz2 4 PAM: AFBPPS Eh) PAN: DEHPS84518 

Place: Kolkata 

29th day of May, 2024 
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Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

1.1 Gorporate Overview 
Khaitan (india) Limited (KIL or the Company) haying domicile presence in the Stale of West Bengal, India, nas been incorporated 
under the Companies Act inthe year 1996, The Company is manuiacturer of Sugar and also cultvetes sugarcane in is captive farms 

far utilizing the same for manufacturing sugerin its factory. The Company hes also commenced trading ectivities of Electrical 
Goods, The Gampanyis the over of ‘Kharan’ branc and geting noyatty from fis users 

12 Statementof Compliance and Recent Pronouncements 

\, Statement of Compliance 
The Gampany has adopted Indian Accounting Standards. (refered to.as “Ind AS") notified under the Companies (Indian 

4ocounting Standards) Rules, 2015 (ae amended! read with Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2073 ("the Act") with effect 
fram April 1, 2017 and therefare Ind 45 issued, notified and made effective till the financial statements are authorized have 
been considered fer the purpose of preparation ofthese financial stataments. 

il, Basis of Preparation 

The Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance whh Indian Accounting Standards (ind. AS) underthe histancal 
cost conventon on the accrual basis, except for certain financial instumernts that are meséured interms of relevant IND AS at 

fair valuesiamoanized costs at the end of each regoning panod., 

Historical cost comyenton is. generally fesed-on the fag yalueofthe.consiteration given in exchange for goods and services, 

Asihe operating cycle cannot be scentified innormelcourse, the same hes Deenassumedto have duration of 12 months. 

AllAssets.and Liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the opereting cycle and other critene set out in 

IND AS. ‘Presentation of Financial Stetement®’ and Schedule Ill to the Sompanies Act, 2013. 

The Standalone Financial Sietements afe presented in indian Aupees and all Vallies are rounded off to the nearest rupees 

exceot otherwise stated, 

i_Use of Estimates 

The oreparation of standaions financial statements in confanmily with the recognition and measuremant principles of Ind AS 

raguires management of the Gompeny to make estimates and judoements that affect the reported balances of assets and 

llabitities, disclosures of contingent liabilities as at the date of slandaione financial statements and the reported amounts of 

income and expenses tor tne periods oresertisd: 

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on anoangeing basis. Revisions te accounting. esiimates are recognised 

inthe Geriod in which the estimalas are reviged and future perlods aredifected, 

hw Critical Estimates 

Tha pregaratian af financial statements requinss the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will seidom equal the 

actual results. Management aise needs io exercise judgment inapolying the Gompany'saccaunting policies. 

This. Note provides an overview ofthe areas that invalved.a higher degrees of judgement or complexity, and of tema which are 

more likely to be materially adjusted due to sclimates and assumptions turming oul to be different than those onginally 

assessed. Detailed information about each of these estimaies and judgements is inGuded in relevant notes together with 

information about tre basis of calculation foreach affected line item in the financial statements. 

The areas nvohing critleal sstimates or |udgemants are: 

o Estimated ueful lives of property, plantand equipmentand intangibleassets—Noeted 

Estimation of defined senafit obligation and lsave encashment-Nole 18 

Estimation offalr values of contingent liabilities - Note 35 

lripairment of trade receivables: Note 11 
Estimation offalrvalue of investment property —Note4 

Estimates and judgements aré continually evaluated, They are based on historical experience and other factors, including 

expectations of future evenis that may heave a financial impact on the Gormipany and that are believed to be reasonable under 

the circumstances: 

6 
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eBacattcan’ (india) Limited 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies : (cont) 

v. Falrvalue measurement 
Fair value is the price that would be recelved Io sell an aaget or pakd to ranstera liability in anorderly transaction between 

market participants atthe measurement date under current market conditions, 

The Company categorizes assets and labllities treasured atfalr value into one of three levels depending on the ability to 
obsarre inputs empfoyed for such measurennearnt: 

a) Level 1: quoted prices (unad|wsted) inactive markets forldentical assets or fabilities. 
b) Level 2: inputs otherthan quoted prices Included within level thatareobssrvable either directly orindirecty forthe asset 

cor fiewbllty. 
¢) Levels: inputs forthe asset or lability which are not basecon observable market data, 

2. Significant Accounting Policies 

q Property, Plantand Equipment 

Property, plant and equipment (PPE) are stated al cost of acquisition or deemed cost on the date of transition less accurnulated 
depreciation and impairment tosses, ifany. Cost of an asset comprises of cost of acquisition or construction and includes, where 

applicable, inward freight; duties and taxes, instalation expenses, professional fees, borrowing costs, initial estimates of the cost of 
dismantiing, cost-of replacing parts of the property, plant-and equipments and other costs direct atiributable to the bringing the 

asget to the locallon and condition necessary for Ito be capable of operating In the Intended mannerand purposes, Capital Spare 
par whichare integral part ofthe plantand equipment are capitalized. 

Viihen stgniftcant parte of phant and equipmentare required.to be replaced at intervals, the same are capitalized and old component 

Isderecognized. 

When parts of an item of property, plantand equipment have different useful lives, they are eccounted for ay separate tems (major 
components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Assets to be diseased nif are reported atthe lower ofthe carying value or the fair value less cost to sell, 

Bearer Plants-comorising of matured plants are stated al costand disclosed under Property, plant & Equipment. The company 

recognised the bearer plants at fair value and have used such fairvalue as coat. 

Depreciation on PPE commences when the asseis are ready for thelr intended use. Deprecisiion on all Property, Plant and 
Equipmentis provided.as oer Schedule! of Companies Act, 20193 under Straight Line Method over estimated useful lives foreach 
Category af assets as under: 

Asset Usetul Ives 

Factory building 30 

Other bulldings 60 

Planté and machinery 15 

Office equipment 5 

Furniture and fixtures: 10 

Vehicies a3 

Bearer Plants 20 

The residual value of assets has been considered as five percent of the original cost of the assets as per Schedule Il of the Act, 
Depreciation Is prodded on pro-rata basis onadditions and deletions of Property, Flantand Gquipment during the year. 

Incase of fmpalment, ltany, depreciation is provided on the revised camying amount of the assets overits remaining useful life, 
Depreciation methods, useful ves and residual values are reviewed, and adjusted as appropriate, at each reporting date. 

Ith Intangible Assets ; : 
Intainglile assets are stated-at cost Comprising of purchase price Inclusive of dulles and taxes, where applicable, less accumulated 
amount of amarization.and impairment losses. Such-assets, are amortized aver the useful lite using straight line. method and 

assessed for impairment whenever there is.an Indication of ihe same. 
The Gompany currently have intangible asset by way of Ferry Right. 

o
n
 

oO
o 

2
 

i De-recognition of Tangible and intangible Assets 
An ftem of PPE js de-récognized upon digposal or when mo future economic benefits are expected to arise from Its use or disposal. 
Gain or loss arising an the disposal or retirement ofan item of PPE is ‘determined as the difference between the sale proceeds and 

the catrying amount of the asset and is recognized in the Staternent of Profit and Loss. 

55 



ee, 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies : {cont} 

Ny 

wh 

will) 

Invesiment properties 
Investment Property is praperty (comprising tand or building or both) held to earn rental Income or for capital appreciation or both, 

but not forsale in ordinary caurse of business, uséln the production of supply of goods or services orfar administrate purposes. 

Any gain orlogs on dispesal of investment property is determined as the diffarence between net disposal proceeds and the carrying 

amount af the praperty.and is recognized In the statement al profitand loss. 

The depreciable Investment property Lé,, buildings, are depreciated on a straight line method ata rate determined based onthe 
useful life as provided under Schedule ll ofthe Act, 

Investment properties are deracognized ether when they have been disposed of ar when theyare permanenty withdrawn fromthe 

us@ and no future economic benefit is expected from their dispagal. The net difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
Carrying amount of the assetis recognized in orofitor joss:in-the petiodod de-+recognitian. 

Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets 

Tangible and Intangible assets are reviewed at each balance sheet date for impairment. In case events and circumstances indicate 
any impairment, recoverable amauntof assets is determined. An impairment losa is recognized in the statement of orofit and loss, 

whenever the carrying amount of assets either belonging to Gash Generating Unit (CGU) or otherwise exceeds recoverable 
amount, The recoverable amountis the higher ofassets fair valueless costot disposal and its value in use: |massessing value inuse, 

the estimated future cash flows from the use ofthe assets are discounted to thelr preseni value at appropriate rate. 

Impairment losses recognized earlier may ne longer exist or may have come down. Based on such assessment at each reporting 
Penrod the impairment toss S reversed and recognized inthe Statement of Profitand Loss. In such cases the carrying amount of the 

asset is Increased to the lower ofits recoverable amount and the carrying amount that have been determined, net of depreciation, 
had no imaainnent ioss been recognized forthe asset in prior years. 

Biological Assets otherthan Bearer Plant ; ; : 
Biological assets other than bearer plants’ are measured al falr value less estimated costs to sell Changes in falr value are 
recognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss 

The fair veilue of these assets exchides the iand upon which the crops are planted or the items of PPE utilized in the upkeep of 

Planted areas. 

For biolagicel assets other than Oearer plants, where biological transtormation has taken place since the initial cost was incurred (far 
example seeding: planted immediately before the oelance sheet dete), such biclogicel assets other than bearer plants are 

measured atcost i, the total expenses incurred on such plantaton upto the balance sheet date. 

Financial Assets and Liabilities 

Financia! assets and finencial liabilities (financial instruments) are recognized when Company becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instruments, 

Financial assets and financial fsbilities are initially measured at fair value, Transaction costs thet sre directly siirbutable ty the 

abquisitan or issue of financial assets and financial ltabilties (other than financisl assets and financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss! are added to or deducted fram the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial 

tecognitian. Transaction costs directly attributabte to the acquisition of financial sséete.or financial liabilities ot fair value through 

profit or loss are recagnized immediately inthe Statement of Profitand Loss, 

The financial assets and financial liabilities are classified a= current if they are expected fo be realised or settled within operating 
cyce ofthe company ofthese these are classified as non- current, 

The classification of financial instruments whetherto ba measured at Amortized Gost, at Fair Value Through Profitand Loss (FVTPL) 
or at Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive income (FYTOG!) depends on the objective and contractual terns to which they 
telate. Classifications offinancial instruments are determined on initial recognition. 

a) Cashand cash equivalents 
Al highty liquid financial instruments, which are readily convertible into determinable amounts of cash and which are subject 

tran insignificant nsk of change in value and are haying onginal maturities ofthrea montis oriess from the cate of purchase, 

are considéred a5 cash equivalents. Gash and cash equivalents includes balances with banks which are unrestricted for 

withdrawal and weage: 
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b) 0 Financial Assets and Financial Liabliiiles measured al amortized cost 
Financial Assets held within a business whose oblective ts to hold these assets In orderto callect contractual cash flows and 

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified daies to cash Tews that are solely paymentsof principal and 
Interest on the principal amount outstanding are messured atamoriized cost, 

The above Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities subsequent to initial recognition are measured at amortized cost using 

Effective Interest Rate (EIR) mathod. 

‘The effective Interest raie is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments of receipts (Including all fees and 
points paid or received, Transaction casts and other premiums or discounts) through the expected lite ofthe Financial Asset 

or Financial Liability to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset orto the amortized cost offinancial Babliity, of, where 
approoriate, ashorter period, to ihe net carrying amount on inital recognition. 

c) Financial Aseet at Falr Value through Other Comprehensive income (FVTOCH 

Financial assets are measured at fair value through other comprehensive income if these financial assets are held within a 
business whose cbjective isachieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling financial assets and the 
contractual terms of the financlal asset give rise on specified dates to Gash flows that are solely payments of principal and 
interest on the princioal amount outstanding. Subsequent io initial recognition, they ene measured at fair value and changes 
therein are recognized directly in other comprehensive income. 

For the purpose of para (b) and (¢} above, principal Is the fair yalue of the financial asset at initial reeagnition and interest 
consists of consideration forthe time value of money end sesociated credit risk. 

di} Finenclal Assets or Liabilities at Fair valuethrough profft or loss 

Financial instruments which do not meet the criteria of amortized cost orfair value through other comprehensive Income are 
classified as Fair Value through Profitor loss. These are recognized at fair value and changes therein are recognized In the 

Stalementof profit and lows. 

Impairment of financial assets 
A financial asset is assessed for impairment at-each reporting date: # financial saget is considered to be impaired if objective 

evidence Indicates thal one or more events have hed a negallve effect on the estimated future cash flows of thatasset 

The company measures the loss allowance for a finanelal essete at an amount equal to the liletime expected credit losses if the 
credit rsk-on that finencial Instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition. Ifthe credit risk on efinancial Instrument 
hes not Increased significantly since initial recognition, the company measures the loss alloyence for that financial Instrument alten 
Smrount Boal to 12-month expected oreda losses: 

However, fortrede recenables.or contract assets thet result in relation to revenue fram contracts with custumers, the company has 

notopied io measures the logs alloyrance alan amount equal to lifetime expected creditlosses. 

Be-recognition of financial Instruments 
The Company deteoognizes a financial assetor a group of financial assets when the contractual nights to the:cash flows from the 

asset expire, or when it transfers the financial easel and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of fhe ssact to anciher 

party. 

On. de-+ecognition of a financial esset-jexcept for equity instruments designated as FVTOGH, the difference between the assets: 
Canying armount and the sum of the consideration received and recesyable are récagnized instatement of profit and lass. 

On de+ecognition of aséets measured at PYTOC! tha cumulative gain or logs previously recognised inother comprehensive income 
isveciassiied fram equity to pront or ines at areciassiication adjustment, 

Financial abilities ere derecognized ifthe Gampany’s-obligations-specified in the contract expire or are discharged or cancelled: 
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial lability deracagnized and the consideretton paid and payable is 
fecognized in-Staterrant of Profitand Loss, 

Inventories . 
Inventories are yalued at lower of the cost or estimated net realizable value, Cost of inventories is ascertained on ‘Average Cost 
Method" basis, Materials and other supplies held for use in the production of inventories are not written down below enstif the 
finished products in which they willbe incorporated are expected ta be. sold ator above cost 

Costin respect ofraw malerials and stores and Spares includes expenses incidental to procurementof the same. 

Cost in respect of finished goods-and those under progress represents prime cost, and Includes appropriate portion of overheads 
and excise duty, 
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xi} 

xii) 

xiii) 

xiv) 

Foreign Currency Transactions 

Presentation Currency: 
These financial statements are presented’ in Indian Rupes, the national currency of india, which is the functional currency of the 

comaany, 

Transactions and Balances; 
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated inte the functional currency atthe exchange rates prevailing on the date of the 

transactons.. Foreign currency monetary assets and liabilities at the yearend eretransiated at {he yearend exchange rates, Non- 

moneiary tems which are carried in terms of historical cast denominated in a foreign currency ere reported using the exchange rate 

atthe date of transection. Foreign exchenge gain/loss fo the extent considered as an adjustment to Interest Gost are considered as 

pan cf borrawing cost. The loss or gain thereon and also on the exchange differences on gettlament of the foreign currency 

transactions during the-yaerare recognized as income or expense in the orofil and loss-eccount 

Equity Share Capital 

An equity instrument isa contract thet evidences residual interest in the assets of the company after deducting all ofits liabilities. Par 

value of the equity shares is recorded es share capital and the amount received in excess of per value ls classified as Securities 

Premium. 

Costs directly attributable to thejssue of ordinary shared are recognized asa deduction from equity, net ofany tax effects. 

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 

Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measuremeni-are recognized when thers is ategal or constructive 

obligatian.as a result of past events and iis probable that there will bean outlow of resources and 2 neliable estimate Gan be mace 

ofthe. amaunt of obligation. Provisions are not recognized for future operating lnétes, The amount recognized as a provision |s the 

best estimate of the consideration required to settle the present obligation atthe end ofthe reporting parted, taking inte aceauntihe 

riéks-and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. 

Contingent fabilities is not recognized and ara disclosed by way of notes to the financial-statements when there is a possible 

obligation arising fom past evenis, the existence of which will ba confirmed only by the coeurence or fon-oceurrence of one or 

Mare Uncertain future events not wholly within the coniral of the Gompany or when there is 4 presantobligation thatarses fmm past 

events where it is either net probable iat an cutiow of reascurses will be required to-setile ihe same or 4 vellable eétimate of the 

a@mountin this respectcannotbe made, 

Contingent Assets are disclosed In the finanelal statements by way of notes.to accounts when an inflow of economic benefits Is 

probable. 

Employee Bonefits 

a) Shortterm Employee benetits are accrued In the yaar services arerencered by the employees. 

hy) Provident.& Family Pension Fund: in accordance with the provisions of tha Employee Provident Funds.and Miscellaneous 

Provigions Act, 1962, eligible employees of the company are entitled to recelve benefits with respect to provident fund, @ 

delined contribution plan, In which both the company and employed conifbute monthly to Provident Fund Scheme by the 

Central Government/Trust at a determined rate. The company contributes to the Empicyees' Pansion Scheme, 1955 for 

cértaln categories of employees. The Gormpany's contribution is charged off to the Statement of Profitand Loss. 

o) Gratuity: Post Employment and Retirement benefits In the torm of Gratuity are considered as defined benefit obligations and ls 

provided foron the basis of third party actuanal valuation, using the projected unit credit method as al the date of the Balance 

Sheet, Every Employee who has completed five years or more of service /é entitled to. Gratuity wn terms not less favorable than 

the provisions of Tha Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. 

The lability or asset recognized In the balance sheet In respect of defined benefit gratully plansis the present value of the 

defined benefit obligation atthe end of the reporting period loss the falrvalue of plan assets, The defined benefit obligation is 

calculated annually byactuaries using the prolected unit credit method. ; 

The present value of thé defined benefit obligalion le determined by discounting Ihe-estimated future cash outhows by 

reference to market yields at thaend of reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the taims of 

the retated obligation. 

The net interest cost ls calculated by applying the discount rate tothe nat balance of ihe defined benefit obligation and tha falr 

Value of plan assets. This.cost ls Inchudedin amployae benefit expense in the statemental profitand loss, 
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xvlil} 

Resmeasurement pains-aind losses: arising from experience adjustments and changes In actuarial assumptions of the defined 
benefit obligation are recognized in the perod In which they ocour, directly in otter comprehensive income, They are inctuded in 
fetained aarmings inthe statement of changes in equity and in the balance sheet. 

d) Leave:encashment benetite: The liabilities for earned laave are not expected to be settled wholly within 12 marth after the 
end of the penod in which the employees render the retated service. They are therefore measured as the present value of 
expected future payments to-be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end ofthe reporting period on 
government bonds using the projected unit credit method, The bensiits are discounted using the market yields atthe and ofthe 
reporting period thet haye tennis approximating to the terms of the related obligation. Ae-messurements- as 4 result of 
experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized in profit or loss, 

The obligations are presented as current abilities in the balanoe sheet ifthe Company does not have en uncanditional right 

to defer settlement for af least twelve months after the reporting petiod, ragardiess of when the actual settiamentis expected 
toocour. 

a) SaleofGoods 
Reverie fs recognited al the fair value of consideration recelved or racelvable when the significant risk, rewards Bnd 

ownership of goods heve been transfered and the amount thereof can be measured rellably, This represents the net Involoe 
value of goods suppied to third perties after deducting trade discounts, rétume; volume rebates ahd outgelng sales tex and is 

inclusive of packing charges and excise duty thereagainst.. 

bb} Interest, Dividend and Claims 

Oividend income is racognized whan the right to receive payment is established. Interest-has bean accounted lieing effective 
Intensst rate method: Insurance clalms/other clalms are accounted as and when admitted settled, 

Borrowing Cost 

Borrewing cost comprises of Interest and other costs Incurred in connection with the borrowing of the funds: All bornnaing ooets 

are recognized in the Statement of Profitand Loss using the effective interest method except to the extent attributable to qualifying 
Property Plant and Equipmant (PPE) which are capitalized to the cost af the related ateats: A qualifying PPE ie an asset, that 
Necessary takes a substantial period of time te get ready for its Intandad Lise or dale. 

Taxes on Income 
Income tax experse reépracaniing the sum of current tax expenses and Ihe net-charge of the deterred taxes is- recognized in the 

income statement excepto the extent thatlt relates to items recognized directly In equity of other compretanslyeincame. 

Curent income tax is provided on the-taxable income and recognized at the amount expected to be pald to or recoveréd from the 

fax aulhorties, using the tax rates and tay laws hal have bean enacted oreubstantively enacted bythe end of the raporting period. 

Taxable Income differs trom ‘profit betdre tax’ as reported In the staternent of profit and loss because of teme of Income ar expanse 

that are taxableor deductites Inolhar years and items thal are never taxable or deductible. 

Deferred fax is recognized on temiporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets and fabiities:in the Financial 

Statements. and the comeasponding fax bases Weed In the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax llabllites are generally 

fecognized for all xable temporary differences. Defarréd tax assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary 

differences to the extent that if Is probable that taxable profits will be avaliable against which those deductible temporary 

differences can be utilized. 

Deferred tax labiiities and assets are measired af the tax rates that are expected to apply In the petod In whieh the liability is settled 

or the asset realized, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the and of the reparting. 

period. © 

The carrying arount of deferred tax assets. is reviewed at the end of gach raporing peared and reduced to the extent that itis me 

longer orobable that sufficient taxable.profits will be avaliable to allow alloar part ofthe deferred tax assetin be utilized. 

Earnings Per Share 

Basic earnings per shard arecomputed by dividing the net profit attributable te the equity holders ofthe company by he webghted 

average number of equity shares outstanding during the period. Diluted earnings per share ls computed by dividing the.net profit 

attributable to the equity holders of the company by the weighted average number of equity) shares considered for deriving baslo 

gamings per share and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have bean issued upon conversion of all 

dilutive potential equity shares. 



Summary of Significant Accounting Policies : {cont} 

xix) = Non-current assets held forsale 
Non-current assets held Tor sale are measured atthe lower oftheir carrying amount and the fair yalue less costs tose. 

Asseis and liabilities classified as: held for sale are presented separately in the balance sheet, However, there ere no such asseis 

deserted es held for sale in current Financial year 

The Company classifies non-current assets as neld forsale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally through a sale 

rather than through conbnwing use, Actons required to complete the sale should indicate thatitis unlikely that sionificant changes 

to the sale Wil ba macs or that the decision tosell will ba withdrawn. Management must be committed to the sale axpected within 

one year fromthe date of classification 

xx) Cash dividend and non-cash distribution to equity holders 

The Gompeny recognizes a liability to mae.cash distributions te equity holders of the Company when the-cistrinution ts authorized 

and the cistribution is mo longer atthe discretion of the Gompany. Distribution is authorized when it is approved oy the 

shareholders. 4 corresponding amauntis recognized diractty in equity. 
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Notes to financial statements 2s at and for the year ended March 31,2024 = (cont) 

(fin Hundred) 

AS at fs at 
Particulars Mareh-74 2028 Marth27,2023° 

Auinounnt ins, Areountin Rs. 

4, Investinent Property 

‘Gross cieryang aman 
Opening press carrying aniounl | Deemed cost BU,6500 50,650,007 
Additions / other : ” * 

Cloging gross carrying amount! beamed cost BO, 650,04) Be Gi AY 
\ 

Accumulated depreciation 
Opening accumulated depreciation . = 

Depreciation changed during ine year . : 

Closing accumulaied depreciation - “ 

Netcarylng amount 650.00 505th Da) 

4.1 The Companies Inyvesinient Propectes tongisis of Land measuring 4 acres at Nadia Lessed in 
third Parties 

4.2 The amount recognised in Statement of Profil and Lose in relation to investnent ‘Amount In Fis. Armpunt in Rs, 
Pirates: 

« Lease reno! Land BO Bove tot 

BM. Be 

Asst 4a at 5 Blologleal Assets other than bearer plants music as. leas 

_Ainoiint in Rs, | 
Balance #2 at the begining of the year T2071 127 Doo 36 
‘Trensfer to bearer plants “ zi 
Incwase due in purchese/ physical change “ s 
Decieage due bp sales! impairement 35.60 Sasha J 
Eslanoe a6 at the @eaing of ihe year {14,676.45 V2, Pe. 

54 Bilagital assets other than bearer plants Nave been comstiered at fair value 

Face Vall As at Ag at 
Parlculars No. of Shares |S Tems | March-31,2024 March-31,2023 

Amount in Rs. Armaurit ln Rs. 

6 Investments 

Mon-Current 

i) Quoted Equity Instruments. 
investments ai fale yelue throught Other Comprensive income 
Other Gody Corporata- Fully paid-up Equity Shares 
Mhattan Electriogs Limited 120, "a2 16 oo O.0T 

(hy Uinguoted Equity Insirumends 

Associates and OtharBa Comparate - «Fu id-up Equity Shares 
Nalntoesin pomieamantton ce mee moe 19,0 10 O17 01 
‘The Orievital Mercanide Company Lid* 44.580 16 15,625,591 15,625.57 
Mhaltan Lefin Lirrited * Para 10 114,036.00 114.030.00 
Mhaitan Pinkels Orhyabe Limied * tf SAR] 1 116,137.50 TR|AW?.60 

Tartal (Ll) 245,799,43 246, Poo4g 

Aggredateamountellnvestmerts: 
Quoted investments and Mariet vacua thereat SE BIL 86,612.74 
‘Linquoted (remtmanty eer yon Es foreach n 
inpecrennent valve of lreestments 1 tee. 

[as ads | RSA 
* Stated 2! far value as provicted by [ne management 

64 4 Spon ag Lirriied viahest-at on For lnpairie in vedier of invetinnent for Pall in 
Mey 2 tala rapineaben mel ten F Oonon of ie manegentent Pe Baar Gol br noes oni of etocarreotl be rat cel ponte rake 

B.2  Khaten Letin Limtted and Xhacton Hotes Pet Liane te holders of 1731587 nos, and 7 TOM nos of Equity Shanes of As 10 each 

G2 



Khaitan’ (india) Limited 
Notes to financial statements as at and forthe yaar ended March 141, 2024 : feoni) 

(Fin Hundred) 

AS at Fat 
Particulars Mareh-24,2028 | Marsh-34,2023 

Amount in- Ris. ‘Armountim Rs. 

7 Loans -MoneCurrent 
Uneecured, considered good = = 
Total = = 

8 Other financial assets 
Secuity Deposd 403,236.04 103,306.04 

Depersits 43,675.59 42,401.48 | 
Tetal a47 61163 746.207 52 

90 Other Not-CurreritAssets 

Balances with Statutory Authorities. 
income tes | TOS 430,624.00 118.544.3741 

120, 624,80 118,634,371 

10) inventories (Valued al lower of Cost or net realiseble Value) 

Finished Goods 
Stock In trede 549,01 94 $08,985.19 

Sloras & Spares 
Shores, Spares, Process Cremicaia & Fuels = 
Total 549 B01.95 568,986.19 

Refer note ho. 2x¢ in Note-on Financial Statements 

0 Trade receivables 

Ureecured (uniess olendise stated) (Refer note 12.1) 
«Considered Gand GS4, 287.99 9,12.40,009 
Less, Alewanoe for credil Impaired 2236506 2328/5930 
Trade Reacalvedias Congiger Good Unsecured BT tT feo 6.49.01 479 

“Trad retelvebeetOredit lmaaired 175,195.54 161,669.35 
Lass: Allowance far credit impaired (175,198, 54) (767,665.39) 

Total Trade Recelveble B71,922.93 BGS 016.79 

444 The movement in change in allowance for credit Impairment 

Balance at the begmeing of the year 161 069,55 24045905 
Change in allowance for rede imparmen! during ihe year 22.565,06 2a, 285 30 
Trade receivable writen offduring the year B.836.91_ 1:05 074. | 
Balance al the end of the yaar 475,195.54 {et poe 40 
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Notes:to financial statemonis-2s at and for the year onded March 31,2024 : (cont) 

11.2 Trade receivable ageing achedule for the yaar ended as on March 21, 2024 is as follows: (Fin Hundred) 

Ouistandlng for following periods from due dole of paymnets . 
Particulars Total 

Less than G morthe | 6 montin | Year det Year 2-3. Yaar More Than 3 Year 

{)) Undisputed Treate-recevables-oorsxtered good ara ay? 1 24,7687 - GO4 288 00 
1) Undisputed Trede receivables-considered 

doubtiul - - 475106 =| 1 f51e6-54 
(Oy Disputed Trade recatrables-considered goad - - - - - 
(hv) Dighuted Trade receivables-cansidered dowbtul . . - 

Total 44 3T7 105,750 196,356 - 560,403.83 

i ASF BG | 
Total Trade Receivable BP 3r2 23 

Trade receivable ageing schedule for the year ended as on March 31, 2023 js as follows: 

, Outstanding for follow fiods from due cate of tnnets: 
Particulars 2 = oa Tatal 

Lean then G martha j 8 montha - | Year ‘Ted Year 2-3 Far Mono Than 2 Year 

() Undpuled Trade recevabies-conaidered good 749,289 SetT 45,522 ld VEE 24,285.30 912,300.09 
(i) Undigguted Trade receivables-considared 

doubretul : = 461,999.39 167.655.29: 
(1) Olaguted Trade receivables-congidared gacd . : = . . 
(ht) Disputed Trade raceivebies-considered doubtful - - - - - 

Total 738,289 SGT 45,923 44,166 jaaas469 41,073,969.48 

| Lees: Allowance for cred fia, 354.69 | 
Total Trade Receivairla BBS. 014.79 

41-3 The Managenvenl has opted. to apply the Expected Credit Less (ECL) Model forthe provision of Trade Receivables for the Year ended 31st March, 
20ad. As per ECL polley the manegemant hea made provision on trade receiveale faving age more then one year & above, 

114 Refer notesna. 44 for information abyut credit risk and market tisk of trade receivable 
(Zin Hundred) 

As at Aa at: 
Particulars March-34 2024 March 312023 

Aumneruinit in Ris. Amount in Rs. 

12. Cash ond Cash Equivalents 

Gash on Hand [As.certfied by ihe management) 146241 2,000.86 

Balances with Banks: 
in Gutrent Accounts 541.82 13,259.14 
in Fixed Deposits : 16,000,090 
Total 6, 190.0 aLene 

42. Loses - Current 

(Unsecured, consigend gand) 
Advance te related party (Refer note. 42) a2, VOT 12 . 
Short tac Inans to others (Rafer mote 13.1) 16,024.99 255,968.74 
Advances against expensns 13,737.66 38,649,78 
Adware bio eniployees, 23850 
Total Bi HG. 59 O78.854.68 

13.4 Shot tenn lode given in a body corparsté bearing InlereshiiO%, pa. retoverabie on 
demand 

44, Other Current Agsets: 

(Unsecured, tonsidered good) 
Balances with Statutory Authorities 
Salas tax | GST deposit 2499.88 40,562.14 
Prepaid Expenses 3,226.19 2,661.15 
Rent Recelvalbe 4,297.04 5860.68 
Provigion for Employee Banefit - Gratuity (Refer Note No. 39) T,3Tai5 : 
Giher Recevebe 72,105.47 - 
Total ones es TS0a3a7 



iclneattease’ (india) Limited 

(@in Hundred} 
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024 : (cont) 

AS al -3 at 

Particulars Warch-37 2024 March-31,2023 

Auneuunt in Rs. Aregurit in Fes. 

15. Share Capital 

a) Authorised: 
24,760,000 (March 31, 2022-24 70,000) Equiy Shares of Rs.10- each L475, 00000) 2.475,000,00 

Preference Shares: 
4000, (March d7, 2022-4000) 6% (Tax Free) Cumulative Preference Shares of Fis, (0c gach 00 ie 4,000,001 
21,000 (March 31, 2022-21 000) Preternnce Share of Rs, 100! each 21 Ke) 21,000.00 

b) isswed, Subscribed and fully paid-up Shares: 2, SIMD (001 AK} 2.500,000,00 
4,750,000 [Marchdi, 2023 = 4,750,000] Equity Shares of Rs. 1+ each futy paid up 

475,000.00 475,000.00 
75 M0 475,000.00 

6) Recoreiliation of tre shares outstanding is sel out below: 

Ae at fgat 
March-31 2024 March-31 2024 

Ne. of shares Arrourt No. of shares Arrount 

Equity Shares 
Atthe beginning of the ec’ 4TS0000 475,000.00 £75000H) 475,000.00 
fesued dunng the Year - - - - 
Brough! Back during the Year - " . . 
Outstanding atthe end of the period 4ToO000 475,000.00 4750RMi 476, 00000 

dd) Tanmefrights attached to each class of shares 
Equity Shaves; 

The Company hae ony one claes of seued share capite Le. equity sharas heving & per value of Re )- each (March 21 20d4: Re, 10+ each), Al 
Equity chars hodders is entitled to one vote per chare, The Company declares and pays dividends in indian rupess. The cividend sroposed by the 
Board of Directors #9 uidject to the approval of ihe shareholders i the ensuing Annus General Meeting 

&) Details of shareholders holding more than 9% shares.along with muneber of shares Ield: 

Name of Shareholders march 34.2804 oo holding irom ore "ve holding 
Mo. of share No. of shang 

Sunay Krishria Khaitan 337079 FAS 257, 07S 6.15% 

Khedten-Letin Limited 1431561 25.82% 11,31 ,681 Pa Lede 

Kheten Hotels Pyt. Lb Trosaa 16.29% $55,745 TO 

The Orertal Mertarnite Company Limited 200,198 B4a% 4060, 198 a.49% 

| Shareholding of Promoters 

Si. Promoter or HoclShaesds| % oftotal | MoefShawsas | “J offetal | % Change 
No. Shareholders Mame Promoter Group | oosaga | Shares | onstasiis | Strares |during the yea 

9] KHAITAN LEFIN LIMITED Promecter Group 1,734,561 Sa Be 11at5e1 23:82 ire 

2) RHAITAN HOTELS PVT. LTD. Pronkiter Group THO, 943 16.23 555.745 14.70 0.0095 

3) THe ORIENTAL MERCANTILE CoO LTD Promater Group 400,155 S4a ah 158 6.83. Quo 

4| SUNAY KRISHNA KHAITAN Promoter aaToro rad eae org 6.15 uma 

4S) ISR4 FEAITAN Premier 170,197 3.55 126,197 266 Ou00s, 

6) VaGEESHA KHAITAN Promoter 157,000 3.31 113,000 234 0056 

7) SHREE KRISHNA SUMIL FRISHNA KHAITAN HUF] Promoter Group 87,500 240 S750) a O05 

48) VIDITA KHAITAN Promuler Tht100 2.05 2,100 254 ra 

S| DURGAOUTT GHIRANUILAaL HUF Promwter Group 52,500 1.14 52.) an Qua 

19 | SARUTA DABRIWAL Promoter 26,000 ble 20.R00 o.42 QUO085 

11 | -CHIRASWILAL SHRECKRISHMA KHAITAN HUF Promoter Group 10,750 thd 1074 O29 Qua 

Total 2,807,620 Bi24 2.87654) 60.24. OHS 

@) The company holding 44980 nos, 1020000 nes 8 47500 nos of shares of Rs, 10 each of The Gnental Mercantiie Co, Limited, Fhaitan Lefin Limited 
afd Khaitan Hofels Pvt Lid respectively 

63 
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Notes:to financial statemonis-as at and for the year onded March 31,2024 : (con) 

{®in Hundred} 

As al As at 
Particulars March-31,2024 March-31,2023 

Aunount in Rs, Aregurt in Fes. 

16. OTHER EQUITY 
Refer Statement of Gnanges in Equity for movement in balances. of Reserves, 
& General Reserve 1506, 56224 1 506,562.24 
B.. Aetained Earnmgs 1,197,679.04 1 063,679.81 
CC. Other Comprehensive Income (11ST 6o) (1181 986-21) 

Toial ‘1,545, 469,56 1,488,796, 84 

46. (a) Ganaral Reserve 

Balance al the beginning of the year 1,506,562.24 106,562.24 
Add: Addition during ihe year > : 

(CHIT gation durin 3 : 
Balance at the end of the year 1,508, 562.24 1 506 52.24 

16. Retained Bamings: Retained carmings are the profils tat the Company has-cared Gil date, 
lees ehy transfers te general reserve, dividends of other dletributions pald to shareholders. 

(6) Retained Eamings: 

Balance at the beginning of the year 1063,610.81 9:95, 7468? 
Add: Adddion during ihe year 731,995.20 a7 a7 299 
Less: Uilisalion during the year * * 

ence at the end of the-year TiS, fet ae.01 Tiad,01 581 

Other Comprehensive ncorie: Other Comprehenaive Income (OC) Comprises of the balance in equity primery relaling to remeasurement 
Qeinailosses) on defined benefit chligetions ang gains and lossed on fair valuation of Invesinent 

Remeacuroments of Net Defined Benefit Plans: Diferences between the interest in¢ome on plan assets and the relurn actually acharved, and-any 
Changes In ihe tlabllilties over the year due to changes if actuanal assumptions of epernente adjuastrenta wilhinte plana, are recogniaed in other 
comprehensive income and are adjusted in retained earings 

162 Other Comprehensive Income 

Balance at ibe beginning of the-year (1.101496.27) (12,208,685, 069) 
Ago: Adidifen during the year re iF 46,87 248 

| —_Legs: Utilisation during the year : 
Balance at the and of the year (1154, 791.65) 11 81 58621) | 
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Sclacattcans’ (india) Limited 
Notes to financial statemons as ai and for the year ended March 31,2024 : (cont) 

(Tin Hundred) 
Asal As at 

Particulars 81 toed Manch-31.2023 

Amount in Rs, Amauntin Rs. 

47. Borrowings Non Current 

Secured Login 
From Non Banking Financial Company _ 6 .4R87 

Unsecured : 
Loans from related panies (Refernote 17.1) S22,h48.78 407 27686 
Loans from Others (Refer note 7.2) 131,700.50 794,950,430 

Total 76643025 BOG TS 73 

17.1 Loane from related parties Includes interes! free advance fram Dreciors-and Interest bearing 
advance G@9% from a body comarata, 

17.2 Loans fron ethers Includes interes! free adlvanoe from three bodies Cimarates and interest 
bearing edayance 15% tron a bodies Corporate. The Loan is repayable on Geraend. 

- P ae i 11 4226 ateinkd ar efit (Gratu Sept te B.) _ 
isch oe i jn cH pt 14,018.00 

Total 29, 

19. Other Non-Current Liabilities 

121) PL 790,6% Tp 
= ico a 71,780.64 7a SA0.f3 

19,1 The-Com pany has eted olf fs lend at Ranier Acete for 29. ymars and hae fected (uh lease 
rent in advance and rent for the same i.adjusted duing the year Rs, 800024 |Py. BDOOZ/), 

As-at Ag at 
Partleulars hMareh-34,2024 March-37 2023 

Amount in-Fs; Armount in Rs. 

20, Borrowtnys-Current 
At Amortiaed coal 

Rupee denominated (Cash Credit (Refer pote ra 20,1) 

> From Banks 230,615.00 299, 184,76 

Short term loge (Refer note ne. 20-2) ; i 
- From Non Banking Financial Gampany 415,332.85 e344 oF 

ME, TS 416,525.63 

Ger last renewed letter dated 15th Dee 

for general corporsie purpeses 

The Loan is-secured by 
|) Merigage of 7 noe. of Plate wend by ihe Compary and Other body Ci 

li] Personal gurantee of one director 
Iv) Gonporate Gurantees. 
4) Irrevocable and emecefic Power of attomey executed by ine owner af ine property. 

borrmwirias. 

Comper hes 
|l} Pledge of 0000 equity shares of ihe Company held bythe Directors and the body Corporates. 

20.1 Secured by Hypothecation of stocks, book debts, standing crops, stores. & -sparesand_ all other cumed assets and morigage.of agnicuaurel land 
measuring aboot 2067.21 Acres and entire fixed assets of sugar drision of tha company, present & fdure and personal quaraniog of a Director. 

The Company has satisfied the covenants atieched ta the borrowings. The borrowed fund hee been Umed tormwvorking canal purposes. 

Fate of Interest of Gash oredit Aecaunt 13.8096 a¢ per lest renewal better dated 26th July 2022 for Bank of Baroda & 15% for (DB Bank, Limited as 

20.2 Loan to the tune of Rs. 250,00,000/ has been obtained frum the NEFC af interes! rate of Rs. 18% pa. ft monthly advance ieasis for 2 year period 

The Falance amaunt of Rs. 12600000 has been renewed by said NBPC vide Lefer deied tsi Apne2029 fore patiod of one Year wef, 14 Apel 
2023. 

Tha borrowed fund hasbeen used for working cape! and general corporads purpose. The Company has satisfied ihe covenants attached in the 

20,3 TheGompany hag not been reparted-as wilul defauiter dung the current year by any of the tenders of the company: 

oT 
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Notes to financial statemonts as at and for the year onded March 31, 2024 : (con) 

(Fin Hundreds 

Particulars Mareh-31,2024. 
As at As at 

March-37, 2023 

Armour in Ra, Armaurit in Rs, 

21, Trade Payables 

i Miceo. email & mediuntanterpise (MSME) 4.575,165.72 
433,037.57 

1a? 242.78 
459,383.95 i) thers 

Total 2009,003.29 2,116,626, 74 

21.41 Discosure required by Micro, Sinalland Medium Enterprises Davelopment Act 2006 (MSMED) 
The digciesure in respect of the anmunis payable co Micro, Small and Medium Enlerprises es at 31s! 
March 2024 has been made in the financial statement based on Information received and avelleale 

with the company. Accordingly discosure has been mace betow: 

(a) Prchea! aricurl and [mterest due thereon hemaning unpaid So ony suppller covered under MSMED 
Act, 2006 86 attheend of each accounting year 

~Principal 
= Eribesresest: 

(b) Thee aridunt of interest paid by the buyerin camis ef Section 16 of ‘he MBMED Aci, 2006 alongedth 
ihe amount of the payment made fo the supple, beyond the appsinied cate during the year 

ic) The amount of interes; due and payaiee for ine penod of delay in making payment (hich has been 
sie bea Decne the apeaitted day during the yess) bul withoul adding tbe intetes| specified under 

JED AcL2006 

(2) he arnt of pierest aocraed and remeining unpaid at the-end ofeach accounting year 

(el The amount of furtier interest remaining due anc payable even in the succeeding veers, umtil-such 
date when the interest due as above are actually paid io ihe smal enterprise for the purpose of 
cisslieenace as a deductiols expenditure under section 239 of the MSMED Act 2006 

The fotal dues.of Micro and Small Enterprises which wane outstanding formone than stipulated periad 
gre! Mi (Marth 34, S23" ° Mil) 

1,875, 165,72 1,657, 242.78 

Ageing for trade payable from the due date of payment for each of category as at march 31, 2024 (7 in Hundred) 

Outstanding for the follewing period froin due date of paynrent 

Particulars Lass than 7 year ‘1-2 years 2-3 years | iMore than 3 years Total 

th Mahe 1407 73180 447 77188 = 15,647.95 1,575,166.72 

[ {ii} Others _ 704, 546,55 : : 28, BSC.52 439,837.57 
(Hl) Dissuted dues- MEME - - . 
(hy) Disputed dues-Cthers : : 

Ageing for trade payable from the due date of payment for cach of category as at march 34, 2023 (2in Hundred) 

Outstanding for the following pariod from due date of payment 

at eaules. Less than | year 7-2 yoars 23 years | lore than S years Total 
(i) MSME 1173498548 gd 254.95 ; (a8 | 185726278 
fii) Glhers 297 .5e1 os . : 207 BA0.05 439,572.01 
fii) Disauted dues MShiE : E : 

(iv) Dispuled dugs-Others : ; : 

As at As at 

Particulars Narch-31 2024 Marche31 2029 

Ame ont fin Als. Armount in Rs. 

22. Other Financial liabilities 

(Othor Payabies: 
= Tide | Security depots received 09,214.56 1, 18,784 
- Dues of employees 244,027.48 344,035,763 

- Liability for expenses " . 

Tetal PEC Rea} FAG 2547 



iclacaSteas’ (india) Limited 
Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024 ; (cont) (Fin Hundred) 

As at As al 
Particulars MMarch-31 2024 March-31 2023 

Amount in Rs. Armouint in Fs. 

23, (Other Currant Liabilities 

Statutory Dues 185,573.74 475,180.45 
Liability for aspengas: 203,871 07 296,466.89 
Advanoe from customers 451 440 40 ere 
Total ah, 6521 ee a0 

24, Provisions 

Provielin for Employee Benefit - Geatulty (Refer Mabe 38) - - 

Provision for employee Benefit - Leave (Refer Mote 3B) " 3499.81 
Provision for botes po 10,508.24 | 
Total O,399.05 14,003.05 

25. Revenue from Operations 

Sale of products including Agriculluré Products) 140,312.94 25,092,44 
Sale of trading goads 4436, 75809 2542 374 95 
Other Operating Revenue 
Setvines (Inegee fram Royalty) 737 f24.07 687,340.20 
Services (Marketing & Senice far detwark Development Sa2 371.78 0,785.07 
Total S26 18 6045 562.56 

25.1 Particulars of Gale of Products 

Manulacturéd gands - . 
Super 10,33 25,052 34 | 
Other crap, saiey 40 daa dee. 34 

36 Other Incomes 

interest Inoorne 8,332.00 24,066.44 
Profiton sale-of Fined Assis (Met) * MEl2 
‘Othorsi 
~ Rental Income 26,450.77 (8,432.20 
~ Lge rent HOO auu02 
= Olhors BS 041 345 519,676 38 
Total 11S 633.74 564,124.14 

2? Gostof material consumed 

Rew & Process Materials Consumed - 
Power & Fuel . 
Stores, Spares, Chemicala & Packing Materials Consunied > 

Cost of Raw Matenal Gonsumed “ 

28 Ghanges In inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in trade 

Gieaing Stogc 
- Standing Trees - 

- Finished googs = 
» Trading gauds 549 B01 95 568,985.19 
Lose: Doening Stock 

: Sanding Trees. " 
= Finighed gobs : 7 : 
= Trading goods 568, G85.49 S4a271,7a 

{Increase} | Decrease 78,103.24 (185,714, 46) | 

25 Employee benefits expense 

Selanes, Wages and Bonus: 655, 0526 Gi2476.53 
Cantibutien to Providertand ocher funde TET 4 10,240.97 
Gratuity 44,568.87 44,918.40 
Stat Weare Expenses HEA eG 6.20135 
Total GBT ,G0123 Bea 29715 



Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024 : (cont) (Zin Hundred} 

As at 4s at 
Particulars MMarch-31 2024 Mareh-3t,2023 

Amount in Fis, Arnount in Fs. 

30 Finance poste 

interest CKpeRsea oo7 S2840 24), 756.46 
Bank & LO Charges a8 4,070,650) 
Total 2ar,o7229 244,026.86 

310 Oder expenses 

Processing charges T 2 a 8,926, 12 
Repairs to Plant & hlachinery Ea 6,577.76 
Repairs to Others a £065.74 
Feent 24,735.00 24,900.00 
Raiet & Taxes: 4,735.02 2,329,568 
Testing . Orawing & Development Charges 1202.06 3,203.12 
Books & Perodicals (sa - 
Insiitehoe . 46,993.55 21,570.88 
Advertgement, Publicly & Saies Promatlon 2 eo 73,973:49 

Travelling & other incdenta! expenses OT 569.02 102,806.35 
Ratainershin Foes 25,0000) 24,000.00 
Office niginteiance 13,345.23 10,424.93 
Vohioe running and maintenance 8,020.58 6440.63 
lectriciy Expenses 13,212.01 (2,801.37 
Printing & Stalinnecy 1.28235 71,653.04. 
Commurecation exgenses 1,283.39 6.224.805 
‘Ganeral Changes : ree 6.62665 
Stat Recruijiment & Training tet 795.00 
Menibersnip subacription 0.4 125.95 
Conference & hieeting Expansee 1 at) al 838.00 
Interest | Lote Fees on Siatutory dies ot ,a7a.42 sf 612,57 
Auditors’ Remuneration 

- As Auditors. 2500) 2.000.010) 
» Por Tax Audit E250 600,00 
» For Other Services 1,875.00 41,500,00 

Legal, professional and conauilancy charges 56,001.74 42,405.77 
Freight and Forwarding eT 005.28 (a erE.09 
flier sales services 184 B35 2607613 
Sales promotion omponses 4,162.06 2,641,935 
Darector’s salting feas ea 7,200.00 
Filing fees 3,7O273 3,852.16 
Sundry Balances Written off bea.74 - 
Sendce Charges 29, 180,63 67,414.66 
Software Deyeiopment Expenses 6,550.50 4,198.60 
Lose-on Sale of Floed Assets 2114.64 - 
Packing changes eG 0 1rg4 
Commission and brokerage 6,055.28 Arad. a1 
Proviaion. on Binlogical Assets 6,035.60 6,353.27 
Prowievon for dowbtful dett A Ere 

744 44.89 TRG 773.35 

3200 Other Comprehensive Income 

(9) (bers that will not-be rectassifled to promt or loss: 
Remeasuromenis of the dofinad benctit plans 2721452 46572468 

2727462 SG 872 48 

32 Reconciliation of estimated tex expense at Indian statutory Income fax rate to income tax 
expanse mparted in statement of comprehensive income 

income fefore income taxes ( PAT} 1339.40 47,872.85 
Less: Accumulated Busingss Loss 1339,99: “OF ar2.99 
Net Income 7 ‘/ 

Indian Statutory Income Tax Rate 0.28 
Est (income tas, axoense ~ 

Tax effect of adjustments to reconcile expected income Tax expense to reported lincome Tax 
expense 
Inco eRCerraDe * 
Tax payable ot ctlerent rate * 
fect of tax allowance - 
Deforred tan) MAT eredih entitiement 
‘Other . 

income tax expense in the Statement of Profd and Loss = 



ScBacattcaas (india) Limited 

Notes: to financial statemonis as at_and for the year ended March-31, 2024 : (con?) 

(@in Hundred) 

For the year For the year 
Particulars ended ended 

March 31,2024 March 31 2023 

34 «=Eamings | (loss) per equily share 

(i) Basic 
a. Profit efter tex 17,999.20 BT 02.99 
h(i) Number of Equity Shares al the beginning of the year 47,200.00 47,600.00 

(ht) Number of Equity Shaneg af the end of the year 47,500.00) A? S000) 

(0) Weighted average numberof quity Shares culstanding during the year 47 OAM) 47,00) 
(te) Face vielue of each Equity Shere (Fa,) 10.00 10.00 

6 Basic Eaming per Share fa! (billi}] (a.} Pais] 14a 

(Ny (Olturtedd 
&. Diulive potential Equity Shares: 
& Wietghted Average number of Equity Shares for computing Dilute seaming pear Shane AT Se) a7 £00.00 
¢. Giluted Eaming / (boes} per Share [seme ae (l)(o) above] (Fs. ) 1.43 

As at Agat 
Particulars March-34,2024 March-3 71,2024 

Amount in Ris, ‘Amount in Rs. 
55 A, Contingent llsbilities . 

Claims against the Company notacknowledged as debis : 
Provident Fundlitigatians §  ~ oS, 708.25 35,780.25 
Goods and Service Tax (Due toate filing of GST retum end: disallowance -of Inpull crecit] 4, 227,778.32 - 

36 Leaveand Licensa 
& The Company fins ave and Ikense agreement tard Acre of and af Nadia Dishicl The tenure of 
Leaded ie forge Yeere. There ie mo cbligaiion for gulomatic renewal ofthese base agrermenta and 
ig renewable by muiuel cansant. 50, Goethe) 460,680.00 

1 (Gross Carrying Amount . . 2 
2 Aecumulated Depreciation i 

3 Depreclafonrecognised in Statement of Profil and Less 
forthe yearended 

‘B  [neonie eared fram opersiing Laages recognised in-statements of profitand joss during Apri-2d 
fo Mar24 . Loar b00.02 
IBeoinie oge Ease ee aereeerers. BbtL02 goo.02 

n Maturity Analyala of Lease payments receivable: 
The maturity analysis of Lease paymentreceivable under operaling leases frome year ending J iat March 2023 \e as foBows: 

setae Mare 2008" pyre 1-2 Years 23 years 34 years 4-5 yoars >5 Years Total 

Undlécountesd 
ease Payment BOD.02 B00 the 800.02 BOD.02 BO0.02 677.91 71,790.81 

TW 
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Notes to financial statements as at and for the year ended March 31, 2024 : (cont) 

47 Segment information 

The board of directors ofthe Company has appointest Mr. Sumit Pasan as Chiet Operating Decision Maker (CODM) as defined-by Ind 49 106, 
Operating Segments. The COON evaiuaies Ihe Comeany's performance ana siocetes resources based on Bn analysis of various perermance 
indinators. 

The Soran; desis with various customers, and there Was no customer to whom sales of 10% of mote of the Companys Fevenue were made 

Segment Raport 

REPORTING OF BUSINESS SEGMENT INFORMATION 

Rs. In Hundred 

Quarter ended Veortnsag; | SeMOve Meer 
S.NO.] PARTICULARS ltt 

31.03,2024 31.12.2023 31.03.2023 31.03.2074 31.03.2023 

(Audited) (Unaudited) (Audited) [Audited) (Audited) 
| Seement Revenue 

(a) Electrical Goods 1,580,020.00 1,364,580, 00 1,299,.205.58 3, 696,660,00 6,920,570,00 

(6) Sugar - - (1,200.00) - - 

(c} Agriqulture 16,470.00 6,980.00 992.65 140,330.00 25,050.00 

Total 4,596,490,00) 4,371,560.00| 1,298,998.94] 5,896,990.00) 5,945,560.00 
Less: Inter Se@ement Revenue - - - 

Revenue from Operations 1 ,586,490.00 1,371, 560,00 1,298,098.24 §,536,990.00 §,945,560,00 

il | Segment Results(Profit before 

Finance Cost and Taxes} 

(a) Electrical Goods 154,540.00 66,270.00 789 216.24 363,810.00 §20,640.00 

(b) Sugar 74,530.00 (44,110.00) (50,54 1.83) (57,490,00)) (205,930.00 

(c} Agriculture (1,460.00) 6,000.60 (12,399.31)] 115,640.00 (2,240.00) 
Total 227,410.00 27,160.00 925,905.00 421,970.00 312,700.00 

Less: 

(a) Finance Cost 30,000.00 70,500.00 32.270.00 287,970.00 244,630.00 

(biGther Unallocable {Income} = - - - - 

Profit Before Tax 197,410.00 (43,340.00) 93,635.00 134,000.00 67,870.00 

lll | Segment Assets 

(a) Electrical Goods 2,375,690.00 | 1,848,650.00] 2495,930.00] 2.375,68000] °2,495,930.00 

(b) Sugar 191,810.00 64,920.00 216,700.00 191,810.00 216,700.00 

(ce) Agriculture 415,560.00] 4.419,490.00| aa27.eeoo0] djaisseo.00) 4.427.860.00 
(d) Unallocated - - - - 

Total Segment Assets 6,983,000.00 6,353,070.00 7,140,490.00 6,963,000.00 7,140,490,00 

IV | Segment Liabilites 

(a) Electrical Goods 3,965,930.00 3,590,550.00 4,789,350.00 3,965,939,00 4,183,250.00 

(b} Sugar (1,869,830-00)) (4,902,190.00)] (1,902.420.00)) (1.8689,890.00)) (1.902,420.00) 
tc} Agriculture 2,562,439,00 2,854,910.00 2,990) Ste 1) 2,862,430.00 2,990,360.00 

id) Unallocated - - ’ . - 

Total Seement Liabilities $958,530.00 | 4,553,270.00 | S,277.290.00] 4,9586,590.00 | 45,277,290.00 



Khaitan’ (india) Limited 
Notes:to financial statemonis-as at and for the year onded March 31,2024 : (con) 

3 Cmployae bonett obligations | apenses 

{l) Post Employment Defined Cormnution Par 

The Cimpany conbibulise ta the Provident Fund (PF maintained with the Segara! Provided Fund Commissioner Urcer the PP scheme cdninbutlired ane made by 
both the Company and lis oligible ematoyecs to tho Pure, based on the curent salaros: An amount of Ra: 71,06, 704)- (3) March 2029 > Ap 10;24,007/-4 has boon 
Changed io the Statement of Prott and Loss brvards Gompany's contibutnn teihe aforesad PF scheme, Aparl fom making monthly contdouiicn in the schemes, 
ihe Company hag rio otter ablgation, 

(Il) Pose Employment Detined Benet Pian-Grabulty (Funded 

The Compary proves tor Gratuity, 2 oefined beret retremet pan covering eigibte employees. Aspen the acheme, the Gratuity Trust Funds managed Dy the 
Life insumanoe Corporation of india (LIG|) make payment to vested emeloyces on the oven of retirement, dewth, Inoapacitation of termination of employment, ofan 
Amounl bated on the respective anployees eligible salary lor speched numberof days. as ger ortvisions of Grahity Aot-dapencing upon the tequre of service 
subject toa madmum init of Ra.2.900,000, Vesting occur Upen compistion offive yaars of series. Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Pian are detarmined by 
actuarial yaluaton as set outin Mote 36 jill) ano (fv), feeed on whion, the Company makes cortibufanes ic the Gratuity Fund 

The tollewing Table sete forth the perboviars m esgnc of the atonsg Graty fwd ofthe. Cameany 

(Pin Hundred) 

{I} Balance Sheet amounts - Post employment Defined benefit plan - Gratuity (Funded) 

Present value | Fair value of 
of obligation plan assets: Net amount 

Tt April 2022 101,106.84 77,791.01 23,475.83 
Cuirentsentice oS 10,038 _TS . 10,058-75 
Interset cost Income 717848 6,402.88 1a 
Investmeantincome = : . 
Total amount recegnised in profiter lesa V2 6,407.88 41814.46 
Remagsuremendt (gaging)! loss 
Change in Demographic assumpbons . : 
~ Change in Financia! essuimatians (124.15; - (129.14) 
~ ipedonce Variance {jc Actual Exparence vs assumptions) (22,206.37) - (ee 37) 
~ Relumon plan asset, exclu maroon recognised in nelinierestexpense : . 21651 (218.5! 
Totel anount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (2a Dee} 216.64 (es 2d8 
Contribution by enrpoyer = — 
Banafits. paid 3.2827 3,268.27 : 
34 March 2023 32,026,395. a0,084,74 Tier 

T April 2023 $2026 a00.84 119.42 
Gurren service cost 10822 085 - 10,822.08. 
Interest cee | irmcnmay 671739 8,081.11 £39.82 
leveetrnent inccarie : : 
Total amount recognised in profitor loss 17,638.58 6080.11 11,958.87 
Remeasurementigains) | losses 
» Change in Demograghic assumptions : : 
- Change in Financiat assurnetions 16 - 1771 66) 
» Expenonce Varance {i.e Actua! Expeneice vs assumptions) (2 2h re - (45) 
» Returtran play ase), eccluging anounl recognised in netinierest anes E ag? 40 [392 49) 
Total aincunt recognised in Other Comprehensive incor (20 .456.79) dg248 (20 BT 25) 
Contribution by smpleyer - 70,000, 001 (70,000.00) 
Benes paid |__| : 
34 Maret: 208 (5,489,006) 43,744.93 (7200.09) 
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Notes to financial statemonts as at and for the year onded March 31, 2024 : (con) 

(®in Hundred) 

Particul AS al Ag at 
BIE Te March-34,2024 March-31 2023 

(VW) The net amount disclosed above relates to the aforesaid Gratuity Plan (Funded) is as 
fallowa: 

Reconciliation ofthe Present Value ofthe Defined Baneht Snligation and tha Fair Value of Pian Asasts: 
Present Value of funded obligation ai the-end ofthe year (54.60) 920.26 
Fair Vatue of Plan Assets atthe end ofthe year KE ers 800.84 
NetAsseti{ Liability) recognised inthe Balance Sheet (1E2.07) Wase 

Principal Actuarial Assumption Used: 
Diesen Rates as T20% rio% 
Expected Saiary increase rates Soe 6.00% 
Attntion rete 2.00% 2.00% 
Moctaiaty DALMCGB-04) Uitte PALM -08) Uitlrite 

The Company ensures thal the investment positions are managed Within an Asset - Liability Matching (ALM frameiors Ehal hes been developed in achieve 
investment that are in line wih the obligation under the Gratuity achame. Within this framework the Gempany's ALM objectlve is to match asaet with gratuity 
obligato. The Gampany acivelys monitor how the duration aed ihe expected yield of instruments are matohing the. expected cash dublow arising frorn the 
gratuity obligations. The Company has mo-changed the process used to manage its risk fom previews period. The Company dogs not use dervatves to 
manage ita risk, The praminy scheme is funded with LG) which nas goad rack record of managing fund 

Maturity Profite of Deflned Benaihi Obligation 
Weighted average duration (based on Gacounted cashifion) i 11 Years. 
The expected maturity analysic-of undiscounted graturty benefit is as follows: 

The expected maturity analyse of undiscourted gratuity banefit ia as follows: 

1 Your 2to 5 Your § ta 10 Yoar > 10 Your Total 

ocreltehd rane 2.405 620 2,124 455 4,223,728 5,648,803 

caawe Lente cuneate 2554240 40,41 ,321 1E,82,510 64,868,077 

peed a Rima somes 44,446,671 ataaatt 26,93,835 1,05.21.518 

ede cf 48,065,059 26,66,215 20,071,063 96,75,dar 

Deiat Benet Sesmeabh 125,05,059 §9,76,971 o7 55409 171,6246,198 14,64,85,647 

Dertned bench eee 99, 74,439 1.70,66.715 54,1209 o7,69,437 4,32, 22 600 

rd bene cetinaion 42,77 685 65,66,933 32,75,596 26,74, 566 1616 th 

Mw) Sengiivity Angiysis 
The folowing table presect a sensaivity anitysistccond of the néevant actuarial assumption, holding olherassumedions constant, showing Row the 
defined banefit obligation vould have bean affected by changes In the relevant actuarial assumptions that were reasonably possibieai the rapaning 
date. 

As at March-31,2024 As at March-312023 

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase 

Discount Plate {-/+7 Sa} ggg 2r1 B,117,4348 5,703.520 8784236 

Salany Growth Rate (-/=1%0) 6.714.567 9.090.818 5, 748,256 Ee As 

Atirition Rate (+509) B S28, 745 9.803 ,000 6, 166663 §.262.490 

Mortality Rate {+ 77%) 6,555,406 6.547 34 8,193, on 9.21186 

The above sengitlly anahees are based ona change in an assumption while holding all ther essureptions corestent. In peaetoe, tis ia undicely to occur, 
and changes im some ofthe assumptions may be correlated, When catoulating the sensitivity of the defined benef? abligaton to significant actuarial 
assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit chligaton calculated with ine profected unit cradit method atthe end of the reporting 
pevied) has been applied a5 when calculating tre defined benef fability recogresed in the Dance sheel. The metnads and typed of assumptions used in 
Preparing the sansithity a-alysis did not change compared fo the prior period 

74 



ScBacattenas’ (india) Limited 

Notes-to financial statemonis as al and for the year ended March 31,2024 : (cont) 

(tin Hundred) 

(Wl) Balance Sheet amounts = Post employment Defined benefit plan - Leave (Funded) 

Present value) Fair value of 
of obligation | plan assets Netamount 

1 April 2022 40,961,97 8,124.08 31,237.89 
Current service cost 40,523.57 = 10,823-97 
inferest cost / income 2,908.30 ‘383,50 251440 
investment income = = = 
Total amount recognised in profit ar las qaf5a 97 953.00 jae ar 
Remessuremend (gains) / losses 
~ Ghange in Demographic assumptions * “ 
» Change in Financial assertions (983,38) = (353-38) 
~ Experlence Variance (Le Actual Experienceve assumptions} (23,260.80) - (23,2680) 
- Retim on plan aseel, excluding amount recognised inna interes! expense = 
Total amount recognised in- Other Comprehensive Incorne (23,654,185) 22073 (23,853.99 
Coniiaution by employer : * = Er 
Benefits pald FAsead TAS247 + 
31 Mareh 2023 2,587.88 2,595.30 20,992.05 

TApril 2023 29,587 36 2,535,80 2032 
Current service cost 6,396.45 S345 
interest coat / income bP) 4.58 1586.82 
investment incama = = = 
Total ainournt recognised in profit or loss Wh? a6 134,58 S,o82 37 
Remesourerient (gains) | losses 
» Change in Demographic assumetions “ * 
= Charge in Financial asaurplions . 241.93 * 241 
> Gxperenod Veranoe (le Ache! Spenence ye aeeurnplions) (6,682.35) - (6,635) 

- Returner plan-aeset, excluding amount recognised in net interest expense : - 4.82 {4.82} 
Total amount recognised in Other Comprehensive Income (B.aeo.a2) 482 | 1639529) | 
Contibutten by employer = . 
Banefits paid Hin Sraeo - 
34 March 2024 2161,60 24,579.48. 

(Vil) The net amount disclosed above relates to ihe aforesald Leave Encashmaent Plan (Funded) |s a5 follows: 

Ac-at As at 
March-34 2024 | March-31 2023 

Raconcilstion ofthe Precent Value ofthe Defined Benefit . 
Present Value of funded obligation at the aid ofthe year 26,741.06 23,507.65 
Falr\Vaue of PlanAssetaatine end ofthe pear 25.80 PAB od 
Nel Asset || Liability) recognised intha Balance Shaat ee. 2a: rd Pee ec 

As al Ags at 
March-34 2024 | March-31 2023 

Principal Actuarial Assumpdon Used: 
Detount Rates 7.2055 73D 
Expected Salary Increpse rates 5.00% 5.00% 
Attrition rete: 2.00% 200% 
Mortality PALI O6-O8} BALM 6-08) 

Ultimate 

The Company-ensures fat the investment positions ane managed within an Asset - Liakily Meiching (ALM) framework fhe ha been developed tn aohieve 
investment that ere in fina withthe obligation under the Gratuity echame. Within this framewcrt the Gompany'a ALM objective isto match asset with gratuity 
Sbligation. The Company actively moniter haw the duraticn and the expected yield of instruments ant matehing the expected cash outflow arisine from the 
gratuity obligations, The Company has not-changed the process used to. manage its risk from previous period, The Gompany dogs. not use derivatives to 
Manage lie fiak. The gratuity dcheme is funded with LIC which haa good track record af managing fund, 
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Notes:to financial statemonis-as at_and for the year onded March 31,2024 : (cont) 

Maturity Profile of Defined Banefit Obligation ; 

THR EXDOGAT eeturiy analyale of urdhscnarroc grctlty Horestt in-car fe |= m=) Piet an | UMcieo ou enetit a5 Lovee: : sa oe (Zin Hundred) 
1 Year 2to 5 Year 6to 10 Year > 10 Year Total 

As at31 March 2024 : 
Defined benefit obligaticn 154,Fr? 27.24 €57,156 agai? 

As-atd1 March 2023 
Defined benef obligation 343.301 8.056 960,438 5 Ted) Bt 

Ag at 31 March 2022 
Defined benefit obligation 710.500 1425504 788,08) . 3,995,205 

As af 31 March 2021 
Defined benefit obligstion FR 9,500,208 #,033,622 . 4,923,764 

As af 34 March 2020 . : 

Defined bene® ablipation FELT 408,068 2071232 Tz, 102 19.453,650 

(Vill) Sensitivity Analysis 
The follewing table. orasant a sensitivity anaiysie by one of the-revent aciuanal assurnetion, holding other assumptions consiani, showing Amw the sefined 
benef obligation would faye been affected by changes-in ihe relevant actuarial aseumiplions: hel were reasonably posaible at ihe reporling cede: 

As at Mareh 31,2024 As.at March 31, 2023 

Decrease Increase Decrease Increase 

Discount Rate (+145) 2,996,046 2da6, TUT 5.023.084 2,176,589. 

Salary Growth Rate (4/+7%0) 2,440,184 2,999,229 2,163,128 2.567 ,144 

Altriton Rate (450%) 2,626,032 77,244 Perea 2,354,990 

Mortality Rabe ('+10%) 2,676,016 2672204 2360,521 2,a67,014 

The above Sensilivity anmiyses are tated bn a charge tan assumobtion while heading ail olher assumptions congtanl. in practice, this s Unlikely te oocur 
and changes in soma of the assumptions may ba corretabed. When calculating the sanaitivity of the defined banetit obligation to significant actuerial 
asqumplions the same rethed (present value of he defined benefil obligation ceculeted with the projected unit credit method ak the end of the repurting 
period) tas been aophed as when calculating the defined benefit liability recognised in the balance sheel. Tha methods ard toes of assurnobens used in 
Preparing the aenskivity.anaheia did mot chenpe compered to ihe poor pedod. 

(x) 

a] 

al 

(Hilt) 

Alek Exposure: 
Valuations are perfonmed on cena basig-snt of predetermined assumptions and other reguiatory framework which many vary averting. Tus, the 
Company is-exposad tovanoue skein providing thesbove gratuity benefit, the meostalgnificant of which ae astolicows: 

Interest Rate risk: 
The plan exposes the Company to therisk of fall in interestrates: A Tall in inmerest rates will result In.en increase in the wiimate costa? providing Ineebove 
beneditand will thus result nan inereassin the value ol the Gabllity (as shown in financial staternents} 

Liquidity Risk: 
This is te risk thet the company is not able te: meet the shor tarm gratuity pay-out. Tha may arise due to non availabiny of encugh cash'cash 
SqUNVEAeTI Lo meet the Babllities 

Salary Eacelation Rlsk: 
The present yeiue- of the defined benefit plane calouialed with the atcunription of salary lnereasé rate of plan peniogarits in future. Deviallon in the rete ot 
intraase of salary in fwiurefor plan participants trom the rate of incraase im salery wed to determine the present value of obigalion wil have a bearing on 
‘the plan's lebiity. 

Damographic Risk: 
The Company has-used certaln mortality and aitrfan assunypiiuns in vewabion of the lability. The Company is exposed to thesk of actual experience 
humming sult be worse compared to the agsurrestion 

Regulatory Risk: 
Gratuity benefit is paid meaccordance with the-requmements of the Payment cf-Gratuety Act, 1972(ae amended from time to tin), There ise ns cf 
Change in regulations veauirng higher gretulty payouts 6.9. Inerase inthe maximum lilt on gratuity af Ra 20.00.0001. An upward revision of 
fain gratuety limit will result ingrabaty plan obligation 



iclneattease’ (india) Limited 
Notes to financial statemonts as at and for the year onded March 31, 2024 : (con) 

34 Financial Instruments disclosure 

{A} CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (®in Hundred} 

. Ref Note As at As at 
Particulars Na, March-34 2024 | March-34 2023 

Financial Assets 
Measured at Amortised Cost 
Trade receivables a 671,822.93 49,0 14.79 

Cash and Gash cquivalents 2 5,109.03 41,558.97 
Bank palanges olher than cash and cash equivalents ‘ . 
Mon-Current and Current Loana ba 13 85,786.59 318,854.68 
Total financial assets measured alamnortisad coat TEE 399.55 {249,420 44 

Measured at Falr Value through Other Comprehensive become 
Current investraents. 
Ken Current Invesiments & | 799.43 | 
Total Financial Agsals mansured at Falr Value througl Other Comprehensive Incoine 245,755,43 246799.49 

Financial Liabilities 
Measlired ot dinortiged Cost 
fen Curent berawings iT 766,430.25 eda 775.73 
Currentborrowings Pi] 405,547 34 415,525.83 
Trade Payabtes: at . . 
Otnerfinancial labiliies 2 764,039.04 7a5 225.47 
Total financial llabiltties measured atamortized cost Vat 4ir.23 ae aera 

Measured at Falr Value through Profiter Loss 
Total financial habilities measured at Fair Value through ProfitorLoss 

{B) Falr Vales 
Ciass wise fei value of the Company's lnancial Inatrurnents: 

AS at #5 at 

Particulars March-at,uaa | Maerch-31,2024 
hon Cumant Investments, other than investmiant in subsidiary and jaintventurea (quoted O04 ot 
Non Current Invesbrents, other then invesbnent in subsidiary and joint venture (umaucted 245,799.43 245 7H 49 

(0) Far value hierarchy 

Tre following table provides the fair value measurement hievarchy of the Gompany's financial assets ano Sabillities, The ottferent levels have been detined 
Bela: 

= Level |: gutted prices iunadyunted) im active markets for dentinal aspets oF liabeities 
~ Lewel 2 inputs olher than queted prices inciudad within Level | that ere observeble for the ssset-or lability, ether cirecty (le. as prices) or indirectly 

(Le, Cerivee Thoin peices) 
- Level do inputs for ine asset or kabdlity that are not based on chservsiole market date (unobservable inputs) 

Falr value measurement using 

Particulars 
Date of 

valuation 

“Guoted prices 
in active markets 

(Level 4)" 

"Sgnitesrt 
obsorvable inputs 

(Lewel 2)" 

Quantitative disclosures of falrvalue 
measurement hierarchy forassets as al 31st March 2024; 
AL Fi ial assets: 

Assets measured atfalr value: 
Mon Cument Investments, other tan investment in suber and faim 
venture (quoted) Silat March 2024 
fan Guerant Invesiments, oiher tan invegiment in subeiiary aed joint 
werituretumquoted) Stat March 2024 245 755.45, 

Quantitetve dischosures of fair value 

measurement hierarchy for agsete as at Jet March 2023; 
A. Financial assets: 
Assets measured al fair value: 
Mon Curent investments, other han invasinent in subsidiary end jaint 
venture [quoted] eat Marah 2023 
Men Gurent Investments, other than invesiment in subaiiary and jalrit 
Vvercuretungucted) Bist March 2023 245 78.63 | 
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Notes:to financial statemonis-as at and for the year onded March 31,2024 : (con) 

Fair Value Technique : 
The tal values of the financial assets and flablities are included at the ame@unt that would be received te sell an asset or paid to 
ranster @liabillty in-an orderly transaction between participants et the measurement date. The folowing: methods and assumptions 

were used to estimate the fair values: 

(a) 

{c) 

The fair value of cash and cash equivalents, trade receivables, trade payables, current financial liabilities and borrowings 

aporoximate thelr carrying amount largely due to the Short-term nature of these Instruments. The board considers that the 
Carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities recognised at cost/amortiged costs in the financial siatements 

approximates their fair values, 

Investments in quoted equity shares are measured using quoted market prices at the reporting date multiolied by the quantity 
held. 

Fair Value Tor yeluation of unquoted equity instruments ts emrved based on management astmate. 

Financial Risk Management objectives and policies 

The Company's principal financial liabilities comprise borrevyings in domestic currency, capital creditors and trade and other 
‘payables, The main purpose of these financial lisbilities is to finance the Company's operations. The Gampany's principal 
financial assets include-loans, trade and other recenables, cash and cash equivelents, investments at cost/fair value and 
deoosits, that derive direcily from ts operations. 

The Gompany is exposed to mancst risk, credit risk-and liquidity tisk. The Gompany's senior management oversees the 

management of these make, The Board of Directors reviews and agrees policies far managing each of these risks, which are 
summansed belo. 

A Market risk 
Martet risk means that the fair yalue of future cash flaws of a financial instrament will fluctuate because of changes in market 
prices. The goa! of market nek management = optimization of profit and cantolling the exposure to marketrisk wihin-aceeptaale 

limits. Market risk comprises two types of risk: Foreign currency risk’, ‘interest rate risk’, and’Price risk on traded goad’. 

Price Risk on Traded Goods 
The company is impacted by the-price volatility of goods in which the Gompany trades, To minimize the risk related to price of 
tradec goods, the Gompany cbisin order for sales fram buyers prior to purchase of goods with immediate despatch ta buyer, 

B Credit-risks 

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Company if customer er counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet iis 

contractual obligations, and arizes principally from the Gompany's recewables from customers and others. In addition, credit isk 

arises from financial guarantees. 

The Eompany implements 4 credit risk management policy under which the Company only transects Gusiness with 

counterparties that have a certain layel of credit worthiness based on infemsl assessment of fhe parties, financial condition, 

historical experiance, and other factors. The Company's exposure to credit risk is infuenced mainly by the individual 

characteristics of each customer: The Company hes established a credit policy under which each new customer ts analyzed 

individually for creditworthiness. 

(i) Gredit risk exposure 

The cerrying amount of financial assets represents the Companies's maximum exposure te credit risk The maximum exposure to 

credit risk as of 31 March 2024 8 31 March 2023 are as follows: 

AS at Aa at 
Particulars March-31,2024 | Mare*-a1,2023 

Trade recelvaiies (man) Bri ga294 $89,014.78 
Gash and Cash Equivalents 5,190.04 31,955.97 
Bank beances oiterthan cash and cash equivaients . . 
Non4Current ard Current Loans 44.786:49 318,954.68 

TB 



bcBacattecas’ (india) Limited 
Notes:to financial statemonis-as at and for the year onded March 31,2024 : (con) 

C Liquidity Riek 
The Commany's chiective iste at all timas maintain optimum level of Squddity to meet its cash and collateral nequirament st all times. The need af the 
funds of the-company are being met by intemal accrue! and borrowings. The short and medium term requirements ere met through the commited 
{ines of credit. 

The table provides undiscounted cash flow towards nan-dertyathe financial lability and net gertiled derhyative financial Gabilitiees: iter releyaartt 
maturites besad.on the remaining period at balance sheet cate to contractual maturity data. (Zin Hundred) 

Particulars 0-180 days | 181-265 days |>ayable in more Total cu than 1 year bs 

As at 3isiNarch 2024 
Men Current borrowings: - - PER AR BF THG4ARI IG 
Current borrowings 405 948 - . 405.547 o4 
Trace Payables 1,612,578 MT ITZ 24 552.57 2 UU a 
Otter financial dabililies 44 ae - : Pd 02 

7,762. 668 7014, on aT HO05 APBD 
As at dist March 2023 
Non Current borrowings . - GOR TTS.73 BOB, TTS.7A 
Current berrowings 415,528 . . 415,525.83 
Trade Payaboas 1404 Teo Aga Fad 227 782.00 2,095,874.75: 
Omer financal tabilities, 748225 : : 74 AP 

25G5,540 494,234 B36,567.79 3/266, 347,82 

47 CAPITAL MANAGEMENT 
A. Risk management 

Tre Wundamenial goal of capital management are to; = safeguard their ability to confine es a going conoem, so that they can continue to proyide 
returns for sharehotiers and benefits foe other stakeholders, and = maintain an optimal capital structure to peduee the cost of capital, The Board of 
Directors has the primary responsibility to maintaina strong capital hese and reduce the costof cantial through prudesl management of depinynd 
funds and leveraging opportunities in. domestic and Interrtaticnal financial markets $0 2 to maintain Invesior credit’ anc market confidence and in 
Sustain fublee dedtopment of the business, For the pursbee of company's capital management, capital Ineludes issued cage! and all other equity 
regerces, The company manages its capital siruchure-in lightof changes in the economic and reguiaiey environment and the requirements of the 

financial covenants. 
The Company manages its capital on fhe basis of net debt to equity ratio which is met debt divided by total equity: Net debt are long-term amd short- 
term debts. reduced by cash and cash equivalents. Tha Company is not-subject to-any extermaly imposed canial requirements. 

Tre fallowing table summeriges the capital of the Company: (in Hundred} 

As at Ag at 
Particulars Maroh-31.2024 | March24 2009 

Total berreirges 1AF2.278,.19 1,024,301 
Less: Cagh and cash equivalents {5.190 03} (21, 555:97) 
Net Debt 1167,188 16 BL Ta Eo 

Equity 2024 459.56 4,863,195 :84 

Total Capital (Equity + Net Octet} 3,14 687.72 2,B85, 92743 

Net Dabt to Equity ratio O48 0.53 

42 Related Party Disclosure persuant to Ind AS 24 
(a) Related Parties 

M's Rihgitan Harel Pyt Lie 

Nanee of orttities in Which Diractors are intereated M's Boigar Elocticats 4 Appliances: Ltd. 

Mila Khaitan Lefin Limited 

his. The Orental ercantia Oo. Lid 

Mis Wstevie Agro Pi. Ltd 

May Managerial Personnel Narnia Designation 

Mir Sunay! Krlehre Khaitan Olreaior 
Ms. Vageesha Khaitan Retath’e.of Director 
Mr. Sandip Chatterjee Director 
Mrs. Sujata Crateree Director 
Mir, Maeia) Cinaivennare Orector 
Mr Gopat Mor Girector 
her, Agpay Alea Girector 
hir, Sumit Pasar Chef Financial Officer 
Mr, Ankit Sugendit Company Secretary 

fa 
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Notes:to financial statemonis-as at and for the year onded March 31,2024 : (con) 

(b) Details of Transactions with Related Parties (in Hundred) 

Nature of Transactions Name of related parties. Designation 31 March 2024 31 March 2023 

Aemunerston fic. Suney Finan Mieaitee Ex. Dinactor 20,972.50 1400812 
his. Vageosha Khadari Manager 9,246.80 4,261,52 
her, Swagan Kuriar Das cro . 54a 
Mr: Surat Pasen Gro 1,371,50 - 

Wir, Pradip Halder Gangany Seontary 688,49 eursimi 
Mr. Ankit Sugandh Company Secretary $,505,75 . 

Sitfing Fees Mr Sandip Chatteee Director 60,000 600.00 
Mére. Sujata Chattenee Director 60,000 0.00 

Lon taken Ne Sunay Mirishine Khoder (26,162.58 6 00.00 
hits Khaitan Hoted Pvt, Ltd. 60,300.04 10,200 4K) 
Nes Khaitan Cefn Lirniied 185,585.82 VT 25099 
Ais The Oulental Mercendiie Ca. Lie. 230,492.16 : 

Loan paid Kir Suny Krishna Khair 34,840,00 277,030.00 
Nis Khaitan Hotel Pvt: Ltd 183 ,47T 41 10,770.00 

fits Khaitan Lefin Limes 135,918.35 10.49.77 
N's. Tha Otental Mercantile Ca. Ltd 16,880.00 - 

Advance Pain Mis Vetevia Agro Pvt Lid. 42,578,908 - 

M's. Boisar Electricals & Appliances Lt. 7,728,432 . 

interest Paid Mite Khaltan Hote) Pyt. bbe 35,262.52 34,175.34 
Mis Khaitan Lefin Limited 1,820.14 . 
he's. The Oriental Merqantile Co, Ltd, 5,250.79 - 

Reyaty Received hits. Botear Elecinicale 6 
Appliances L*d 410.596.2328 21 ea 7a 

Rent Poad hs Khaitan Lefin Lirnited 6,000,00 6000.00 

(ce) Details of balances with Related Parties 

Payables (Zin Hundred} 

As at AS at 
Particulars Mareh-21,2024 | March-31,2023 

Amount Armount 

Me Suny Krishna Khaitan 45,094.74 ea? Aa 
Ms, \Vageesha Khaitan 7532.51 {8210.46 
Mir. Swaepan Kumar Des 1,581.90 2202 

Mr. Sandip Ghatopadhyay 160.00 ‘1.00 
Mrs, Sujata Chatterjee ‘VE tH) 160.00 
Me, Pradip Haldar a ABA AN 
Mite Khaitan Hotel Pvt, Lin 346,851.98 4M 706.46 
Nits Khaitan Latin Linited 51,187.44 - 

Mis. The Oriana Mercantile Go, Ltd, 219,622.95 : 
Mis. Boigercliecticels &Apaliances Lid. OL Tei 230 410.84 
fife Vstevie Ages Pat. Ltt 12, 57RR - 

Totakt: 785,835.68 @6977,160 

(ic) Details of compensation pald to KP 

Mr. Sunay Krishna Ms, Vageesha Mr, Ankit 
Khaltan Khaitan | Me SumitPasari) = Sueandh 

For the year ended Forthe yearended) Fortheyearended | For the year ended 
March 31,2024 March 47,2024 Idarchh 34,2024 March 34,2024 

Short-Term Ernaieyee Benefits 65.96 6558 63.56 47.a3 
Post-Emalnyerment Banehts 904.484 {oo 00 257-30 FT AZ 
Long-Team Employes Benetis, “ = = Z 
Termination Banetite “ - = 
Employee Payments : " . 2 
ohal Compernsat 575 aro aaF iat 



bcBacattecas’ (india) Limited 
Notes:to financial statemonis-as at and for the year onded March 31,2024 : (con) 

B
R
E
 &

 No Borrowing cost have been capitalised auring the year 

Dues fom officers Aa. 3544,679): (PY. TeB0 S51) | 

Eaming in Foreign Exenange: FOB Vaueot Export- Rs. NIL (Pv. « Ni) 

The company is having more than 20%. equity share stale in Mis Khaitan Lefin Lid, however, follawing the cantistent practice ¢! the company, the 
financial statements of the soove refered ertity has nether bean consclisied norany consolideied financial statements has oeen prepared as ihe 
Management believed thal it does not enjoy necesgery contol Bnd influence in respect of the finehclal-and operating politied over the sald company. 

Production wetivity of ite sugar mill of ihe company is doctinved fo be-under suspension for a long lime ater incurring Teeayy losses. The produotion 
activities could nat be resurned during the current pear because of Un-remunerative sellmg prices and high cost of production. Howeverihe company 

lo hopeful thet in fulure because of the various meegunes envisaged the postion may improv. eretore, forthe thne belng company has not conskiered 
the business of sugar as descontinued operabon. 

In the opinion ofthe management the raalisable value of Property, Plant and cowimenent.of sugerdrvision could not be lass.than fis carrying. walue, As 
SUCH. any prowigion on aeeount of impairment is not considered necessary, apan irmna erevieion of Ra 07 lakhs carried since previous year 

49 Gértain financial end operational creditors of the company have infiletad Insolvency and Banarupicy proceedings against the Gompany under IBC 
Code S016. However. In allof the cakes, the petition of the concened creditaré has not been admitted yet by he coripetent courts! lew, Management 
ig taking necessary stapes to ragoive the issue of such creditors. Thanefora, itdoes not envisage any concens aa regards to going concen states of tha 
cormary 2¢ this -etege 

60 The comparty has incurred losses upto the half year endéd 30th September 2022 and asa In the immediately preceding few financial years;es auch 
ihe net worth of the company bas reduced. However, Que to yarcurs business improvement related measures undenaken by the-company, 1 has gamed 
Nat profits-for the financial year Ae2-23-and 2123-24. The manecement fs hopeful of improved results in subsequent parioday years too, as such the 
accounts of the company have been orepared on gaing concen basis. 

51 Thebelance of debtors, Creditors, Loan, advance, Claims. and caposts are-subject to.comfinmeftion’ reconcibation. in tne. ogi of the management, 
Becouruing adjueimants. 7 any, ansing theretrom are not likely ta be material on doncdusion of exercise of confnmatlon reconciliation. 

52. Additional disetocures required by Schedule Ill (Division Il) of the act, oe Amended 

(. Thang was no proceeding has baen initiated or panding.against the company for holding any benami property under the Banami Transactions 
(Prohibition) Act 1588 and mies mada thereunder. 

2. The Gompany hee avalled-barrowings tor working caaftal purpose from the banka on the bagis-of security of curnett asses. The Company Gea 
ihe stabement of current asseis with the bank on poriodical baste, Following am. the peconciliabon between books of aoceunis and quarterly 
Siatemants submitted to ine Senders, where borrowings have Oeen availed based om security of currant assets: 

41 livvertery 

Rs. int Hundred 

Agneaurst am Agree till aes 
repented in fue Amun aa per Genks | popertaed in the Amount oP Roasen fer Weierial 

lia aan quarterty neha Provistan for ireatory of accounts: ‘Quartenty refuam Difference Difference 
Jatatoment datatement 

t tuo 7,080 aa, 020 THE.OwD (12, 7a Ody 
2 Sepi2s Tia4a0. So2, 460 hago Cae Favor Hoar 

F Dec 23 Fare]. | Ae BB5a50 ranrea (2, 7B OT) 
4 Marzd 7a.B40 49,800 Tao (1B 3s Oo Refer heise 2 

Recostollimg (bom 
Aaniwurd 4. 

4 Aut ae per bookR | feperiad in the Snnint oF Rawson for Matorial 
1 Me, Guartar Nara of Basik Securty Provider of anecuants comiterh) rally Diftcrence Biference 

Jetatara it 
4 surny- 2 e715 47 160 ARASH (t27 Oe 
2 a2 675,440 , SH 1B 67S 740 eth: Rater Kote 1 

3 Dec 22 Te ia a \) a C5 (iar ce0) 
d Nr) “BS8, 050 568,850 Tea Foo (7 Refer hot 2 

Bi 
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Notes:to financial statemonis-as at and for the year onded March 31,2024 : (con) 

Motm 1; Bearer plant has been classibed as fiutd asstes and samy has been reported under tiued asseis in tinangial statement Gul same Was reported as. 
Diniecscel esseste under stock to bank. 

Note: Difference is due fo provisional valuation of stock and receivsblse to statement to bank. 

2 Trade Payable 
Racin Humaine 

Raconciling tam 

Arbeit a6 

reported in . —— Amount a2 per 

5.No. Quarter | the quarterly pelagic iia athers* books of Net diffrence 
reaurn acorns 

/stetement 
4 urea Ee ae 445,740 927,360 FREER 
2 Supee3 BR2030 $17,724 ea6,149 224 B90 
3 Dec 23 f]-580 487 AB 650,640) 4 B6.a70 
4 Nar 2 661 280 426,350) aa" ,450 2,008,000 

Reconciling tem 

Amount as 

reported in AMOUET Bs Her 

No, fuerte | the suastedt) ee eee oth we hocks of Net didfrenas 
ramumn tii accounts 

jsatement ae si 
1 duns-22- B67 240 49 Bao ao {860,40 
z Sept a2 B33, 7a0 253,630 THE.0S0 2008 aot 
7 we 915,170 Aci, 98 550 BATT 
4 tier-24 a7 700 438,51 810,350 2,120 

"LO Fecility taken from NBFC raperad in tinancial statement a6 creditors but same ia mot considered! in Statamant submitted to Bank 26 the same is nat in 
the ngure of crediors but in the mature of finances, 

2 Trade Receivable (As. In Lakhs.) 
Fes, in Hundred 

| Ficacoen ili tae 

Byreniant aes 
reported in 

Amount a6 per ; 
5, Na. Quarter | tha quarterly) Provigian for doubtful debts. ai sie Net difirence 

retunn 

1 sune-ty |" 1,058, edg (757.030) 262,910 
2 Sopa 1,048,260 eo 770) 845.490 

3 Ree 562,150 (752450) ieg.650 
rf fara 931,150 (256.230) é71930 

Recmelling tert 
Sarenuint as. 

reported Ip 

5.Na. Guster | tie quarter). | Pricidenfardeubeiadaby | APMMPRERET | gig atiteannd: 
backs of aeemunita 

paturn 

staibermerit 
L eed 1,204,230 (272,920) 91,410 

z Bawk72 1,201,367 (233.0401 68.320 
4 Dect 1,247,760 (260.490) 587,870 
ry Miar-25 1078.rea (288,170) bea.0i0 

i) The company hee not made any rangections-wah companise stuck off uncer section 244 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of 
Carnpanies Ast, T258. 

4) The Company isnot a holding company of any subsidiary company of nol a subsidiary of @ holding company. The compliance with the number of 
layers prescribed under clauses (87) of section 2.ofthe Act read with the Gompenies (Restriction on number of Layers! Aviles, 2017 is notappicable 
for the Camaaniy 

5) The Company hae granted advances to and made investment In tis aseociate and other companies which have been uilllleed by them in ordinary 
courée of business for fuethor investment as par their business requirarment or for genteal corporaie purpose. Details of the lpars are as folios: 

Bz 



iclneattease’ (india) Limited 

Notes to financial statemonts as at and for the year onded March 31, 2024 : (con) 

As at 21 March ot24 

- Nature of 
Name of intermediary Relation CIN rt ction Date Rs. 

Mrs Khagtan Lefin Limited Astotiate U6SS 10.781 SB4PL COTA Loan Given Various Date 135,918.35 

Mis Khaitan Lefin Limited Associote UgSS 10/81 SMPLCoIraaD Invesiment ‘Various Date 114,036.00 

As at 24 March 2023 

‘ Nature of Name of intennediary Relation CIN beceraasi td Date Rs. 

Mis Khaitan Lefin Lirtted Assogiain USS 108 19R4PLCoa74ao Laan Given ‘Wierious Date 196,780.42 

fil's Khaitan Lefin Limited Associgta W655 10VV8 1 SEIPLOdaT4ao Invesiment ‘Venous Data 114,096.00 

@) The Company hae no fransactions te remot against he telowing disclosure requirements 24 notilied by MOA pursuant te amended Schedule I; 

(8) Geypte Currancy of Virtual Gurancy 
(hb) Retating to bored funids: 

|. Litiiearion of share oremium 
i. Discregancy in utilisation of borrowings 
iii, Gurren matunty of long term borrowings 

7) The company hes nel applied an accounting policy retrospectively of rade 4 restatement of any iterns in the financial slatements, 

8) The Company nave net received any fund from sry persons or entities with the unaerstending tnat ine Company shee 

2} direct oF Incirectly lend. or invest in ather persone of entities identified In any manner whatsoever by or on behett of tre URimate Beneficiaries or 
Ob) Gece any guarantee, Security or te Ee on tetiall of the Ultras Biereficiovies. 

9) The Company have nol any such Irengaction which is not recorded in the books of accourls that nas been surrendered or disclosed a5 ncome during 
the year in ihe tax assessments under the Inoome Tax Act, 1967 suchas. search oc survey of any other mlevent prowisinns of fhe Incore Taw Act, 1961), 

{OAS the company do not have turnover of As. 1000 crore or more.or het pec of Ais. 5 ote et fore ot Nel weorlh of Fis. St) crore of more in 

immediately preceding financial veer, the provisions under section 135 of tha companies aci wih magard to CSR activites isnot applicable, 

64. Ratio analysis and Hs slemonts 

Ratio Numerater Danominator Current Yoar Previous Year 

(a) Current atic Tote! current assets Tota! current lanilies 0,34 that) 

(b} Dab-Equity Ratio Durie Total Equity 0.54 Oh 

Eeming for Debt Saree = RAT + Det Serica = interes 1a? aaa 
(e) Debt Sanice Coverage Ratio Depregigtion + interest +.Non cash payments + Principal 

operetion expensesiad|usinrent payments 

(ct) Reatum an equity Rabo Profit for the year Average total aquely faery oi 

(oe) Inventory tumover radio Revenue fom operabons Averages inveninny ra 10.38 

(fF) Trade Receivables tumover rao Revenue fom operabons Average ade receivables Fag 5.61 

(ig) Trade Payable tamover ratin Cust of goods Sold © Total purchases + Change In| ry Average fade payable 1.64 221 

Avarage working cate = 
(h} Net-capital tamaver ratio Revenue from operations Total Gutrent assets = Tota! -1,68 4.01 

current Sa bilities 

(0) Met prodtt ratio Profit-for the year Revenue from operations Oda 0 

(j) Retum on capda! employed Profit before. and finanes costs Capital omployed = Met worth OY ar 

(k) Return on ineestment Income geneveted trans invested funds fy solanhtt oa in NA MA 

B3 



Notes:to financial statemonis-as at and for the year ended March 31,2024 : (con!) 

53 The Company have the following charges satisfaction which is yot to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory pariod ; 

Rx. it Hiendred 

SMe (Change Holder Name Charge hd Cate af Graton Paste of Armaurel Parmar 
Modifinatan 

7 THE SCAITH MOMs) Bane LIWETED Tdioso6 Dar ageo 705804 | 
2 (DE Bark Limited EUs ney 1g8008 anand 408,000,00. | Presanty «215 ame 
a BAKE OF BaR OG, TOA OS Twa 220,780.00 | Presantiy - 9.60 iakne 

4 (DEE Banh Lirmited qnnaTaTz BRBONT 2yea00T TOON oo) See 

5 IDE! Banks Limited aes? Ly 15/2011 408,000.00 n- 
3) (BE Bars Linens! es a 12 hoe SOO000 OF ‘Ot. 
fi DEE Bark Cimibed O0I53017 (2p 308,000.00 Oo. 
= (0&0 Bank Limited 2528 ates 00,000.00 -DO- 

a STATE BARS OF PATIALA 90256124 {28/2004 5 UO -Ho- 
fn WEST BENGAL INDUSTRIAL ORY. CORPORATEGN LTD SU 25 RLA Waa0 100,000.00, -Li- 
hl STATS BARA OF PATIL BO26R37 BSS 6.000.060 AiG 
43 (be! Berk Lime RSSs40 FBO SaF - 301,000 0 ‘DO. 

13 (CO BAN F255535 D2 S82 62,950.00 -Do- 
14 LCi Ban ESS aat98e 35,980 00 -DG- 
i5 CO oe 507Sseg2 B22 446 850-00 -DD- 
1a WEST BEMGAL MOLSSTROAL DEY QoRPORATO LT Poa ed TAT NDRS Prine 60,000, 00 -DoO- 

if USITED BANK OF IREuG, H2S S326 Ee cali IQRaM 42000 00 oO. 

62 Previous year figures: ; 

The figures of previous year have been regrouped | reclassified wherever necessary to make them comparable with those of ihe 
current perod. 

The notes referred toabove farnman integral-oertof the financial statements 

Previous year Nigyres: ; 
The figures of previous year have been regrouped / raclassified wherever necessary to make them comparable wih those of the current period. 

The notes refered toabove form an integral part of the financial statements 

For KC, Bhattacherjed-& Pasil 
Charlared s.ccourdants 
Frm Regn Nu, doo026E 

Giavojt Datta 

(Partner) 
Memmenchip Wa, 159582 
UDIN: MCSSSGT BROWS 

Kokuasa 
BO" day of May, 2024 

For and an Bahaif of the Beard of Directors 

Suriay Ko Mhaitar 
Director 
Dien rsesirh 

Suni] Pusat 
Chie! Financial Oificer 
PAte-SFRPPAtBA 

Soncdp Chabbonadhyay Supots. Chatheree 

Exrecbor Chirectior : 
Deer sata BRE MS656 

Ankit Sugary 
Company Sacrotary 

Pal: -DEHPSBa0'R 



Eceeattean’ (india) Limited 

Dete: 30", August 2004 

Dear Shareholder. 

Sub:- Registration of emai address 

in terms of Rule 18(8) of the Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, we request the shareholders of Khattan (India) 
Limited who have till date notregistersd thalre-mailid{s} with the Gampany to register thelr email id{s) in order te receive the Notioss af 
future Annual Generel Meeting and Annua! Repartof the Company in electronic form. 
We, tharsfore, request you to fill up the regiétretion form below and sand it ta Gompany's Share Registrar & Transfer Agent at Mis. 

Maheshwar Datamatics (P) Lid: 23, FN. Mukherneas Acad, Sth Floor, Kolkata- 700001 far registration your emall address Shareholders 

who hold shares in Demat form are requested approach concemed Depository Participant for updating/moditying the ©-mail id(s} as the 
ease may be. 

For KHAITAN (INDIA) LTD. 

Chandra Nath Banerjes 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

EMAIL REGISTRATION FORM 

To 
The Company (tor Members holding shares in phyeléal moda)/ 
The Depository Participants (for Members holding shares in Demat made) 
Sub: Ragisiration of email address (Khaitan (India) Ltd.) 
lie Would like to receive Notices; Annual Reports and other communication(documents from the company lh electrons mode. We 

Fequast you register my/our email address torhecelving communication/documents electronically as pet following details: 

Neme of the Shareholder(s} 

Folie Mo/DP ID) Cllent 1D 

Emall Address 

Mobile Mo, 

Date: 
Place: ; 

Signature of the Sharsholder(s}** 

* Please lick as applicable, 
™ Please ensure that the fon issegned by the registered shareholder himself, along with joint shareholder, if any 



BOOK - POST 

The name is enough 

www. khaltansugarin 

If undelivered please return to : 
Khaitan (India) Limited. 46C, JUL.Nehru Road, Kolkata - 700 071 (India) 


